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(b) by reason of the failure of the lndemnitors to perform or comply with the Indemnity 
Agreement or any bonding facility, or 

(c) in enforcing any of the covenants and conditions within the Indemnity Agreement. 

Attached and marked as Exhibit "A" to this Affidavit is a copy of the Indemnity Agreement. 

4. In reliance upon the Indemnity Agreement and at the request of one or more of North American, 
Trisura, as Surety, issued Performance Bond No. MSC1150074 (the "Bond") on behalf of North 
American as Principal in respect of North American's contract dated May 30, 2019, with the 
obligee, PCL Construction Management Inc. ("PCL") with respect to the installation of structural 
steel for the 9th Avenue bridge replacement in Calgary, Alberta (the "Bonded Contract" and the 
"Project" respectively). The Bond expressly stated that Trisura shall not be liable to PCL for a sum 
greater than $462,000.00 (the "Penal Sum"). Attached and marked as Exhibit "B" to this Affidavit 
is a copy of the Bond. 

5. Attached and marked as Exhibit "C" to this Affidavit is a copy of the Bonded Contract. The Bonded 
Contract had an initial value of $4,648,509.00 excluding GST. 

6. On or about July 29, 2021, North American was adjudged bankrupt pursuant to the Bankruptcy 
and Insolvency Act, RSC 1985, c B-3. MNP Ltd. was appointed as the trustee of the estate of the 
bankrupt pursuant to the Bankruptcy Order (the "Trustee"). As a result, North American failed or 
neglected to complete and otherwise defaulted in its performance of the Bonded Contract. 

7. On or about July 30, 2021, PCL noted North American in default under the Bonded Contract. 
Attached and marked as Exhibit "D" to this Affidavit is a copy of the notice of default. 

8. On the same date, PCL called upon Trisura to complete the outstanding work under the Bonded 
Contract and otherwise respond pursuant to Trisura's obligations under the Bond (the "Bond 
Claim"). Attached and marked as Exhibit "E" to this Affidavit is a copy of this correspondence. 

9. Trisura took steps to investigate the Bond Claim which included obtaining information with 
respect to the accounting of the Bonded Contract. Attached and marked as Exhibit "F" to this 
Affidavit is a copy of North American's Application for Payment, dated July 16, 2021, which shows 
at that time the value of the Bonded Contract had increased to $6,570,615.05 excluding GST and 
North American believed it had completed 82.61% of the work under the Bonded Contract. 

10. Further, PCL provided Trisura with a summary of its estimated cost to complete the remaining 
work under the Bonded Contract in the approximate amount of $4,791,554.00. Attached and 
marked as Exhibit "G" to this Affidavit is a copy of this summary. 

11. As a result of North American's default, pursuant to its obligations under the Bond, on or about 
April 21, 2022, Trisura paid PCL the amount of the Penal Sum, namely $462,000.00. Attached as 
Exhibit "H" to this Affidavit is an email from Trisura to PCL advising PCL of an electronic fund 
transfer in the amount of $462,000.00. Attached as Exhibit "I" to this Affidavit is a printout listing 
all of Trisura's electronic fund transfers from its Bank of Montreal account on April 21, 2022 {with 
any unrelated transfers redacted), evidencing to PCL in the amount of $462,000.00. 
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12. As an indemnitor to the Indemnity Agreement, North American is liable to Trisura for repayment 
of the $462,000.00. 

13. Attached and marked as Exhibit "J" to this Affidavit is a copy of Trisura's executed Proof of Claim 
(without the Indemnity Agreement attached) as provided to the Trustee. 

The Shield Litigation 

14. On or around August 19, 2021, the Trustee issued its preliminary report (the "Preliminary 
Report") advising that North American has commenced litigation against Shield Industries Ltd. 
("Shield") and Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") in the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta 
Court File No. 2001-16202 (the "Shield Litigation"). Attached as Exhibit "K" to this Affidavit is a 
copy of the preliminary report released by the Trustee. 

15. On or around July 6, 2022, the Trustee issued a "First Report of the Trustee, MNP ltd." (the "First 
Report") providing additional details with regards, inter alia, the Shield Litigation. Attached as 
Exhibit "L" to this Affidavit is a copy of the First Report released by the Trustee, but without 
Appendices H to Q. 

16. Paragraph 11 of the First Report details that, the Shield Litigation is related to Project as Shield is 
alleged to have agreed to fabricate and supply steel for the Project (the "Shield Work") and 
Wynward is alleged to have issued a performance bond with respect to the Shield Work in which 
North American was named Obligee, Shield was the named Principal, and Wynward was the 
named Surety. 

17. Attached as Exhibit "M" to this Affidavit is a copy of an Affidavit sworn by Steeve Toupin on April 
20, 2022 which explains he was a principal of North American and that North America entered 
into a purchase order with Shield for the Shield Work on the Project, that Wynward issued a 
performance bond in respect of the same, and Shield failed to meet its obligations under the 
purchase order (the "Toupin Affidavit"). 

18. Paragraph 12 of the First Report specified that the Shield Litigation was commenced by way of a 
Statement of Claim filed on behalf of NASE in the amount of $3,673,856.02. The Shield Litigation 
was defended by Wynward, who filed a Statement of Defence. Counsel for North American 
informed the Trustee that Shield was insolvent and did not defend the Shield Litigation. 

19. Attached as Exhibit "N" to this Affidavit are copies of the copies of the Statement of Claim of 
North American, filed December 9, 2020, the Statement of Defence of Wynward, filed January 28, 
2021, and the Reply to the Statement of Defence of Wynward, filed February 11, 2021 
(collectively, the "Pleadings"). 

The Trustee's Refusal to Proceed with the Shield Litigation 

20. As shown at Appendices F and G to the First Report, on or around February 23, 2022 and on or 
around April 13, 2022, the Trustee delivered a Notices to the Creditors of North American that 
advised the Trustee did not have the funds to prosecute the Shield Litigation and that any one or 
more of the creditors could apply to take over the Shield Litigation in its own name and at its own 
expense and risk. 

{00718720-1} 
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Concluding Matters 

21. Based on the above, Trisura has concluded that there is merit to the Shield Litigation commenced 
by North American and has determined that it is in its best interest to advance the Shield Litigation 
in its own name and at its own expense and risk. 

SWORN (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME at 
-r-:>rC'\4-"> Ontario this~ day of 

A-vr·\i . . 2022 

- N<:.o Ii- F 0YL.ouc..tt1,. f'..i 
A Commissio er of Oaths in and for Ontario 
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INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
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BY: Nonh Amcrlc:an Steel En:t:t•rs Inc:. 
Srecvc Toupin 
Gordan Spalding 
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olMaWng uf Dunds twhclhcr ur nuc '*11 lllllcnlnocur i• • pnnc;t,lil llllCkr 111y lkHllll•I 111 hc:n:illallct dcr!Mdl ur in the Surcry's 
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(cl •Balldi111 FllCill1y" - 1111)' rwz, r-cn1 Ill' ruiun: ....,_i ur IUllllllftl'Cnl between lhc S11tt1y 11nd lhc lndannlllllll w uy of 
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(JI) •nccu1C" lllld-.:.ca11ioll" include piuan 11111 pnlCllmilClll fur e1cc;utK1n, 
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~ 11111 lilbili1ies (badllaflcrC11lled ~1n&1enmi1y l..oua4 J 11rwhaL~ lund ar 1111iR Cinc:ludins. bul 111M limllcd 1o, lhc rces lllld 
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(bl Thll AlftClllClll shall bind· 
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I•) If l1ic ladcianilon dcalrc lluM a da1111 w dcnllllJ 1pMHI tllc Surety slall be ralllCJ ~ luipcd, lhc llNlcmllifon lliall· 
Ci) iiivc llOlice 1a Illes~ 10 llliurrca; md 
CU) If reques&cd, al any time, by lhe SUR1y, deposit wilh &be Surety cash (llr cull11ml Atisf11C10ry IO lhc Slll'Cly) in m alllCHllll 

sulllcicnl la ccm:r lhc cspcnscs Ind recs of dcf'cncc: :uid 
tiill if~ a1 uy tilnc. by die Slftty, ..-. wilb Ike S-y cash cur culblclal ~ll.\l'ICliufY to tbl: Sway) in 1111 .-Malt 

sulllcical to C11Yd llw d.tm llf dcm:lnd allll lllletal lhcrcul' IO lhc ~ llllc of dKpusitiun. 
(b) If few...,, n:11sm1 lhc: S•my deems ii lleCC11:11)'"' c:scabllsh ur IO lncn:aK ~ ~(Ille :111111u111 of which shall be in lhc IDie diKn:liH 

of Ille SURiy, u from 111111: IO 1in1e fl:\'llal) 10cover1111y poAtiblc lndcnuiily Luu (indullul11, l'or llJ1:lllcr a:rWa1y, the em11 of 

lnvadpi111 ...i dcfcndln1 MY clll111 ut demand OllCI illccial un Ille -111c1cor Ill lhc '* ur RICt clainicd °" or 8jlplic8111c: \o 
JUCh claim ur dcnslall. to the pni!Abli: ii..: of its raol111Mi1. 1llc llllll.-.i.-ws •n lkputot with 1hc Sun:ly imnaklllely 11p<111 llcmand 
(md me 111eh f11111tcr dqlosiu u llYY be raiuin:d oO cab orcoll111m1l A1i-fK1aiy 10 the SUMy in 11111111K1UJ1t 1qlllll 10 sud1 ,_ 

Ot audi lncrcuc. The lfldctnnlton 11CIU10wtalac lhlU Ille faihft Of the lllJ.:rMllorS to dqlasit wilh Ille Sinty, immcd;atcly upaa 
demand. 11ac 1um Jcmlnilcal by Ille Sumy IMll QllSC lmpnblc hDlm lo thr Stnty f« whicll Ilic s-y Im nu oilcqA&e rcincJy 11t 
law, ucl thal lhc Suray thll be Clllillcd lo injllllCLive n:licf (illCludiftg specific pcrfomucc of the ubliption 10 m;akc: IUCh llcpasit 
with lhe Sulay), -i hcn:by waiw: miy cloinu or dof111ns lo the canar.uy 

te) 11ic Surely 11111y· 
Ci) hold •Y dcposi1 ma.tc lllllkr diet tcelian 'I in such fom1 u lhc Sumy 111:1y 111 iu absolllle dttcn:111111 decide, Md 1111111 have ao 

o411iption ID iaws&, at puvidc any income or ra-.m an, any !lllda dqlotM; llllll 
(Ii) in 111 mlc diraalon. 111e 111 or any pan of u:h ilcpuslt. 111111 or uiy 1ncumc earned lhclQln, 111 paymcn1, JClllcmciit or 

CUlllpRlllliS.: of II/fly ll'llkmnily Luu. 
till 11lc 11141annilCNll :lhlll be 1ml1lell 10 1hc rt1um of uy 1111Wltll runinn nf the .iq.o.it, allll 1hc income Cif 111yJ camal on Ille hlal1ncc nr 

lk dqlotk llUUlllllliftt (111m time to tllllt Cta Ille ca1a11 well i111.'0lllC Im llUI bccll uaal ill p&)'M* ur cumpnMnbc af m lndcmntly 
Loni. 11pa11 lefWliu1ion ur Ille IOl!ilily u( lk S11n.1)' Dll tho! Dollils ond tho: pclf'omwlcc by tho: 11111..'INlilon or all obNpdo111 IO Ille: 
Sun:ty under the lcrms hereof. Tiie Sun:ty'1 ulcullllion or the incumc. ir 1111y, anriblll.lblc Ill 1111)' llllCh llctio•il lluill be linal llnd 
bllldiltl on the hlllcmniiors. 

IU. S£TTU:M£NTOFCLAIMS 
(•) Tiie Stftly lhell llavc lhi: IDie risht Ill .. y, Kiiie or cumpruml.c. wilhuvt any pri« obl1ptian Ill notify the lndcmnil01'5, Ill)' c~. 

cspcmc. COii. clllim, Jcmanal. sui1,jllllplcn1 ar lilbility uNkr any Dunil(t), and any •~h p:1ymcn1. Kllli:mi:nl w comp111m1S1: thall be 
bindint upon lhc lllllcmniu1is aid inclwlal u an lnikmnity Lou. 

tb) In die CVClll of any MICk p:a)'lllCnl. 1Cltlc111Cnl ar cumpuenisc by the Sumy, 1111 ilcllliml SlalealC114 lhclQlf swum ta by may otr11:a uf 
lhc 5'nly, or Ilic -'1cr(s). canecltcd ~•I w ukr cviikncc of 111eh paymc111, ~'tllet11C111 ur ~ II.all be prima facic:: 
evidence of die fact and ._. or the ••Hily of lhc lndcmnl111n ... c1cr this As=meiu in ~ ar •uch paymcn&. !lellkmc111 ar 
c:ompnimlsc. 

(c) i. lhc nail uf ..iy payment by lhc S&nty. \he lnJan111wn •pee lhet in any llCQl\lnllftJ bctwcai 1hc Surely -1 lhc lmlc1111111Urt, the 
Surety 111111 be ankled IO chlrgc '°' U)' llld all &lltllur.ccMcnu -ic b)' II ill 1114 ..,, die --canlCnlfllalal by thiA Apmncnl. 

11. ADVANCES BY SURETY 
The Sway, .a ill tole clcctiun an&I dilcn:tian. ti 1111hurizal and cmpuwc:n:J. bul nul ubliptcd, IO 1111- ur loan kl a principal any-sy 
whidl the Sun:ty may'" Iii 111 ldwall;I: IO sui:ll priito:ipal, lllld to par.Mii« ~·Jlllyntelll of M:ll laMs ntldc lly utllcn, 111111 all lllllllCJS su 
lllnnccd °' IOlllCll, a welt• Ill l:OllS. --1 r...-a aid ~•pcnsa mo."llm.'ll by lk S1111:ay 11 ~11111 • ..:1loll 1111dl lllCA lldvanca or loea1. llllk'll 
repaid wich lcpl inlm:s'I by the prini:ipal, Jhlll be inclu.Jcd u lnila11111t)' Louc:s 

I 2. ACKHOWLEDC£1\1£NT OF CONTINUINC LIABILITY 
(a) &ch of tbc ..._...,,.. admwlaJpa &lat lhil Apa1IClll tlu!M ma:na • ru• ba: Mii effect, cvu if u:h t.dcWIAil« - hid Of 

DD lantcs" ha any illlcnst In lhc: princlpll. 111 luat °' lh11 Aisn:c- Im no1 bcm 1em11nlllal by slldl lndaMitor in .:conlucc 
llcrcwidi: withalal limldn1 lhc plClality or the fOl'CJClillS. lhc ri1hts pf lhc Slllcty ulldcr thit ABll!ClllClll and 111y other DlfCCl'llClll Wllh 
1111y or Ille llldemai111r1 lluill bt CU111ulattve. 111111 lbi& Apccmcnt llhall no1 be callllU\ICll ., havina mcracd with or been cancctlal, 
linlilal cw 111pmalal by any other lllftClllC1ll, whcihct or 11111 In 1hc Al'llC funn as lhis Atl'=mcnt. unlcn taeh other ap:ancnt it in 
writing. cspeasly lil&cl lllat llU Agn:allClll is ICnllillalcd thadly, and 11 sisnczi liy an olTicct ofthc Sun:ty 

(II) 11lc llldcntniion lhlll Clllllilluc: IO mMiA bmlllll lltldcr this AJlf-1, ~~. the accunaicc II any time or ftolft titnc IO 
time. wilh or witho111 nacice IO or knuwlc&lgc af the lnclcmni1un, and whc1hcr by prior 118fCancn1 ar ulh~rwuc. or 1111)' or 1111 or lhc 
followln1 cvc:nts. whi'h an: 111 add1&iD11 ID any odicr nshts ur the Sun:ty, ~nJ wh1d1 shall 11111 in any way rclcasc:, limit Pr abri&lp: a11y 
right or ranedy wllldl lhc 5-iy 11111y llavc Ullllcf llli• A.,_.-. Giid !Im Apccman diall l'l!IMlll 111 fllll *" uld cffca 11\cr tuell 
evtlll: 
(I) the acccptana: by die s.:ty uf SQ)'lllClll far uy Donill11· 

(ii) tbc aa:qancc ar n:b• by the Sun:ty of ulbcr asm:mcn&J ur inclcmni1y, ~'Dlllllcnl llCCllrity ot 11111r.1111ca, from any or all or 
die llldcmaiion ot fn11n othcn: 

(iii) thc 5utctYs _.10 My Kl of* priacipel: 
livt • mic ar • scalclnad clcrivlnil (111111 lhis A11n:cmi:m: 
(v) ID)' W1ivi:r, Plelllion. ar llltllaleaw.i: J&llllllal byihi: Slltl:1y IO 1111y 11rthc lnlktnni1011or10 olhcn. or 
(vi) 111f1Y(;tilurc0tn::lllllll bylhc Surctyltl JlllllUCMY n::lllalyurlllke pMZC111np11pi1111 llll)lpcnun orprupctiy. 

ll. lNFORMATIONTOB& PROVIDEUTOSURETV 
(a) Each oftllc lndcmnil111ulmll: 

(i) rarwan1 lmmc&llall!ly 1o the Sum)' every letter, olacumcnt, advice, 111&1cma11 or clllim or writ rcccilled by him from 111 an behalf 
or 111y pcnon who U$CIU or lhlClll:nt; and 

Cii) whcllcvct raflCllCll by lhc: Swciy, aicl 111 tmlrina infarma1ian mid cvidcna: ud k lllCllll:ancc of 1111)' wilncss for, ud m­
OpcntlC Wly widl ~Surety i11 lhc ilcfcna: of; 

111y cl1lm ar dcmlncl llrislna aut of or In C01111Ct:tion w1dt 1111y BolldOI 
(b) The lndcmnl1011 Jhall fillnish lo lhc 541n:ty llllly. ~ly and prumplly all such in(unNtiun as it may l"QfllO:ll f111111 ti111e: k> lime 

CIMICallina: 

) 
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CiiJ lbc 11atua or 1111y BueJcd Co111r11;tt•I. Unbondcd Can1n1e1t1) ur o1hc1 ubli11111ions uf die lndcmnicon 111111 1hc c:undi1lon or \he 
per(- dlm:of; 

(iii) !bl: piymau of oblipillll.4 UICW1'al in cuaneclllla wtlh 111y 8oal1ed COJlllXl(sl. u.bondcd CaalnlCll•I or ocllcr obliplionl; 
11111 

(iv) 111 1uch Olhcr inrom101tiD111111hc Sun:1y llDY rrum lime 1111imc rc:itunably rtq11c11. 
tel Tiie Slll'Cly 111111 my rqwscllllliw, qn& UI llllvilUI' 111111onzcd in lllfllllll by the S11n:1y n=y lll l'Qlollalllc licnct llDd .,i.ccs 111111 fnim 

time to linlc, oami.. Mil copy die boul;s, ricunk 81111 &Q;-uf thc lnclcmnlWC'L 
(di Any or lhc llllkllwlilon wllu en: indivitluals shAll noti(y die Surety ur any clwlac in their n:spcctivc nwiall cimuns&111CCJ whdl 

mlaht alfscs llleir oWllCllhi(t or 111y as~is or conrcr aa their rispccliwc !lpllll!d any rishl. ac1111I or po1m111I, 10 claim 111 lnlcn:sl io 
any ofchcir rapml11c aucu. 

{cl Eadl of'lhc ~ mll llOlify lhc SllRfY immcdialdy or any cNntC In"" UJ IU - · 
tO Ir •Y or 1lu: lndcnmitua lllClllCS. 11malpn1111:1, c11111Ulidalcs, "'"'Jllfttt&."1. funN 11 panncnhip ur juins whh. ur sells. !Qnlfcn 0t 

lcna all or nbstinlially 111of11'111nder111ltl11t1o plOfleft)' tllld U!ICU lo, ony olhcr pcnon, !inn, COIJIOllltio11, IMi. putnmhip or wnllft 

(hadn.l\cr Cllllccl a ~ 81111. w~ aa llldc1111itor is a panncnllici. if lllcn: is 111)' chan•c In the COl\lltlllliclll or the 
putncnhip. lnc:ludin11 Cbus no1 limi1Cd w) 1hc dalh, tc1imnca1, ur ..Wiuun uf 1 member t>t 1ncmbcn, ur sub~I inc.urpor1llon (Ille 
panncnhlp so n:allltll1111Cd or lnCDJpCM:llCd bc1n111ncludcd 111 lhc: 1cr111 "SllCCCUllt·). &heft 

Ci) _.. llMlcmnisor ... irnmcdi111cly lllllil)t c:idl or die atllcr lndclnnlkini 111111 - Swcty. Mil 
Iii) wllclhcr or Ila\ IUdl noliCC is 1iv..'ll, lhl1 Apa:mcnl 1h:ill <.-s1Cnd 111111 ~PfllY lu 1111)' Bonds lhcRloforc issued (10 lhc c11en1 thia1 

mcll Bond. qlllc lo Ille $4u:casm) llld any Bondi lhcrcaner 1uual 1n respect orlhc ~u pnncipel. 

'"· CONSENTTOCHANCE.S 
11lc Surety Is lllllhoriicd lad cmf1Uwm.I. wilhu111111111.:z 111 ur ltnu111l~1c urlllc lndcmnllunt. lllllki! 11.lin• ll<lfdly capn:t•ly waivcil. 
(•) IO cona:& 1111)' mislaka hcn:in or in any Bun&l(1); 
Cb) IO IUl:nl or n:ID: 111 wcnl IO any clllnec wll1uucVl:I' i11 :Ill)' Oand(s). any OcllllL:d CollllllCl(s) llllll ay Blllldint facilily, illc:l11dilll 

blll lllJI llmkc:d IO M)' chlnlc in lhc 1lnw fot cite "'"'plction ur any Buwilcll CulllnKl(sl ucl fur paymcnb ur adv1J1CCS lllcn:unclcr 
IUldlat" in lhc p:ncnal condiliuns. plans Of spcc:ilia11icllu which ac.:ompany aid l.lollllal l:'onlrDl.'ltl) 1nd &11)' inm:uc: or dccll:Uc in lhc 
lilah or any Bondin11 Facili1y. and 

(cl to _, Ill or lo lake 1111)' ~ or cauiJl*MlllS, to Cll«\ICc or c:ottscttl IO die occutioll o( uy con&inuiiliDlll. calallionl.. 
l'alCWlllr, cnlllrpnclllJ. modirallons. chlllgc: or 1ha111ians uf IP)' Rondl1I ur Bundtflll F.al11y or Bundina F111:ili1ics, lllld IO oa;uac 
111y lllbslilllle or lllbtlinitn lhcn:fur, w11h lhc amc or JilTcn:nl 'unoti1iuns, pruvi1iuns Dnd ubhP"S and w1lh lhc um.: or IDiJCr or 
smaller pcnalllcs; 

-i lhc ~shall rmiein bound llftder !he lCmll hmuf cvet1 dtwyll any ~It C'UITU1ii111.1sSC111 ur rcr-a by die Scuay dues ow inuy 

wbswldllly incrmo: lhc liabilil)' ur.ic lnclcmn11etn. 

15. CONTRACT ASSETS 
(•) The l~rs llhal ullcalll, nulin&ain ud lllaltc available Dll i:..,11p11eM 111111 Malcnal 111111 Olhc:r C1111ux1 Ascts ncccdMY (of die 

rcrfonnlllCC or all Bonclal Connell•) lllld Unbunda! Conu.ts. 
(b) Each or Ille lndaMi1an hadly auip1 llltl vansfcrs 111lhcSiAity,11~'Oii.tier.ai. 10 SCtlltC lhc obl1pli11M hcn:ln of Ille lnJcmnitors 

11111 all olllct in&ldMcUcss or liabilitio:s ur •he h1dc:ianilun IO Ill.: !Man.'ly. whdhct hcn:lul'1111: or ltt:n:llL:r --=1. all the rillll. 1111c and 
iNcrcsl or Ille llMlcmnilon m _, w· 
Ci) every: 

(A) Conlnet, wh&.1hcr a Bandai Conlr.M:I or 111 Unbondal Con1n11:1, 1111d who.1hcr or llOI any Evcn1 or o.:roull hu occurral 
with n:pn1 111 111y "' 111e 1no1cnini1U11 111 ~· ur '*11 Cull!Q.1. md11Jiftil •• rwiillcd patcnl..,es. bulJllKU. 
propaa ~ Jd"cmd pcaymcnu. camnl 111011Cys. t~IOll for c•n wolk, ptol*lll or dlmasi: claims, 
illSWllMC puliei~ 111111 elDirns lhcn:unlkr, lllld all ulhtt runds and prupc11ics whllCYCt twhclhc:r ur nae similar 1o du: 
(oiqoia1l llw may be dllC or become tlllc uaalcr ;uiy Connc11~1 or d11111111y be due. ba:aaic d11e, awudal or allowol 
ia _.ion wMll ur Ulldcr c1rcurn11111Ca puw11111 oue uf any C'lllllnKl(I) ur wul1c llunc dlcmMdcr. 

(8) subconlrxt le! or Iha! may be let m cunnutlOll clim:wMh. 
CCI claim which die llldcmnilol'll may h:iwe or acqui~ 11pinsl 11111 rcno11 (unlilhi111 or apin11 lo fumUh 111y labour. 

Equipmclll llld M•lerial or Olhcr CunlnlCt ASldl in eu1ino:11un wilh any such Conuwcl ur 1111y 11ch 111bcua1111a; 11111 
(D) bond sccurilla Ill)' S1ICll sutleu!ilr.la or claim: 

ClO all Conlracl ~ 11111 Malcrial; 
(ill) all El(11ip111C111 lllld Material: 111d 
(IY) all Olhcr C1111irx1 AllCll. 

(c) SllCh asipllllCSI lllalJ be dfcaive U o(llil: &blc of UCCOI- U Jdt..cry ot 
(I) lhis AlfCClllClll, as lo ach DunJcd C11111rac1 cumcd by any Oun1141) hcrctufun: isS&ICd (bul nud11na hcmn lhaJI limi1 Ille 

Sun:!)"• ri&111111 cl1im llndeuny priot 1aipmcn1J 1111d u 10 ~ny tln~d Cun1rx1 in run:c 11 -h ilal4. 
(II) acb Bond h~ luucd, 1.• 1» <*h Oatta1011 Clllll1lll:1 1.'0Wrcd by •111.lt Uuad; ur 
(iii) m:h Unbolldcd C-.cl ClllClal i.tu al\cr Ille date hacuf, 111 w -h Unhundctl ClllWKI. 

(di 11lc: Sun:ly INll tab pnia:cdl111110 e11fon:c 1&1eh •i111111Cn1 only 1111hc even I l•n ~Emu of Dcf111l1'") of: 
(i) 1111)' bll:lll:b or allcp bn::xh of Ill)' or the '°"CIUlnls anJ lllft:CmCtlll hcR:'a ~Olllalaal. DI of llll)' lcllSl Cit i:oncJWoa or 811)' 

Bolllllns Facilily. or 
Cill 811)' lbaadonmclll. fOrfcilurc ur lm::M;h ot. ur f;Mlurc. n:fmal Ill' um ilily IU pcrfunn. MY Donila1 Conll'lld CK llll)' IWHlily •ndcr 

1B1t11d;ur 
CHI) 111y raJlurc. n:l\&W or inlbllil)' ur a princ:ipal 111 p;iy bills or oihcr •nddllcdncu incunm 1n. or in conncc1u111 willl. lhc 
~ ur .. ,. BonJcd c~1ur\ldbondalc-1. ur 

civ) M)' auipmSlll by .y of lhc llldallnilors ror Ilic bcncf11 vr cmlltur.I, or Ille llpllOinlmcnl. ur 111y applic.iion for lbc 
appolnuncni. or 1 n:a:i\ll:J or lnHlcc: for any ur dtc lntlcmni1ors. whclhcr inllllvcni ur no1, or 

(11) 111y ~"I or lhc aetCUC ohny ri1h1 which llcpma any ordic lllllc!MilDl'I or lhc use or 11ny of Ille Cancnict E.quipJllClll 
and Malcrlal or uy Other COl'llrXI Alldl; or 

cv.) any chM;c ar 111ra1 or cllPF m -chlnictcr, idcn1i1y, M!Uol, 11111111picn1, bcnclicial uwncrship ur cxh~ or 11 princip1I; 
or 
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(viii uiy 111hct CIC<lllftllCC. coll&liliun 111 cimn•t:wc (whclllct llf 11111 similar 111 a.y ar 1bc fon:Jlllallll which in die 40lc Cl(liaion Ill 
the s.iay-y csposc Che~ .., hns, eot1 ut eapcatc. 

IC) Each orlhc: lndcmnllOfll hcrdly aulhuri:a aNI i:mpowcn Lhc Sun:1y. if .:111 Even! 11fDcfaul& Im occum:al 1111d it can1inlling. 1a: 
(i) U. ill '°le diAcRlion. lake poua'loa of lhc work IUldct 1111y Bonded conuu1 and la -.rci.: llldl Cllllllllld. Dr C111M Ille -c 

tG lie COlllPlclcd. or IO COllKal IO 1hc CllnlJllcliaa 1hcmlt, and 111 l&kc uy uillct Kl ion which lhc 5wcty 11111y dcctn WUPrimc 
la ablain lhc: disclwac of lhc Sun:1y·s ublip1ians 11 Slll'CIY includin .. b111 11111 limi1i::d Ill. a 111Dncllty scnlc:mc:nc wilh die 
ablia«. Ind 111 lonc:s, dlugd. npcotct lUMl ca111 illturml by lhc Surely in ID d11ln11 shall be illdudcd 111 llldc11111ily Lossa; 

(Ii) aCCUIC ill 11lc lllmC a( Ill)' llidcmailUf In)' Mwrv- deemed -..awy or dcainlilc by Ille Slimy IO pnwidc lbsaluLe title la 
Ille Slln:ly of Illy fllftdl. pcupcny llld ripu 111 :in: llcRby 11s11ncd. tr:msfcmd ar 'onVC)'Cll. lllld the: Su.n:ty 11111 such pcnan(sl 
m Ille Sun:ry mD)' dClipale far tliit ~ 11n: IM:Rb)l alllllorizal 111 lakc inimcd111c ~'ICl\&11n of 1w:ll fundl, property .. d 
rithll: 

(lil) inllnlCt any obliacct•l .. i1cr 1111y 9unds, MCllar •Y owners under any UnbiMlllcd Can1rac11, io wilht!old lbnhcr f18ymctll IO any 
lmlcmnilutor Cllhcr pcn1111 wflll is a party let lhc rck.-valll Cun1nro.1(11: 

(iv) callccl .,, cheq11e, draA, ~· or allier l1111n1111Cftt made or i•lllCll in paymcn1 of any rnollieii Ihle an any Bandai 
CDCllllCl(1J: -S 

(v) mdonc in lhc - ah11lndcmnieor111 fll)ll:C and IO Qlll 11111 llUl:h imtnimcnL• anJ 1a felilin or disburse lhc prDl.'Ceds lhcn:or. 

16. TRUST FUNDS 
(•) Eech lndcmllilUf llllJftS and hcrcbycxpn:uly dcdllrcs lhat all liPll!s dllC or Ill bccullSC d•c under 1111y 8unde&I Cun1n1e1, 11rc. wbclhcr in 

lhc poacalolloflhc hldc111llilar ar-lhcr. lnla l\.illdl rurlhc bcncfll otalld paysnctlC ... all P.,'l'SOlll IO wllanl b: hldc!Milar incun, Ill 
lbc ~or ..ii 8allllal CClnUSt. ablipiati• rar which Ike Sutcty would lie liable •nclcr •uch Bond. I r1hc S1111:1y 1UUG1CS or 
dbclluaes any~ ablip1ian, ii shall be e111i1lcd la uscn 1hc claim ufsuc:h pcrsun 111 lhc tlllSI funds. 

lb) Eech lntlannilDr shall, upon demand lly lhc Surety end in i111planc1111tlun ur uy llUSI hcn:by cra1ed, urcn an 11:COun1 or accounts 
whll I b.tnk or similar lkpclsillll)' cll:silJMlcd by 11M: lndcmnilar and appniv.:d by th.: SuR.1)', which occuunl ur llCCOWllS shall bo: 
dalpa1al a• t111111occa.11 or aox._111 tUrlhcUcpcnilufu:h INjj flllllk. :11111 Ahal! &lqluoil lhcn..,n an -ic:s n:cdvcd ~ 111 
Slid Im.led c-1 or c»atn&."IS. Widlllr.rwals from suo:h Dl.'WUllll lhall be by clti:qUC Of similar inslrumo:nt llipcd by lhc 
lndcmniklr and cuunicniancd by• rqm:sci11a1ivc urlhc Surety. 

(cl SaMl 111111 or ln&llS shall ~ CM11 die payment by 1hc lndamitor ar all lhc -iraiu:al ablipticia1 far Ille pa)llQCtlt of which 1llc 
ll\ISlar h\lslJarc hcRby clCllCll ar11p11n lhc aplnllionuf1wcnt)' years r111m lhc dale llcrcuf. whichever shall fi111 PCet1r. 

17. POWEROFA1TURNtV 
Exll afllle lndcmiii11111 hadly incwcilbly nutninata. CU11Sti1111a, tppllilllt mid desipta Ille s.rcty, utllD)' pmanor pmons ~ 
by lhc Sucly, m ii. oaamcy k> occisc oil orill righll a11il'ICll.11:u11ri:nW 11r set uv..T IU lhc Su~"t)' by lhit AIJIQ:mcnl, and 111111 n111111: tu 
caccuic ad dclivcrtllld wicllout llmitin1the111=ncnality 11fll1e l'""-oin" Ill cumple1e 11ny blank., 11111 lmcrl iblcs illl any and 111 addidt111:1I ur 
Dlhcr asiplll'ICllll, ~ ar daclllllCllCI dcallCd MCCUllfY ur ~by 1lic Surety· 
(1) 1u VCSl in lhc Sumy 11r ill daipca Dbt&lluic 1i1lc 1CI any and all m11111ct. JllVPCft)' 11nd ri11l111 hcn:liy :wiped; 11111 
tbl 10 provide die pnilccliam 81111riafiisID1hc Sun:ly canlcmf'laled by .ii the pnavilioiu ham( 
&di afllle lndcmnilOn hcftbynprculy dcclora tllll 1udl f111WCrof .-ncy 1My be mrti1Cd durina 811)' ~ lqll iaapciry Dft 

the: '*' or llaCb lndclmllar. 

111. DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION 
Thc~COlllCllllD: 
(I) lhc llCl'Vice hcn:af 1111111)' lime upun Ill)' pcrtun, firm ur ~liun (bul nu1hin11 •1n 1hall llc ~'Clnflrual m pmnilling lhc: S11n:ty 10 

lllkc cnfon:cmcnl praca:'1lnp conuary 10 subpm8fllllh •~).and 
(b) die iqiaqllon ~ (DI' of a llutia: or °"1cr u1s1nuncnt 1n n::spcct hcrcul) lllldcr any llChcnlc: ur syslelll ur rqistn&ion for Dll)' 

flCllPDllL 

19. ACTIOl'IS TO ENFORCE THIS AGREEMENT 
I•) 11'1 Ille cvGll or 11111 claim or danand bcin1 made by lhc Surety .pu..e the llldcmailOl'll. whclhcs or not pnic.ccdinp bavc been 

conunmced 1pl1111 one or mon: uflhc lnalcrmitun.1hc Sumy is licrclly c•p1e11ly mnhunzal 111: 
(i) briftl tq-.llC 1111110111lu1Ap:cmcnl11 esuta ufc- accnic ;apntl miy ut :a:! of die~ mil die brinp111af1 

Siik or die RQl'iCrY uf ,iuds-al ui- M)' - u( llCllUll mJI llUl prejudice Q01 Im the britlpl Uf u111cr sWll ~ other 
ClllDCS or raclion, whcll11:1' lhcn:laf~ or lhcrcaftcr llrisina: and 

(II) 1e11lc or cornpnimlsc '"' ci.1111 bacd 11pan 1liil AplllCllC wilh any one or - or die hldcmahars iMiYi4Dllly wi"*a 
n:ra-c io Ille olhcn. ud -it ~llcMcnl or~ shall llOI •ITcct die Uebilhy or any of Ille 1a1 or die llldannitan. 
lllld acb aflht lllllcmnilan hcrdiy expressly waive11hc rial11 w be dni:hat)cd Ollll ldasN b)' .-aflhc n:lasc arDRC or 
- or lhc 04hcr lllllcmnil11t1, and ca_, 1a uy Kltlcmau or cumpo1i1ion 1ha1 1111y hcn:ancr be IUdc. 

(b) Aoy ldllctllall DI' aarcc- cancludal willl 1111 lallannilllt ro•ow-.; a \:!aim :apiml Wnl by die S11n:1y -= lllill Api:clllall :dlall 
nat C1Cllc I llCW lllfMllGll nur n1inpish the lndcmni1UC'I ublipti1111111ndcr this Apccmcnl, 111d this Ap!ClllClll shall rc1111ln 111 ruJI 
fon:e lftd clfc:cl in CUC: or default on die lllfl 11( 1n lndcmn1tor Ill f11llil tbc tcrrnl of IUl:h Klllcmclll Of 11rccmc:N with the SUIC1y 

20. COSTS AND INTEllEST 
(11) In lhc cvcnl lhc Surety cummcnca ptU(Cedinp kl cnfCHL-.: 1hc: l•nnt hcn:or, Ilic SIR!y thall be cnlillcd lu m:avcr (bul wi1hau1 

duplia&lan) its sallciw and -n client Qltll (on • full illdcnln11y .... ,. jUdicill ad calrll-judic:i.t C8S&S and die ra::s _. 
di~ orhs IOllcilOfll IUld c:OMllld iii CUl1llCCllan with Sllch pn>eml1n11. 

<b> Any ud all ll!IDllllll whkh the Sun:1y is cntidal 111 he paill unller this A11ra:mcnt shall bc:lr l111crcs1 11 D nae uf l 11% per )'Qr, 
calculolcd manlhly r111111 lhc !bu ctn which llcnulld (ur paymcm lhc~flll' I~ llllldc (llf dccmcJ IO have ~ lllllllc) 10 lhc llacc of 
~ lhc Sum)'• claim rar wch illlClal sllall not lllCfF in uy .)llllamcftl apma •Y llf die hickmt1l1Dn, 41111 oay sud! judimcM 
nll lar illlCll.'IC Ill Slldi l:lllC un1il paymcn1. 



-TRISURA'. 
ZI. \VAIVEROFNOTICEANDOTllER AIClrl'S 

S.yAddaiclcCClllR 
JJl Day SllWI, Suilc 16111, llCla 22 

Tuninlll.ON M5H lie! 
1'1Minc:(.tl6) ll.t·U55 

Fu (4111)214"15'17 

(a) E&fl of t1ic t..ic-ilon hadly waivcs 1111ticc uC' die nCQlliult af miy RLNIJ -.I bf 1111y uct. r..,, ut infonn:iiilln i:unccmlni; 011 al1«1illtJ 
tlic rishts or habtlilecs or lhc Surety cw Ille nafl1' 11r lm1li11c:s 11r111c lndcmn1111n. 1no;ludm1 wuhoul limts:itllll'l lhc n:lcisc or any o1hcr 
Jnalc1D11iror, die llllhoiun haclo ur any :iildmunal lnllcmni10r, llllll any clian11c 111 1llc laml ur any Bunllin1 F111:ili1y 

lb) l1lc lndeianiton waive •he bclld'tC or divisiall bt1wccr11bclnschu -i ur .Jiscus1ioft of any principal. 

21. SUBDRDINA TION OF INDEMNITORS 
None or lhc llldanailOIS s .. 11 cnron:caay cipls ur eot11ribl!Uon ur intlcmntey apnsc any bMlctnnilor or iU JllVllUIY Md undcnalcma uftlil 
Aldl lllllclMilOl'I abli&MioM to Ille Sllltl)' 1llldcr diis Aarcc1ne111 hm: been lllisncd ill !VII. 

ll. EXCLUSION OF LIABILITY 
...,_or lhc lcldcllinikws tllall llavc /l/ll)' cllliln apietl tl11: S-ty. fur llldc1n1111y "'111hcrwisc, ill n:spat ur 1111)' olJcecd mat or 0111illion Oii 

llu: put of the Slll'Cly In iuiima or f1ilin1 tu iauc 1111y Bunil 

24. DISCHARGE FROM SURETYSHIP 
t•I 11lc lndcmnilOIS lhlll, ll a11y 1icllc •!'Oii lhc n:qucai of lhc Sun:1y, 11rocun: lhc dllt:lwJC or lhc Sun:ty riom any Dollll and rnim all 

llabillly by,_ lhcn;a[ 
lb) The Surety may, al •Y lime, 1;11te .. 11 Xllon as M ilccms llCCCaAI)' at rinipcr lo oblam 111 n:l=c fra1111111y :anJ .. liability~ any 

8oad. 

25. TERMINATION 
(•) All ladamll« mey 1lvc dMny (30) da)"' prior wrillm nocice ot laminae ion IO lhc Swcty by rc1if.lcn:d !1'211 lo the SUttiy al its head 

omcc. 1pCCifyi111 lk clfcaivc ilalC ur ndl laminaliun. Nu such notice ol' 1crm1nutu11 1hall bt limned 1o have bccll Redvcil by the 
Sllmy, lllld -h lhiny (lOJ Illy p.'fioil 111;111 not cumm.:tll.l:, 1111lcu and 11111il such 11111ia: 11 11CtuaHy ddivcml to Ille Sun:ly and tbc: 
s.nty Ila 1JWC11 a wriliai ~~nt af llldl ddomy Any-h 11<11k:I: t!WI nuc aper.Mc IO .-lify. bar, limn. alTcct, inlpalr or 
Jbchersc lhe liability or the lllllcnlllilaf(1).., tcnninMinv or 1he rcm111nin1 lll4lcmn1wn t1C .ny), upun Of by rason .. r 1111y allll all sch 
8ollds CllCClllc:d: 
Cil bc:Catt •lie clfo.1iw: &lalc ar tcnlliNlion. Of 

(ii) C'llCClllCd af\cr lhll cfTcdiVC date 11r1cm111111lion 
IAI upon Iha awanl or 1 ain1r.ic1 on • btd. p~ or ccn&lcr w11h n:spa.c 111 whic:ll lhc Sumy llU ca«ulcll a bMI bond, 

apwlllCllt to bond (11r-Slll'Cty'1 '°"ICIMl at lllmil.r-'cnaltinll pricit IO 111(11 dM:; Ill' 
tDt which 1111: Sun:ty hu "'-me 11bl1lloJICll. rinur 111 wi;h cbk, 111 Cll4'Clllc:. 

Cb) Such • nodcc aflaminaaion llhall apcnlC aaly with ~1 to lhc hlllcmn11a"s) 11ivln1 it. Thil A1r=nait sllall ranain in fllll fon:c 
lllMI ctrccc. wldl rapca io 1M Cllhcr llldcinnitult•I. wilhuu1 ollliplion rut lbc Surely iu 1111liry .ch ulllcttsl ur lhc icnnlaalaD by -
""man: of lhc lnclc-iiors. 

(C) 11111111 bclhc ~bUilyu(lllc lcnllinatinf ptllt)' la accn;iln lhccanra:l llCllftu fur lhc lim£ bcin1 ur1hc bail office of1hc S41n!sy. 
Such addn:u h llfWll)'S a 1N1Ua uf' pMblic rQ.'Utd. T1ic had ull"ICI! utlhc SM1y is 11uw 111 &.y Allclaidc Ccnwc. lll 8"y Snm, Siluc 
1610, Baa 22 T-1u ON. MSH lR:! 

l6. ADDmONAL IND£MNITORS 
Ally~ Ill&)', by Cllnlplclina, csca11i111 AMI ddiwrills io 1111: Sun:ly an A&lhdian 111 lhc form -.:cl 111 diis Aam:mcnt, bccanic b01lnd 
111111 lndannltor hcmnlcr IS if nch pcnan hail been ~n uriainal 1ip1ory hcn:111 

l7. DEMANDS BY SURETY 
Arty dcmallll by lhc Sift!)' 1111 llllY of lhc lndcmftilll1ll m:i)' be ll:lncl llel1YCrcll, lcla:uptcd. lelcaccl cw scnl by rqislctal miiil Ill tuch p:u\)' al 
the acldrcu shown above, or ta such Olbcradiln:s1assWI ~)I ~Y li.awnutificd 111 thc Sun:ty i11wri1mc(i11eluili1111uyaildrn.lhown1111111 
Adhc:sioll). ud lllall be cvncllit1vdy dl:cmal 111 lla\IC bee• rca:M:&l: 
(•) lfbml&I ddivcml, tdccopial orldcaal: 

(I) on Ille dale or dcliYCl)l llf llmllminiun. ir priur 10 .-:ou p m. (lucul 11mc) 011 a ilay llllhcr 1han • Sllhlllllly) on which chancrcil 
.U la Ille municipollty llamc:d in~ addn:l1 an:~ for....._ durin1 llllllUI businctl hours l• -0usillca oay·1: or 

(ii• c*rwitc, 1111 lbc llQl l'ollowilll Dalecu Doy; or 
(b) If mailed, 1111 lhc ICQllltJ Basinm Day 1Rcr mailhia. 

?I. COVERNINC LAW AND.IURISDICTIUN 
This Apccrac111 i1111Dde llllilcr, 111111 shill\ be: inlelprClcll in accunlancc wilh, die lawt uftllc J11Uvincc lllllllCd an lhe lint paac hamr and lhc 
llw1 DfeaNda appllcablc i111111:h pcovincc:; cadl orchc lndc:mnilon hc:rcbycspn:ssly t11bmi11 i. lhc llClll•Clclnlvcjllrisdicllonoflllc C-u 
or mck JWIWiacc. 

29. SEVERABILITY 
tray piavitlon urpra1'isicMll bcnurare bcW w bc: will .--"""8blclllllktllli! bin IPvcnWis iu ~ urcaror-, lllis 
A.-ncnt lhall llOI be vvul or •~le lhcrchy bill shall aintinuc in cll'a1111111 be: c11ron.'Cd as thuuafl such rirovnlan or rnmsi11111 
wcn: omillCd. 

JO. ENUREMENT 
nil Apmllml it binilin1juin1ly anti ICYCr.llly upoo lhc lnilcmnilurs. their hcin. CHL'UIUft. r-nal lqln:scntlllivcs. !llk.'-"r111111'1 •nil -i11ns. 
This A.-m Illa.II cHrc ta ancl bcnclil any succcaur w Ille S.rcty (mcllldilla: w1ill4tu1 limuation •Y ricnun 111 wllmli lbc SllR:ty 11111y sn 
fllllln: aatfcr all or sry subslDnalal pan o/ ill bulincu assets). 

31. RICllTS AND REMEDIES OF SURETY 
~ riala. f1Dwa1 11111 mni:Jics 11Tllllk:J la die ~by Ille icmn llcRaf mey 11111 be waived or muilirial llllllly-' no wrincii dianae or 
llllllllRadot1 shllt be 0:1Tce1ivc u111il 1lpcd by 1111 a.lhorizcil officer of lhc Sun:1y. Nu ~Jl.'111 ur bnikCJ is 11111hurizcd la si1n 1ny such r:hanac 
or modifaaian on bc:halr ol Ille Suney. All riahis an&I rsmcdia or the Sumy under lht• Aam:rncnt shall be cumulalvc, arid the nc~I-= of 
or faihn ta C'llcrcitc any ript ar n:mcily 111 uy lime sfllll 11111 be ID ckdiun ~r mncdy ur 1 wuvcr vi 1ay ulhcr righl ar rancdy or ol lhc 
N111C ript or rancdy u al anJ olllct time. 1llc S11n:1y 11 llOI ~uin:d 111 cllhDusl 111 mrialia or riahu epiftl& the firiRCipa! or lo await razipl 
o( 1111)' dividends rnim dtc lcpl tq!RSCll .. liVCS of die principal bcfon: 11S11cn1n1 th ri9h11 Uft41Ct' this Apccmml DpilUC Ille lnclcmnilOIS, ancl 

6 
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may aucrt llud1 rillhlt apiiuc one or man: 11rthc lndcmniL11" wilhOUl aucn111y 1Jicm aljlllml all 11t utll(I' lallcmnl'°"- The riyhl3, powl:Q and 
remedies confaml upon lhc Surely by lhis A~cmcn1 ore 1n 111hlhlun 111 1111y u1hcr "lP'" Ille Suray may hM\'C ur l!Qlllln: usainst lhc 
lndcmniiors or olhcn, whdhcr an~cn1 by dec ICrms uhny Ulhcr 11pa:mcnt, by ~lion of law ot lllhcrw1sc. 

Jl, CHOICE OF LANGUAGE 
The p:inlcs hcrao have l'CqUCllCd 1hal lhc pn:scn1 Ap1:cmcn1 be dr.!Ac:d In •he Enalish l.1np:iac. Les p;inics ~· prCsc:nics 0111 rUiuis quc II 
psitauc co1ca1e sail rcdi1« llaAs l<1 llllpc an1l4"4:. 

l3. ENTIRE AGREEMEHT 
EACH OF THE INDEMNITORS REPRESENTS TO THE SUREN THAT SUCH INDEMNITOR HAS CAllEFULLV READ THE 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND THAT THERE ARE NO OTilER AOREEMENT!I OR UNDERSTANDINGS WHICH IN ANY WAY 
LESSEN OR MODIFY THE OBLIOA TIONS SET FORTH HEREIN. 

34. CONSENT TO SURET\''S OBTAINING INFORMATION 
Each orlhe lndcmnilOrs: 
(•) IUlhoriza Ille Slln:1y IO obw11 1111y c:mli1 or Oilier inron!Qlion conccming lhc 11R'airs lllld apcnllan• o( each o( Ille lndcmnilors 

(illcludina .,y •pcnunal infur111111ion·, as dcfincll by Ille l'm111111l luji,..,1111M Pmittti1H1 .nu/ El«lmflil: Dun.1.,n11 Art (Co!lllllA) 
oall olhcr 1pplicblc ~I 1nf~ion law..) Mii uy lnlllXll11n bct111m1 ur among :iny of lhc llllkmni111rs rn.m uy bllnb. 
dqlosilarid, aurdic:a, 11bh11ccs ar ah: Bondi, 111111erialmcn, IUpftly ""-, cn:di1 n:poning llj!CllCict. brolccni ar olhcr pcnan1 
(collcctlvcly, ""Sawccs"): 

(b) Clpn:uly ialrltUCts .it such 5ouRc:s to (umith such ln(uonuliun 1'> Ilic SURiy (1111d fur cn:aicr a:suin1y. JllSlnlC" 1111y broltCl(t) co 
ldcac la lhc S-y uy infonna1ion rclati111110 1111y Boncl(aJ or Bondin1 F~hlyJ, 111d 

(c) -aa ID ah: colt=icNl. usc -i dl.sclus11rc by 1hc Sure1y or any pciwnal infunn111U11 abo111 slldl lnolcmnitot rar lhc JMllllOSCS uflhc 
cm:rin1 into, admini1tra1lun :ind i.:nfom:m..'111 ufllli1A~'ftllllld111y Uoftd(11 

IN WlnlESS WK£REOF lhc lllllcmnilan haw.: ucc111cd one! dclivcn:d 1lll!IC pn:scnu 111hcir rcsp.:c1ivc do:dt, ac:b wtlO ls an individ11al 
havlna hc:n:unto"' hit or her hanll (111el hlvi11a. by 111 tl111lna. allapca.l lhc word rsc:at") ti.:n:an at hit"' lier pc:noMI 11:111, alld cxll wflicll 
it• pmueershlp.jolnt vcncurc. 1""4. airpanliUtl ur uni~ UllUCi:itiun hlvin11caU!l:d1hia At111:CJ11Cnl to be duly CJCCcUral by Its duly 
IUlhari:ral n:pfC$C11Wlvc or n:prcscn111ivcs, 111 aflbc liolc thown on the lini pose b~f. whidl ebic coi:h oflhc lnlictMllors hcftby alllnns 
u the ctrcctlve dllc of1hi1 Apttmcnt, n:pnllca 11f1hc Ible 1111 which such lndcm11i1ur in lxl caccutal Ibis AllftCmcnt. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED. 

WitncsJ 

\2'\=-~~~) 
e, !>gT Stt-oT\.I 

Print1111me 

"Z2~"S L-o..bc. SL,~ gt~ 
Addras orWlcnas 

-roro"'~ 
Ciiy, Pas&al Code 

~ 4b"6 o:S:S'7 
Phone number 

7 

IScall 

--"'t~~~c:-'-.&.::l~IZ!!~--:---- (SiJtnolurt) 
Pnru. •mt· t;: llt., . \ °Y~ 
Pnn1 T11lc· ~rt..'>·~ 
I h:ivc 1hc 11111hari1y Ill bintl the corponlion 

161 Row Rldt:e Dr 

Address ur Corror:auon 
CKllranc. Albcn1 T..C I V7 

Ci1y, l'ln111I Clltlc 
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Pmonal lndctmliion Sisn Hcn:undcr 

1 wilnm 

B'-~~IUtr) 

Prin&INllllC 

~,SS Lo.be ~1>4. 81 .~ 
Aildn:u orWi1ncss 

.-.. CoJ;?eNYro MS""3~ 
Ciiy, Pustal Code 

J±!fu C§..S':> O'SS 7 
Phone number 

Wilnc:u 

~ "(Signuturv) 

Print umc: 

:2.2.~ Lo. bs, ~l-..oN:t BJ .~ · 
Address of Wi1ncss 

l'C5'"ro "\.ro 
Ci1y, Poml Coile 

( cµ(, ) 4--5~ 0 SS7 
Pbonc number 

.,.,,,, ,....._ 

161 Bow Rldcc Dr 

' Aildn:ss uf l11Jcm11i10r 

CKhraac. Al!lcna T'C IV7 

Phunc number 

·151?: e1 -1"} 

ICM31 Clcuaw Dr 

AJ&lrcn u( ln&lcn1ni1or 

O.y Adcbidc Ccncre 
lll Dq Slrcct. SuilC 1610. Den ll 

T-.to, ON MSH 2R1 
l'hane; 1416) 214-2SSS 

fDI 1'41flll14-'J.W1 

Della, Brllllh Columbia V<tC GA6 

C1iy, Postal Cllllc 

~ ,....,.,.,.__...,,,.. ..,,....,,.#ttn_ • .,., ... ...,...._ ..t "*'...._,. .................. ,./Wl_...._,.,~"1/krn.<l//W....,..........,• • .-C'•Dlttf ..... ....... 
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*""-.............. , ... - . 
l/tC ... lrtfWd/W•,_pl,•dwl ... •lfHlt••·..._...IMol.,..---1.,.f,_,.lw,...,,,, ..... n..a--.Ad~.tdt...,_ 
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This is EXHIBIT "B" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Oetsky, sworn before me this l 2"""' 
day of A~g\J 2022. 



Bond No. MCS1150074 (the"Bond") 
Bond Amount $402,000.00 (the "Bond Amount') 

Perfonnance Bond 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC as Principal (the "Prlnclpar) and Trlaura Guarantee Insurance 
Company a corporation created and existing under the laws of Canada and duly authorized to transact the business 
or Suretyshlp In Canada as Surety (the •surety") aro held end 11nnly bound unto PCL ConstrucUon Management 
Inc. as ObUgee (the "Obllgee') In the amount of Four Hundred Sixty-Two Thousand And 00/100 Dollars 
($4112,000.00) lawful money of Canada for the payment of which sum the Principal and 1he Surety bind themselves, 
their hells, axecutons, administrators, IUCC89SOl'8 and asa'lgns, Jolnl!y and severaly. 

WHEREAS, the Principal entered Into 11 written contract (the 'Contrect") with the Obllgee, dated this 1st day of June, 
In the year 2019 for INSTALLATION OF STRUCTURAL STEEL FOR 9TH AVENUE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT, 
CALGARY ALBERTA. 

The condltlon or this obllgallon Is such that If !he Principal shall prompUy and fallhfuUy perfonn Iha Contract !hen this 
obligation •hall be null and void; olhorwlse II shall remain In full force and effecl 

I - Pre-Demand Conference 

Prior to 11 Demand (as defined In Sedlon II 3) below) under ttils Bond, the ObJgee may notify the Surety and the 
Principal In writing that It Is considering declaring the Principal to be In default under the Contract and requHt a pre­
demend conference (Iha "Pre-Demand Conference"). Upon receipt of such request the Su111ty and Principal shall 
participate In a Pre-Demand Conference meeting or telephone conference call, on a without prejudice basis, with the 
Obllgee which shall be arranged by the Surety and held at a mutualy agreeable time and place not later than ifteen 
(15) calendar days after receipt of such nollce, unless olhBIWlse mutually agreed to by each of the Obligee, Surety 
and Principal. 

The purpose of the f>re.Demand Conference Is to allow ltle Obllgee to express Its concems about 1ha Prlndpars 
perfoonanca pum1ant to the Conlract and to Blow the Principal to respond to such concerns prior to the Obllgee 
exercising itll rights under the Contract or this Bond. it should not be construed as an altemallve to any dispute 
resoluUon provisions which may appear In the Contracl Neither the participation by eny party In the Pre-Demand 
Conference, nor any statement or position taken by any party during the Pre-Demand Conference or any follow-up 
Pm-Demand Conference, may be relied on by any other party as a waiver°' compromise of the rights or duties of the 
Obllgee, the Surety or the Principal under !he Contract, this Bond or applicable law. 

11- Condllfons Precedent to Uab!IHy 

The Surety shall have no llablllty under this Bond unless all of the following conditions precedent (the 'Conditions 
Precedent") have been satisfied: 

1. The Principal Is, and la declared by th• Obllgee to be, ln default under the Contract; end 
2. The Obligae has perfonned the Obllgee's obrigaUons under Iha Contract; and 
3. The Obllgea has made a Demand under the Bond. In tills Bond, "Demand" means a clear and unequivocal 

written statement by the Obllgee, delivered to Iha Surety 1n accordance with 5ectfon XI beloW, that the 
Principal Is in default of its obHgalions under the Contract and requesting that the Surety fulfill Its obligations 
under this Bond; and • 

4. The Obllgee has agreed to make avallable the Balance or Iha Contract Price to the Surety In accordance 
with the tenns and conditions of the Conlract. In this Bond, 'Salanca of the Contract Price' means the total 
amount payable by the Obllgee to the Prinelpal under the Contract less the amount properly paid by the 
Obllgee lo the Principal. 

II • SU!!tv's Investigation and Response 

Upon receipt of a Demand from the Obllgee, th• Surety shall be enllUed to a reasonable Ume within which to conduct 
an inveatlgatlon of the Oemend and determine Its Jlabllity under the Bond, If any. Within five (5) business days of 
receipt of the Demand the Surety shall acknowledge rocolpt of the Demand In writing and request from the Obllgee 
the lnfonnaUon end documentation the Surety shal require tc complete Its Investigation (the 'lnfonnatton•) and access 
to the site whent the work Is being performed, If necessary. Upon receipt of the Surety's acknowledgement, the 
Obllgee shall promptly provide the requested lnfonnatlon and site access to the Surety. 

Upon receipt of all the Information, and completion of the site visit, If required, the Surety shall have twenty-one (21) 
calenjlar days to complete Its Investigation and advise the Obllge9, In writing, of iCa position on llabity pursuant to the 
Bond and to choose an option for dlschaiging its obllgetlon hereunder, If appropriate. In the event that the Surety Is 
unable to complete Its Investigation and take a position on liability within such twenty-one (21) calendar days It shall 
write to !he Obllgae prior to Iha expiration of such twenty.one (21) calendar days and provide the Obllgae with en 
updata which sets out the stallls of the Surety's Investigation and the Surety's estimate Of when Iha Investigation wlM 
be completed and its position dallvered to th& Obllgee. In the event that 1he Surety denies that It has any llablity 
pursuant to this Bond, the Surety shall explain Its reasons thereror to Iha Obllgee In writing. 

IV• Emeraency Remedial AcUon by the Obllgee 

If during !he Uma the Surety Is rnvasUgatlng a Demand, circumstances dictate that the Obllgee must undertake 
emergency remedial work which la necessary to: 

a) ensure public safety; or · 
b) presarve or protect the work under the Connet from deterioration or damage, 

the Obllgee may, acting with due diligence and upon giving written notice to Iha Surety, undertake such emergency 
remedlal work provided that: 



1. reasonablo costs Incurred by Iha Obllgee In undertaking &uch emergency mmedial wor1< shall be nilmbursed 
by the Surety In acconlance with the tenns and condltloris of this Bond and subject to the Prlnclpars default 
and the Surety's liability being subsequently establahed. Any payments made by the Surety In respect or 
such work &hall fonn part of Its obligation under this Bond and sha• reduce the Bond Amount by the amount 
of any suet! payments; and 

2. any aueh emergency remedial wor1< shall be llmlted to wor!< which Is within the scope of the Contract and 
which Is reasonably required to mitigate the potential costs or damages of the Obllgee in the circumstances; 
and 

3. any such emergency remedial wor1< shall be undertaken without prejudice to Ille rights of the Obligee, the 
Prlnclpal or Iha Sul9ty under Iha Contract, this Bond or applicable law. 

V - Post-Demand CO!!ferenc:e 

Followlng a Demand, the Surety and the Prlnclpal shal participate In a meeting or telephone conference can (the 
"Post Demand Confemnce"} wl1h Iha Obllgee, on a without prejudice basis, which shall be arranged by the Surety 
and held at a mutually agreeable Ume end place not later than ten (10) calender days after receipt of the Demand, 
unless olhelwise mutually agreed to by the Obllgee and the Swaty. 

Ttie purpose of Iha Po&t Demand Conference shall be to datennlne what nimedlal acUon, If any, the Obllgee believes 
must bo taken while the Surety Is conducUng Its lnvestlgaUon. If the Obllgee reasonably believes that the work of the 
Contract must prncaed for the benellt/protectlon of the Project overall and In mitigation of any damages the Obllgee 
lntands to seek from the Surety hereunder, ..mile the S1119ty is conducting Its invesllgatlon and provides reasonable 
evidence thereof to the Swaty, the Obligee may engage an appropriate contraciol(s} to conUnua the work of the 
Contract (Iha "Remedial Work") subject to the tollowlng condHlons: 

1. the Obllgee 1haU pay the costs of the Remedial Worlt on terms the same as or slmllar to those of the 
Contract; 

2. the Obllgee shall keep separate records of ell amounts related to the Remedial Wori< It Intends to seek as 
damages from the Sunity hereunder; and 

3. the Obllgee shall allow the Surely encl/or Its consultant(s) access to the Project during the course of the 
Remedial Work for the purpose of preserving evidence end monltorlng the progress ol the Remecfel Work. 

If the Surety objects to any part of the Remedfal Worlc, Including wtthout Hmltatlon Iha Obllgea's proposed completion 
contrector1•). It shall Immediately advise the Obllge11 In writing of Its objections and the niasons thanifor. The 
Obllgee may still proceed with the Remedial Work and the Surety'e objections will be adcmlseed through negoUatlon 
with the Obllgee or at the trlal of any action brought pursuant to thls Bond. 

The reasonable costs Incurred by the Obllgee In undertaking the Remedial Work shall be reimbursed by the Surety In 
accordance with Iha tenns and conditions of lhls Bond subject to the Principal' a dsfault and the Surely' a liabillty being 
eubsequenUy established. Any payments made by Iha Surely In respect of the Remedial Work shall form part of Its 
obligation under this Bond and shall reduce the Bond Amount by the amount of any such paymenls. 

So long ea the Obllgae has attended a Post Demand Conforonce and oth111wtsa compiled with all of Iha conditions of 
this Bond Iha Obligee may proceed with the Remedial WOik and the Surety shall not raise the mere fact that the 
Remedial Work proceeded as a defence to any cl~ by the ObUgee hereunder. 

Neither the participation In the Post·Demand Conference, nor any statement or poaitlon taken by either party during 
the Post-Demand Conference or any follow-up Post-Demand Conference, shall be rened on by any other party as a 
waiver or compromise of the rights or dutles of any the Obllgee, the Surety or the Principal under the Contract or this 
Bond. 

YI· Su1'9tv'I Options 

Following the compleUon of the Surety's Investigation, If the Conditions Precedent have been satisfied by Iha Obllgee 
and the Surety has accepted llabillty pur.iuant to this Bond, subfe<;t to Sections VII and VIII below, the Suraty shall 
promptly: 

L remedy the default; or 
2. complete the Contract In accordance with Its tenna and condlllons; or 
3. obtain a bid or bids for submission to the Obllgee for completing the Contract In accordance with Its tenns 

and condlUons and upon detenninallon by the Obllgee and the Surety of Iha lowest 19Sponsible bidder, 
anange for a contract between such bidder and the Obllgaa and make avallable as work progresses (even 
though there should be a default, or a succession of defaults, under the contract or contracts of completion, 
ananged under this panigraph) sufllclent funds to complete the Princlpel's obligations In accordance with the 
tenns and condition of Che Contract end to pay those expen98S incurred by the Obllgee as a result of the 
Pr1nclpars default relaUng directly to the performance of the work under Iha Contract, lass Iha Balance of the 
Contract Price; or 

4. pay the Obllgee the lesser of: (1) the Bond Amount, or (2) the Obllgee's proposed cost of completion less 
Iha Salanc:a of Contract Price. 

VU - Umltatlon on the Surety's Uablllty 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In this Bond or In the Contract, the Surety shall not be l1able for a 
greater sum than the Bond Amount under any clrctJmslal"IC88. 

In the province of Quebec, the coverage period of this Bond begins al the date of commencement of the Contract 
work and ends two (2} years following acceptance of such work pursuant to Artlcle 2110 of the CM! Code. Only 
defaults cleclarad by the Obllgee In writing to the Principal during such period shal be subject to coverage under 11119 
Bond. 



VIA- Comrnenc11mtnt of Action 

It Is a condMlon of this Bond that any suit or acUon must be commenced before the explralkm of two (2) yeaB from 
the earlier of : (1) the date of Substantlal Performance of the Contract as defined ln the ll11n legislation where the 
work under the Contract Is laking place, or, If no StJCh definition exists, the date when the work Is ready for use or Is 
being used for the purpose Intended, or (2) the date on which the Principal Is declared In default by the Obllgee. 

IX- Right of Action 

No right or action ahal accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any peraon or corporation other than the Obllgee 
named herein, or the heirs, execulcrs, administrators or suce11ssors of the Obllgee. 

X- Headings for Reft!anca Only 

Tho headings and references to them In this Bond ara for convenience only, shaU not constitute a part of this Bond, 
and shall not be taken Into consideration In the lnterpretaUon of this Bone!. 

Xl-Notlcet 

Alt Demands and notices under this Bond shall be delivered by facsimUe and registered mall at the addresses set out 
below. All other correspondence may be delivered by any of racslmlle, regular mall, registered mall, email or courter 
at the addnisses set out below. 

The Surety: 
Trlsura Guarantee lnaurance Company 
333 Say Street. SUiia 1610 
Toronto, ON MSH 2R2 
Fax: 514-845-6876 
EmaM: SUf8ty@lrlsura.com 

The Prlnclpa!: 
NORTli AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC 
162 BOW RIDGE OR 
COCHRANE, AB T4C WT 
Fax: NIA 
Email: stouQln@nasteelerectors.com 

TheObllgee: 
PCL Construction Management Inc. 
2882 11" Street NE 
Calgary, AB T2E 757 
Fax: NIA 
ca!gaNCQnlrac1B@pcl.com 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Iha Principal and the Surety have Signed and Sealed this Bond this 12th day of August In 

the year2019. 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC 

Trl1ura Guarantee Insurance Company 

By: «~ 
Name: Uarie~ 
Atlomey-ln·Fsct 

(aeel) 
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• SUBCONTRACT #463022 - OS 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 

This Agreement made on May JO, 2019 by and between: 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 

2882 11th Street NE 
Calgary, AB T2E 787 

hereinafter called the "Contractor" 

and 

North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

162 Bow Ridge Drive 
Cochrane, AB T4C 1V7 

Steeve Toupin 
(514) 775-2211 
stoupin@nasteelerectors.com 

hereinafter called the "Subcontractor" 

Branch: 

Project No: 
Requested By: 
Prepared By: 
Cost Code: 
Subcontractor Fax: 
File Number: 

Calgary 

0400463 
AMS CH 
CJC 
051001 

0400463 

THIS SUBCONTRACT IS ALSO SUBJECT TO n!E GENERAL CQNDrtlONS AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS AlTACHED HERETO 

RECITALS: 

1. The Contractor has entered tnto a contract together with atl general conditions, special conditions, plans, drawings, specifications, 
schedules, addenda and other documents (as developed from time to time) forming or by reference made a part of such c:mtract and 
as amended from time to time, (the "Prime Contract") dated March 11, 2019 for the performance of certafn work (the "Work") for 
City of Calgary (together wlth Its successors and assigns, the• Owner") in relation to a pro;ect described as 9th Ave Vehicle 
Bridge Replacement (the "Projecr). 

Owner Address: 
City of Calgary 
2 FLR·677 25 AVE SE BLDG U 
CALGARY, AB T2G 4KB 

Project Address: 
9th ave SE over Elbow River 
Calgary, AB 

2. The Subcontractor wishes to undertake a portion of the Wort< (the• Subcontract Work", as defined below) as Subcontractor to the 
Contractor. 

3. The Subcontractor and the Contractor have agreed to enter Into this Subcontract, which sets out the terms and conditions upon 
which the Subcontractorwm perform the Subcontract Work. 

Canadian Subcontract 2009 
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A. AGREEMENT TO PERFORM THE SUBCONTRACT WORK 

The Subcontractor agrees to perform the Subcontract Work In accordance with the terms and conditions of this Subcontract and to 
the satisfaction and approval of the Contractor and of the Owner or Its architect or engineer (the "Consultant"). 

B. WORK TO BE PERFORMED 

It is agreed that the materials to be furnished and the work to be done by the Subcontractor are as follows: 

Supply, fabricate and lnstaU structural steel as per plans, specifications, and all addenda. 

All In accordance with the requirements of the Prime Contract and all Instructions of the owner or the Consultant pursuant to the 
Prime Contract In relation to such materials and such work (hereinafter called the "Subcontract Work"). The Subcontract Work 
Includes any and all acts, operations, obligations, duUes and responsibilities as are necessary for the Subcontractor lo perform the 
SCCJpe of the Subcontract Work and to satisfy Its obligations under this Subcontract, Including the proVlslon and performance, and all 
supervision, of all necessary labour, materials (Freight Terms DDP - Delivered Duty Paid 9th Ave SE (Inglewood) Bridge Rehab -
lncoterms 2010, Includes offloading by subcontractor), plant, tools, equipment, services, supplies, permits and licenses. 

C. SUBCONTRACT PRICE 

The estimated amount to be paid to the Subcontractor for the performance of the Subcontract Work is four million six hundred 
forty-eight thousand five hundred nine DOLLARS ($4,648,509.00) In Canadian Funds (the "Subcontract Price") exclusive of the 
Goods and SeMc:es Tax and Inclusive of all other federal, provincial, tenltorlal and municipal taxes of any kind whatsoever and which 
amount shall be subject to adjustment In accordance with the terms hereof. 
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Cost Breakdown ~ Schedule of Unit Prices 
Estimated 

Cost Code Description Quantity UoM Unit Price Total 
051001 3.5.1 Supply Coated Steel Arch Ribs & 1 LS 51,640,361 .45 $1,640,361.45 

Cross Bracing 
051002 3.5.2 Supply Galv. Arch lle Beams LS $501,828.03 $501,828.03 
051003 3.5.3 Deliver & Erect Steel Arches (Ribs, LS $26,100.78 $26,100.78 

Croaa Bracing, lle Beams) 
051004 3.5.4 S&I Arch Rib Coated Cladding Panels LS $46,064.80 $46,064.80 
051005 3.5.5 S&I Arch Cross Bracing Coated 1 LS $23,720.60 $23,720.60 

Cladding Panels 
051006 3.5.6 Supply Galv. Steel Deck Beams & 1 LS 52,095,356.84 $2,095,356.84 

Stringers 
051007 3.5.7 Deliver & Install Steel Deck Beams & 1 LS $78,302.35 $78,302.35 

Stringers 
051008 3.5.8 S&I Galv. Steel Arch Hangers 28 EA $6,896.3679 $193,098.30 
051009 3.5.9 S&I Coaled Steel Plate Hangers 4 EA $4,791.7125 $19,166.85 
014200 50% Performance bond - Shield lndus1ries 1 LS $14,950.00 $14,950.00 

(0.0115 x 0.5 x $2,600,000) = $14,950.00 
014200 50% Labour and Material bond - Shield 1 LS $6,325.00 $6,325.00 

Industries (0.0115 x 0.5 x $1,100,000) = 
$6,325.00 

014200 50% Performance bond - North Amerlc:an LS $3,234.00 $3,234.00 
Steel Erectors (0.007 x 0.5 x $924,000) = 
$3,234.00 

$4,648,509.00 

UNLESS SPECIFJCALL Y EXCLUDED HEREIN, SUBCONTRACTOR INCLUDES ALL COSTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXECUTION OF SUBCONTRACTOR'S WORK 

The quantities as shown in the Schedule of Unit Prices are estimated quantities only. The final Subcontract Price 
shall be the sum of the products of the actual quantities of work perfonned or materials furnished as determined by 
counts and measurements made by the Contractor and approved by the Owner mulliplled by the applicable 
Subcontract Unit Prices. It Is mutually agreed that the quantities of work to be done or materials to be furnished 
may very from the estimated quantities and such variances shall not be considered as a waiver of any condition of 
the Subcontract, nor as Invalidating any of the provisions thereof, nor shall any changes be made to the 
Subcontract Unit Prices on account of such variations, but the same Unit Price shall apply as If no variations had 
occurred. 

D. PAYMENT 

The Contractor agrees to pay the Subcontractor for the performance of the Subcontract Work as follows: 

1. Provided that no lien has been flied In respect of the Subcontract Work that has not been released, vacated or discharged by the 
Subcontractor In accordance with the requirements of this Subcontract, payments will be made monthly on progress estimates 
submitted by the Subcontractor as approved by the Contractor covering 90.00% of the value of the Subcontract Work completed 
by the Subcontractor to the end of the previous month, such payments to be made wllhln the earlier of five (5) days after the 
Contractor receives payment for such work from the Owner, or sixty (60) days from the end of the month In which the 
Subcontract Work Included In the progress estimate was completed. 

2. Subject to the expiry of the appllcabte holdback period pursuant to the applicable builders', mechanics', or construction lien 
leglslation, and provided that no lien has been filed In respect of the Subcontract Work that has not been released, vacated, or 
discharged In accordance with the requirements of this Subcontract, payment of the balance of 10.00% owing under this 
SubCCJntract wlll be made within the earlier of five (5) days after fmal payment has been received by the Contractor from the 
Owner for the Project or sixty (60) days after final acceptance of the Project by the Owner or Its Consultant 
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3. Due performance by the Subcontractor shall be a condition precedent to all payments by the Contractor. 

4. The Contractor's payment obligations shall be subject to Article 12 of the General Conditions. 

5. Payments wlll not be due and owing nor shall any Interest accrue thereon unUI all required documents, Including but not llmlted 
to this Subcontract, Subcontract revisions, statutory declarations (if required pursuant to this Subcontract), certificates of 
insurance, Wor1<ers' Compensation Board letters of account, Workers' Compensation Board letters of clearance, such 
documentation In respect of safety as may be required pursuant to Article E(2)(b), quality control documentation, an Invoice 
setting out the payment sought, and any other documents as required by this Subcontract, are provided to the Contractor In the 
format requested and, If required, fully executed by the Subcontractor. 

6. Subcontractor hereby represents to Contractor that It Is not a non-resident of Canada for purposes of the Income Tax Act 
(Canada). Any and all payments made under this Subcontract shall be made subject to withholding and deduction on account of 
taxes where required by applicable laws or the administration thereof by relevant governmental authoriUes, Including without 
limitation wlthholdlng on account of Canadian federal or provlnclal taxes from a payment to a non-resident of Canada In respect 
of services rendered In Canada. Where an amount Is so withheld or deducted, such amount will be treated for all purposes of this 
Subcontract as having been paid by Contractor to Subccntractor at the time it was withheld or deducted, and Contractor shall 
remit such amount to the relevant governmental authorities. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subcontractor may, no later than 
30 days prior to commencing the Subcontract Work, provide the Contractor with a letter from the Canada Revenue Agency 
("CRA") authorizing an exemption from a withholding required by applfcable raw. If the Subcontractor provides such letter from the 
CRA, the Contractor shall not reduce payments made under this Subcontract by any withholding and deduction on account of 
taxes exempted by such letter. 

E. INVOICING PROCEDURE 

1. Three copies of Invoices In a format acceptable to the Contractor covering progress claims rererencilg this Pro;ect must be 
received by the Contractor at the Contractor's address set forth on the first page hereof, not later than the twenty-fifth day of Iha 
month in which materials were supplied or work performed. In the event invoices are received later than this, the Contractor may 
postpone payment to the month following that In which It would otherwise have been due, notwithstanding anything contained 
elsewhere In this Subcontract. 

2. No progress payment or final payment shall be due or payable nor shall any Interest accrue thereon until the Subcontractor 
fumlshes the Contractor with: 

(a) a Statutory Declaration stating: 
(I) In the case of a progress payment, that all obKgatlons Incurred by the Subcontractor in the performance of this 

Subcontract up to the end of the previous month have been paid, or stating particulars of any obligations remaining 
unpaid; and 

(II) In the case of final paymen~ that all obligations Incurred by the Subcontractor in the perfonnance of this Subcontract 
have been paid, or stating particulars of any obligations still remaining unpaid, and stating that all Workers' 
Compensation Board assessments have been paid; and a certificate of the Workers' Compensation Board to that effect 
shall be attached to the Statutory Declaration; 

(b) such documentation in respect of safety as may be required In accordance with the Contractor's safety pollcy, a copy of 
which has been dellvered to the Subcontractor or Is posted at the Project site (the •Site"), together with such revisions of 
which the Subcontractor may be notified by the Contractor from time to time (the •Contractor's Safety Polley"). 

3. The Contractor may require Invoices and back up to invoices to be submitted electronically. If so required, spreadsheets will be 
submitted in Microsoft Excel end dociments will be submitted In Microsoft Word forms. Invoices and back up may be submitted 
by disk delivered to the address, or via e-mail to the e-mail address, designated for such purpose by the Contractor In writing. 
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F. GENERAL 

1. Except to the extent otherwise expressly provided In this Subcontract, If there Is a conflict between provisions of this Subcontract 
or provisions Incorporated Into this Subcontract, the order of priority, from highest to lowest, shall be: 

(a) the agreement of this Subcontract (being Articles A to F, Inclusive); 

(b) the Special Conditions of this Subcontract; 

(c) the General Conditions of this Subcontract; 

(d) the speclftcatlons Incorporated Into this Subcontract; and 

(e) the drawings Incorporated Into this Subcontract. Drawings of a larger scale shall govern over those of small scale of the 
same date. Dimensions shown on drawings shall govern over dimensions scaled from drawings. 

Later dated documents shall govern over earlier documents of the same type. To the extent that this Subcontract and the Prime 
Contract deal with the same subject matter In respect of the Subcontract Work, both such provisions shall apply except to the 
extent that such provisions are contradictory. To the exlent that a provision in this Subcontract contradicts a prevision In the 
Prime Contract, the provision In this Subcontract shall prevail to the extent necessary to avoid such contradiction. 

2. The Subcontractor and the Contractor for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns, 
do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants and agreements contained In this Subcontract. 

3. This Subcontract Is the entire agreement between the parties relating to the Subcontract Work and replaces any earlier 
agreements, and the parties agree that there are no other agreements, representations, collateral agreements or warranties other 
than as expressed herein. The Subcontractor acknowledges that It has not entered Into this Subcontract on the basis of, and 
has not relied upon, any statement or representation, whether or not negllgently made, whether oral, written, express or Implied, 
except as expressly set forth in this Subcontract. No amendment to this Subcontract shall be valid and binding unless set forth 
In a Subcontract Revision, a Contractor Directive or an Instrument in writing signed by the parties. 

4. Time Is of the essence of this Subcontract and any time specified for the completion of the Subcontract, the Subcontract Work 
or any portion thereof Is a material provision of this Subcontract. 

5. The Contraclor and the Subcontractor are Independent contractors. This Subcontract does not create or establish between the 
Contractor and the Subcontractor or between the Subcontractor and the Owner any relationship as partners, fiduciaries, joint 
venturers, employer and employee, master and servant or principal and agent. 

6. Each provision of this Subcontract shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. If any provision of this 
Subcontract shall be Invalid, unenforceable or illegal, such provision may be severed and such lnvalldlly, unenforceablllty or 
illegality shall not prejudice or affect the validity, enforceabHlty and legality of the remaining provisions of this Subcontract. If any 
such provision of this Subcontract Is Invalid, unenforceable or Illegal, the parties shall promptly negotiate In good fallh new 
provisions to eliminate such Invalidity, unenforceablllly or Illegality and to restore this Subcontract as nearly as possible to Its 
original Intent and effect 

7. This Subcontract shall be governed by end construed in accordance with the laws of the place of the Subcontract Work and shall 
be treated In all respects as a contract in that place without regard to connlct of laws principles. 

8. Subject to Article 20(b) of the General Conditions, the courts of the place of the Subcontract Work shaU have jurisdiction to hear 
and determine any action, suit, proceeding or dispute In connection with this Subcontract, and the parties hereby irrevocably 
attom to the jurisdiction of those courts. 

9. Each party shall do all things and execute all further documents necessary to give full effect to this Subcontract. 

10. This Subcontract shall be interpreted neutrally and without regard to which party drafted it and, in particular, no rule of 
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construction shall be applied that would result in the resolution of an ambiguity herein on the basis of which party drafted this 
Subcontract. 

11. Any notice required or permitted under this Subcontract shall be in writing and (a) delivered personally, (b) sent by reccgnized 
express mail or courier service, with delivery receipt requested, or (c) sent by facsimile transmission with telephonic confirmation, 
if to the Subcontractor, at the address set forth on the first page hereof, and if to the Contractor, at the Contractor address set 
forth on the first page hereof, Attention: Manager, Finance and Administration; Fax number: 403-250-2332. 

12. In this Subcontract, the word "Including· shall mean "Including, without limitation; and the words · include" and "includes· shall 
have corresponding meanings. 

13. The General Conditions and Special Conditions attached hereto form part of this Subcontract 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Subcontract by their proper officers or duly authorized 
agents. 

North American Steel Erectors Inc. PCL Construction Management Inc. 
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GENERAL CONDITIONS 

ARTICLE1. 

(a) The Subcontractor shall perform Its obligations under this Subcontract at Its own cost and risk except as expressly provided In this 
Subcontract. 

(b) The Subcontractor agrees to begin, cany on and complete the Subcontract Work in a prompt and diligent manner and in accordance 
with the Contractor's schedule for the Project and so as not to Interfere with or delay the work of the Contractor or the work of any 
other subcontractors. The Contractor shall have the right to adjust the Contractor's schedule for the Project, or direct the 
Subcontractor to accelerate the Subcontract Wod( to ensure compliance with the Contractor's schedule, from time to Ume provided 
however that, If: (1) such adjustment Is not undertaken In response to an act or omission of the Subcontractor or a party engaged by 
or through the Subcontractor: (2) such adjustment reduces the lime that the Subcontractor has to carry out the Subcontract Work 
prior to such adjustment; and (3) the Contractor has not previously reimbursed the Subcontractor for such adjustmen~ the Contractor 
shall pay the reasonable expenses Incurred by the Subcontractor Jn accelerating the Subcontract Work to adhere to Contractor's 
schedule (as adjusted) The Subcontractor shaU, If requested by the Contractor, furnish adequate evidence to substantiate its ability to 
meet the performance schedules and planned progress of the Subcontract Work, Including periodic reports setting forth the status of 
the Subcontract Work. Without limiting any other right or remedy of the Contractor, If the Subcontractor fails to observe any provision 
of this Article 1 (b) and by reason thereof the Contractor becomes liable for pen a Illes or damages {including Rquidated damages), the 
Subcontractor shall pay to the Contractor such penalties or damages for which it has been responsible. 

(c) The Subcontractor represents and warrants that It Is experienced and knowledgeable In the performance of work such as the 
Subcontract Work and has the required abHity, experience, skins, qualifications, capability, manpower, and financial resources to 
perform the Subcontract Work in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this Subcontract. 

(d) The Subcontractor has: 

(I) conducted Its own Independent Inspection and analysis of the Site and au other locations relevant to the performance of the 
Subcontract Work and accepts the conditions of the Site and such other locations as they are (except as otherwise provided 
In the Prime Contract); 

{fi) conducted Its own Independent Inspection and analysis of all drawings, reports, studies, data, documents or other information 
given or made available by the Contractor, the Owner or the Consultant ("Background fnformaUon"); and 

(Iii) relled solely on Its own Independent Inspection and analysis and has not relied on any Background Information or any 
representation given or made by the Contractor, the Owner or the Consuttant, except as expressly set forth in this 
Subcontract or as otherwise provided In the Prlme Contract. 

(e) Subcontractor personnel remaining at or returning to the Site outside regular project working hours must have prior authorization to do 
so from the Contractor. 

ARTICLE2. 

(a} The Subcontractor Is deemed to have full knowledge of the provisions of the Prime Contract, other than the provlsions relating to 
payment to the Contractor under the Prime Contract and other than any other provisions of the Prime Contract which are Identified fn 
the Special Conditions of this Subcontract to be excluded from the knowledge of the Subcontractor or which the Contractor, in Its sole 
and absolute discretion, determines are confidential 

(b) To the extent that the Contractor is required under the Prime Contract to obteln rights, powers or remedies for the direct berefit of the 
Owner as against the Subcontractor, the Subcontractor hereby grants such rights, powers or remedies to the Owner. The 
Subcontractor agrees that the Owner Is a third party beneficiary of this Subcontract In respect of all rights, powers and remedies 
granted by the Subcontractor to the Owner and the Contractor Is contracting as agent for the Owner In respect of ttie granting of such 
rights, powers and remedies In favour of the Owner. Except for rights, powers and remedies granted by the Subcontractor In favour of 
the Owner pursuant to thls Subcontract, nothing herein shall be construed as creating any privily of contract between the 
Subcontractor and the Owner. 
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(c) To the extent that the Contractor Is required under the Prime Contract to Include certain terms or conditions In this Subcontract, such 
terms and conditions shall be deemed to be Incorporated herein. To the extent that the Contractor Is required under the Prime 
Contract to ensure that Its subcontractora Include certain tenns and conditions In their sub-subcontracts or purchase orders, the 
Subcontractor shall Include such terms and conditions In its sub-subcontracts and purchase orders. 

(d) Except as expressly provided to the contrary herein: 
(I) the Subcontractor shall assume and perform all the duties, responsibilities and liabilities of the Contractor under the Prime 

Contract In relatlon to the performance of the Subcontract Work as If the Contractor was the OWner and the SUbcortractor 
was the Contractor under the Prime Contract; 

(ii) the Subcontractor shall have, In respect of the performance of the Subcontract Work, the same duties, responsibilities, 
obligations and liabilities to the Contractor under this Subcontract as the Contractor has to the Owner under the Prime 
Contract as If the Contractor was the Owner and the Subcontractor was the Contractor under the Prime Contract; 

(iii) the Contractor shall have, In respect of the performance of the Subcontract WOik, the same rights, powers and remedies 
against the Subcontractor under this Subcontract as the Owner has against the Contractor under the Prime Contract as if the 
Contractor was the Owner and the Subcontractor wu the Contractor under the Prime Contract; 

(iv) the Subcontractor shall be bound by an rulings or the Consultant or the OWner in relation to the performance of the 
Subcontract Work, to the same extent that the Contractor Is bound; and 

(v) the Subcontractor will not be entiUed to greater rights, entiUements or relier against the Contractor under this Subcontract 
than the Contractor actually obtains from the Owner under the Prime Contract In relation to the performance of the 
Subcontract Work or any claims of the Subcontractor relating thereto provided however that where the Subcontractor Is 
delayed In the performance of the Subcontract Work due to a breach of this Subcontract by the Contractor, the Subcontractor 
will be entiUed to the reasonable expenses Incurred by the Subcontractor due to such breach In accordance with the terms of 
this Subcontract • 

(e) The Subcontractor will so execute, complete and maintain the Subcontract Work that no act or omission of the Subcontracto· in 
relation thereto shall constitute, cause or contribute to any breach by lhe Contractor of any of the Contractor's obllgatlons un:jer the 
Prime Contract 

(f) The Subcontractor hereby acknowledges that: 
(I) any breach by the Subcontractor of its obligations under this Subcontract (including its obllgaUons under Article 1 or this 

Article 2) may result In the Contractor committing breaches of and becoming lleble for damages, including liquidated 
damages, under the Prime Contract and other subcontracts made by the Contractor and may occasion further loss or 
expense to the Contractor; and 

(Ii) all such damages, liquidated damages, loss and expense are hereby agreed to be within the contemplatlon of the parties es 
being probable results of any such breach by the Subcontractor. 

(g) Subject to Article 2(h), In the event that a circumstance should arise that has an impact on the cost of performance of the Subcontract 
Work or the time required to perform the Subcontract Work and, as a result of the occurrence of such circumstance, the Con:ractor 
receives additional payment from the Owner in respect of the Subcontract Work or is granted an extension of the time ror perfonnan::e 
of the Subcontract Work by the Owner, the Subcontractor shall be entitled to a like additional payment, exclusive of any amo:.mt 
attributable to the Contractor's fee for profit or overhead, and to a like extension of time for performance of the Subcontract Work. 

(h) Whenever the Contractor Is required by the terms of the Prime Contract to give any return, account or notice, the Subcontractor will, in 
relation to the Subcontract Work, give a similar return, account or notice in writing In such form and within such period of time as will 
enable the Contractor to comply with the requirements of the Prime Contract. If by reason of any breech of this Artfcle 2(h) the 
Contractor is prevented from recovering any sum from the OWner or from obtaining any extension of time in respect of the Subcontract 
Work, then, without prejudice to any other remedy the Contractor may have for such breach, the Subcontractor shall be dfsentltled 
ftom recovering a like sum or any portlon thereof or obtaining a like extension of time or any portion thereof under this Subcontract. 

ARTICLE3. 

(a) In respect of the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain at its own expense aU such Insurance as the 
Contractor is required to obtain and maintain pursuant to the Prime Contract (except for wrap up liability insurance If provided for in :he 
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Prime Contract) unless this requirement Is amended or waived by the Contractor In writing. Except as otherwise agreed by the 
Contractor In writing, the Subcontractor shell also obtain and maintain at Its own expense liability, property damage, 
owned/non-owned vehicle and Subcontractor's equipment insurance saUsfactory to the Contractor, and shall furnish certiflC8tes of 
such Insurance to the Contractor. 

(b) Each insurance policy to be provided and maintained by the Subcontractor shall: 
(I) be in form, on terms and with Insurers satisfactory to the Contractor; 
(Ii) name the Contractor as an additional Insured, and shall contain provisions that the Jnsurer shall have no right of subrogaUe1n 

against the Contractor, and when required by the Prime CClntract, shan name the Owner or other persons as additional 
Insureds and contain waivers of subrogation against the Owner and such other peraons; 

(Iii) contain a cross llabllity clause and a severability of Interests clause; and 
(iv) be primary Insurance and not In excess to any similar coverage provided by Insurance procured by or available to the 

Contractor or the Owner unless this requirement Is amended or waived by the Contraclor In writing. 

( c) The approval by the Contractor of any Insurance policy provided by the Subcontractor, Including the approval of any limits of such 
policy, shall not limit the Subcontractor's obllgatrons pursuant to this Subcontract. 

(d) Where a loss occurs to the Subcontractor which is covered or would be covered in whole or part by the Insurance required to be 
obtained and maintained by the Subcontractor, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Subcontractor for so much of such loss as Is 
so covered or as would have been covered. 

(e) On projects where the Contractor or the Owner canles builders' risk or similar Insurance, any deductible from the sums otherwise 
payable there under shall be borne by the party responsible for the loss, or If no responsible party can be determined, by the party 
receiving the direct benefit of such Insurance. 

(f) Where the Subcontrador has provided a surety bond In connection with the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shan report to and 
obtain the written consent of the surety for all amendments to and Increases In the Subcontract where the aggregate increase of the 
value of the Subcontract Is greater than ten (10%) percent, and shall ensure continued bonding of the Subcontract, provided that no 
faUure of the Subcontractor to fulfil such obligations shall Invalidate the surety bond or affect the obligations of the surety under the 
surety bond. 

(g) Prior to commencement of the Subcontract Work and upon the placement, renewal, or exlension of all or any part of the Insurance to 
be obtained and maintained by the Subcontractor hereunder, the Subcontractor shall prompUy provide the Contractor with confirmation 
of coverage and, If required, a certified true copy of the policies certified by an authorized representative of the insurer together with 
copies of any amending endorsements and all other related informaUon as requested. 

(h) All required insurance policies shall be issued by Insurers licensed to underwrite Insurance In the jurisdiction of the place of ;he 
Subcontract Work. 

ARTICLE4. 

(a) The Subcontractor agrees not to subcontract all or any portion of the Subamtract Work except with the prior written consent of the 
Contractor (which will not be unreasonably withheld) and then only to sub-subcontractors or material suppliers acceptable to the 
Contractor (acting reasonably). 

(b) The Subcontractor shall not assign this Subcontract or any portion thereof except with the prior written consent of the Contractor. 

(c) The Contractor may assign this Subcontract or any portion hereof. 

ARTICLES. 

The Subconlractor shall at its own expense remove from the Site all debris resulting from the carrying out of the Subcontract Work. 
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ARTICLE&. 

The Subcontractor further specifically obllgates ilself to the Contractor In the following respects: 

(a) To defend and Indemnify the Contractor and Its directors, officers, employees and agents (conectively, the •Contractor lndemnitees0
) 

against and save them harm'ess from any and all claims, suits, proceedings, llablllty, damages (Including liquidated damages), loss, 
expense or damage (collectlvely, "Claims") Incurred by the Contractor lndemnitees (or any of them) for or on account or: 

(I) any alleged or actual Infringement or vlolatlon of any patent, copyright, or other Intellectual or Industrial property right arising In 
connection with thfs Subcontract and anything done hereunder; 

(if) Injuries to property, Injuries lo persons Including death, and from any other Clalms on account of any negligent 
act or omission, wilful misconduct or other wrongful act or omission of the Subcontractor, or any of Its directors, officers, 
agents, employees, servants, material suppliers, sub-subcontractors or assignees; and 

(ill) any breach by the Subcontractor of any of its obligations under this Subcontract. 

(b) All obflgeUons by the Subcontractor pursuant to this Subcontract to defend, Indemnify or save harmless the Contractor lndemnltees or 
any other person or entity shall: 

(I) survive the termination of this Subcontract for any reason and shall be without limitation to any other right or remedy that may 
be available to the Contractor; and 

{ii) Include the obllgatkm to Indemnify the Contractor lndemnllees or such other person or entity rrom and against all costs, 
expenses and fees, including agency fees and legal fees and disbursements on a sollcHor and his or her own cllent basl1. 
Any entity or person entitled to Indemnification hereunder shall, at its or their option, have the right to undertake Its or their 
own defence at the expense of the Subcontractor and to recover from the Subcontractor all such costs, expenses and fees In 
relation thereto. 

ARTJCLE7. 

{a) The Subcontractor shall comply with the provisions of any applicable builders', mechanlcs' or construction lien leglslatlon lncludlng 
any trust provisions thereof. 

(b) Prior to the commencement of the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shall familiarize Itself with and at all times during the 
progress of the Subcontract Work shall fully comply with th• Contractor's Safety Polley, the Contractor's Project Health, Safety, and 
Environment (HSE) Plan, the Worlce13' Compensalion Act, the Occupational Health and Safety Act and all other laws, regulations and 
codes concerning health, safety or the environment as shall be applicable to the Subcontract Work. The Subcontractor shall, If so 
required, furnish to the Contractor satisfactory evidence that the terms of this Artlcle are being complied with. 

{c) The Subcontractor shall obtain and pay for all permits, llcenses and official Inspections made necessary by lts work, and lo comply 
with all laws, ordinances and regulations bearing on Its work and the conduct thereof, Including those In respect of environmental 
protection or enhancement. 

(d) The Subcontractor warrants and guarantees the work and materials covered by this Subcontract and agrees to make good, at Its own 
expense, any non-compliance In carrylng out the Subcontract Work including any defect or deficiency in materials or workmanship 
which may occur or develop, or may be properly condemned or ordered modified by the Consultant, the Contractor or any municipal or 
government Inspector as the result of any work, goods or materials provided by the Subcontractor, together with detrimental direct or 
Indirect effects of such defect or deficiency or of aueh making good. 

(e) The Subcontractor will examine all work (ofits or others) near to or necessary to Its own work, detect and notify the Contractor of all 
flaws or defects therein, and cooperate to make the two works come together and fit and function smoothly. 

(f) Without limitation to the rights of the Contractor pursuant to Article 7, 13 and 17 of this Subcontract, title to materials supplied under 
this Subcontract shall pass to the Contractor on the earliest of (I) the date requi111d pursuant to the Prime Contract for the passage of 
title to the Owner, (II) the date of delivery of such materials to the Site or to such other location as may be directed by the Contractor, 
or (lil) the date of payment by the Contractor to the Subcontractor for auch materials. The Subcontractor agrees to execute such 

Page10of22 



documents as the Contractor may reasonably require to evidence the transfer of such title. 

(g) Whether or not title has passed to the Contractor or the Owner, all risk of loss of or damage to the Subcontract Work not fully or 
finally accepted by the Owner, or to materials, supplles, equipment or scaffolds, shall rest solely on the Subcontractor, Including loss 
or damage due to vandaUsm or theft unless, and only to the extent that, such loss or damage Is covered by Insurance obtained by the 
Contractor or the owner that Is primary to any Insurance obtained or required to be obtained by the Subcontractor. 

(h) The Subcontractor shall: 

(I) perform quality control covering all activltles, products, and services related to lhe execution of the Subcontract Work so es to 
ensure: 

(A) compliance of the Subcontract Work with the stated project performance requirements as well as compliance with the 
Intent of such requirements; and 

(B) that defects In the performance In the Subcontract Work, If any, are Identified and remedied; 

(ii) ensure that Its quality control program meets or exceeds the requirements of the Contractor's quality control program; 
(Ill) present quality control documentation to the Contractor If requested, as a minimum, on a monthly basis with the 

Subcontractor's monthly progress estimate; and 
(iv) notify the Contractor Immediately upon discovering evidence of a non-conformance quality event. 

ARTICLES. 

(a) The term "Shop Drawings" means drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, performance charts, brochures and other data which 
are to be provkled by the Subcontractor to Illustrate details of a portion of the Subcontract Work. 

(b) The Subcontractor shall submit Shop Drawings to the Contractor for Its review with reasonable promptness and In an orderly sequence 
so as to cause no delay In the Subcontract Work or In the work of others. Shop Drawings shaU be submitted In the form of 
reproducible transparencies or prtnta a11 the Contractor may direct. At the time of submission the Subcontractor shall notify the 
Contractor, by notice In writing separate and apart from the Shop Drawings themselves, of any davistions In the Shop Drawings from 
the requirements of the Prime Contract The Subcontractor shall be responsible for all on-site and field dimensioning confirmation as 
may be required to ensure the accuracy of the Subcontractor's Shop Drawings and to ensure the proper fitting of the Subcontract 
Work to the wort< of others. 

(c) The Subcontractor snan submit any samples required to be provided for approval to the Contractor with reasonable promptness end In 
an orderly sequence so as to cause no delay in the Subcontract Work or In the work of others. 

(d) The Subcontractor agrees to provide the Contractor with such information as the Contractor may demand from time to lime to evaluate 
the progress and coordination of the Subcontract Work or to prepare and revise construction and coordination schedules. 

(e) •ay Others" or slmllar comments on Shop Drawings will not be recognized unless they speclflcally concur with the specifications. 

(f) The Subcontractor shall maintain accurate and complele Subcontract documents (Including all Shop Drawings, as-bullt drawings, 
maintenance manuals, Instructions, brochures, guarantee11, warranties, certificates and other similar documents) at all times during 
the performance of the Subcontract Work at the Site or at such other location approved by the Contractor In writing, shall make all 
such documents avallable to the Contractor at all such times and shall deliver to the Contractor all such documents as and when 
required by the Contractor and In any event no later than the Subcontractor's final progress claim or two weeks before the Consultant'& 
final inspection, whichever Is the earlier. 

ARTICLE9. 

(a) The Contractor shall have the right, without Invalidating this Subcontract, lo order changes to the Subcontract Work, Including 
changes by way of addition to the Subcontract Work or deletion of portions of the Subcontract Work, and in each such case shall do 
so in writing. 
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(b) When a change to the Subcontract Work ls proposed, the Contractor shall provide notice In writing to the Subcontractor describing 
the proposed change to the Subcontract Work. The Subcontractor shall propose, In a form and in detail acceptable to the Contractor 
and within such time as may be prescribed by the Contractor, a method of adjustment or an amount of adjustment to the Subcontract 
Price, If any, and the adjustment to the Subcontract schedule, if any, for the proposed change to the Subcontract Work. 

(c) When the Contractor and the Subcontractor agree to the adjustments to the Subcontract Price and the Subcontract schedule or the 
method to be used to determine such adjustments, such agreement shall be recorded In a Subcontract Revision signed by the 
Contractor and the Subcontractor (a "Subcontract Revision"). 

(d) If the Contractor requires the Subcontractor to prcceed with a change to the Subcontract Work prior to the Contractor and the 
Subcontractor agreeing upon the adjustments to the Subcontract Price and the Subcontract schedule, the Contractor shall issue a 
written authorization (a "Contractor Directive") to Ille Subcontractor authorizing such change, and the Subcontractor shall proceed 
promptly with the performance of the change lo the Subcontract Work. If the parties are unable to agree on the amount of any 
adjustments to the Subcontract Price or the Subcontract schedule, the same shall be determined in accordance with the pro..-lslons of 
the Prime Contract dealing with changes to the Subcontract Work but such adjustments shall exclude any fee or overhead to whfch 
the Contractor is entitled fn respect of changes to the Subcontract Work (and, for the purposes of determining such adjustment In 
accordance with the provisions of the Prime Contract, such change shall be treated as a change Initiated by the Owner as If the 
Contractor were the OWner and as If the Subcontractor were the Contractor). In the event that the Prime Contract prescribes 
limitations on adjustments to schedule or to payments to be made to the Contractor In respect of changes to the work being 
performed by subcontractors, such limitations shall apply to adjustments to schedule and to payments to the Subcontractor In 
respect of changes to the Subcontract Work. 

(e) The Subcontractor shall not undertake any changes to the Subcontract Work wlthout a written Subcontract Revision or Contractor 
Directive and the Contractor shall not be liable to the Subcontractor In any way for any work carried out by the Subcontractor In 
respect of changes to the Subcontract Work where such work was carried out without a written Subcontract Revision or Contractor 
Directive. All Subcontract Revisions and Contractor Directives will be considered Incorporated into this Subcontract and governed by 
Its terms. 

{f) In the event of a dispute as to whether a written instrucllon by the Contractor to the Subcontractor constitutes a change to the 
Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shall act ln accordance with the Contractor's instructions. If it Is subsequenUy determined that 
the Instructions constltuted a change to the Subccntract Wol1<, the Subcontract Price shall be adjusted and the Subcontract schedule 
shall be adjusted In respect of such Instruction in accordance with this Article 9 PROVIDED HOWEVER that no such Instructions 
shall conslltute a change to the Subcontract Work unless the Subcontractor has prn'1ided the Contractor with: 

(I) notice in writing that it believes that such Instructions constitute a change in the Subcontract Work by the earlier ot. 

(A) five (5) days from the date the Subcontractor has received the written fnstruction from the Contractor, or 

(B) the day that is two WOfklng Days lmmeaiately preceding the day that the Contractor must provide a similar notice to the 
owner under the Prime Contract in respect of such instructions; and 

(ii) a further notice In writing to the Contractor deta'.llng why the Subcontractor beMeves that such Instructions constitute a ct ange in 
the Subcontract Work, the value of such change, and any schedule impacts associated with such change by the earlier of: 

(A) ten (10) days from the date the Subcontractor received the written instruction from the Contractor, 

(8) the day that ls two Working Days Immediately preceding the day that the Contractor must provide a slmllar notice to the 
owner under the Prime Contract In respect of such instructions. 

ARTICLE10. 
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The Subcontractor shall have no aalm against the Contractor unless it shall have provided the Contractor with: 

(I} notice In writing which specifies the occurrence or event giving rise to such Clalm or possible Claim by the earlier of: 
(A) fiVe ( 5) days of the date of such occurrence or event; or 

(B) the day that Is two Working Days immediately preceding the day that the Contractor must provide a slmllar notice to the 
OWner under the Prime Contract In respect of such Claim or possible Claim; and 

(ii) a further notice in writing which datails why the Subcontractor befieves that It is entltled to compensation or schedule relief in 
respect of such Claim or possible Claim, the value of such Claim or possible Claim, and any schedule Impacts associated with 
such Claim or possible Claim by the earlier of; 

(A} ten (10) days of the date of such occurrence or event; or 
(B) the day that is two Wor1dng Days immediately preceding the day that the Contractor must provide a similar notice to the 

Owner under the Prime Contract In respect of such Claim or possible Claim. 

ARTICLE11. 

(a) The Subcontractor agrees to comply with all applicable municipal, provlncial, territorial and federal employment and labour laws, rules. 

(b) The Subcontractor shall provide a sufficient number of personnel to enable timely and proper execution and completion of the 
Subcontract Work. All such personnel shall be competent and qualified by education, training and experience and in all other respects 
capable of carrying out the tasks to which each Is assigned. At the Contractor's request, the Subcontractor shall reassign, replace or 
remove personnel who, in the Contractor's sole and unfettered discretion, do not meet the above requirements, or become intoxicated, 
intemperate, disorderly, incompetent, or negligent, or who have committed a violation of the contractor's regulations or procedures 
Including those related to safety, environment, and security. Such requests by the Contractor shall not limit in any way the 
Subcontractor's responsiblliUes and obllgatlons, pursuant to the Contract Documents or In tort, for any costs or damages that may 
arise as a result of the actions of the Subcontractor's personnel. 

(c) The Subcontractor shall comply with those provisions of the Contractor's collective agreements relating to the Subcontract Worf<. 
Should the Contractor be found Hable for any breach of the Contractor's relevant collective agreements as a result of the 
Subcontractor's actions, the Subcontractor agrees to defend and indemnify the Contractor In respect of any damages, costs end 
expenses Incurred by the Contractor by reason of the failure by the Subcontractor to comply with those collectlve agreements or Its 
fallure to meet the subcontracting or jurisdiction provisions of those collective agreements. 

ARTICLE 12. 

{a) The Subcontractor shaU not permit any lien to be filed in respect to the Subcontract Work except the Subcontractor may file a lien for 
amounts owing to the Subcontractor under this Subcontract which are not paid when due. The Subcontractor shall pay for all 
materials furnished and work and labour performed under this Subcontract and all taxes, Imposts, levies, assessments, premiums, 
fees or union dues relating thereto directly or lndlrecUy when such payments are due, and shall satisfy the Contractor lhere1.ipon 
whenever demand ls made. 

(b) The Contractor, acting reasonably, may withhold payments from the Subcontractor to such extent as may be considered necessary 
by the Contractor to protect the Contractor from loss on account of defective work or materials not remedied, or the failure of the 
Subcontractor to make payments for material, labour or otherwise under this Subcontract, or the faUure of the Subcontractor to 
perform any of Its obligations hereunder, or claims asserted by the Owner or any thlrd party in respect of acts or omissions of the 
Subcontractor. The Contractor shall endeavour to give the Subcontractor notice of Its Intent to withhold a payment from the 
Subcontractor In acccrdance with this Article 12(b) as soon as reasonably possible after it becomes aware of the circumstances that 
would permit the Contractor to do so, but the Contractor shall not be precluded from withholding If such notice has not been given. 
The Subcontractor hereby authorizes the Contractor to pay any or all of the Subcontractor's unpaid obligations, whether or not such 
unpaid obligations have been disclosed by the Subcontractor lo the Contractor, and to reduce the amount owing lo the Subcontractor 
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by the amount or amounts so paid, plus a reasonable allowance for the Contractor's overhead and administration. The amount of any 
obligations In dispute, plus a reasonable allowance for the Contractor's overhead and administration, may be retalned by lhe 
Contractor pending determination of the dispute. 

(c) The Subcontractor hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Contractor may set-off against any obligation of the Contractor to the 
Subcontractor, and that the Contractor's ot:iligatlon to pay the Subcontractor shaD be reduced by, any claim of any nature or kind by 
the Contractor against the Subcontractor or any subsidiary or affiliate of the Subcontractor, whenever arising, whether liquidated or 
unllquldated, whether or not arising from or related to this Subcontract and Including any claim against the Subcontractor by any other 
person which has been assigned at any time to the Contractor. Any right which the Subcontractor may have to assign rights under 
this Subcontract shall be subject to the Contractor's right of set-off as aforesaid and any rights acquired by any assignee shall be 
subject to the Contractor's right of set-off as aforesaid, whether the claim or claims of the Contractor against the Subcontractor arise 
before, upon or after the assignment to the assignee, or before, upon or after the Contractor ls notified of such assignment. 

(d) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing or any other right or remedy of the Contractor, If a buVders', mechanics' or construction 
lien in respect of the Subcontract Work is registered by a sub-subcontractor, employee, or supplier (or any other entity engaged by or 
through the Subcontractor) of the Subcontractor and such registration Is not released, vacated or dlscharged by the Subcontractor at 
least ten (10) days prior to the date that the Contractor Is required to discharge such a lien under the provisions of the Prime Contract 
or, If the Prime Contract does not specify such a date, within ten (1 O) days after notice by the Contractor to the Subcontractor to 
discharge such Hen, then the Contractor may settle and pay the claim for such lien or make such court applications and make such 
payments Into court as the Contractor deems necessary, in Its absolute discretion, to release, vacate or discharge such llen. All 
amounts paid by the Contractor to release, vacate or discharge such lien or othelWise Incurred by the Contractor arising from the 
registration of such lien, including legal costs on a solicitor and his or her own client basis, shall be paid by the Suba>ntractor to the 
Contractor on demand and the Contractor may deduct all such amounts from payments otherwise due to the Subcontractor. 

ARTICLE13. 

If the Contractor accepts delivery on behalf of the Subcontractor of any of the Subcontractor's materials, supplles or equipment, whether or 
not the Subcontractor is then absent from the Site, the Contractor will not be liable for any deficiency or defect In quantity, quality, or 
content of what was delivered, nor shall the Contractor be deemed to have accepted such materlals, supplies or equipment The 
Contractor shall not be responsible for storage of any such materials, supplies or equipment. 

ARTICLE14. 

(a) For the purposes of this Article 14, an Event of Default wiU occur if any of the following events should occur: 
(I) the Subcontractor Is insolvent, or Is adjudged bankrupt, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or 

commences any proceedings under the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act or the Bankruptcy and lnsolvenr;y Act or any 
slmllar legislation In any jurisdiction, or a receiver is appointed In respect of the Subcontractor, or 

(ii) the Subcontractor taus to comply with any of the requirements of this Subcontract or falls to prosecute the Subcontract Work 
with promptness and diligence, or delays the progress of the Contractor and the Subcontractor falls to cure such default 
within the Cure Period. 

(b) •cure Period" in respect of a default described In Article 14(a)(ll) means the lesser or: 
(i) 70% of the cure period prescribed In the Prime Contract in respect of such default, If such default gives rise to a default by the 

Contractor under the Prime Contract; or 
(II) 3 Working Days (being a day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a holiday which Is observed by the construction Industry in 

the area of the place of the Subcontract Work) immediately following notice of such default from the Contractor, provided that 
If: 

(A) the default Is capable of being corrected, but Is not capable of being corrected within 3 Working Days, 
(B) the Subcontrador commences the correction of the default within 3 Working Days after receipt of the Contractor's 

notice, and 
(C) the Subcontractor provides the Contractor within such period of 3 Worldng Days with a schedule acceptable to the 

Contractor for such correction and the Subcontractor diligently works to correct the default In accordance with such 
schedule, 
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such cure period shall be extended to the time prescribed in such schedule. 

(c) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Contractor may, at Its option, and without prejudice to any other right or remedy the 
Contractor may have: 

(I) cure such default at the expense of the Subcontractor, Including a reasonable allowance for the Contractor's overhead and 
administration, 

(II) suspend this Subcontract, 
{Ill) terminate this Subcontract, 
{iv) take possession of all materials, supplies, products, tools, machinery and equipment of the Subcontractor on the Site, 
(v) do or pay anything the Subcontractor has failed to do or pay either by the Contractor itself or by employing others for the 

purpose, or 
{vi) any two or more of the foregoing. 
In any of these cases the Contractor may charge all costs, expenses and losses Incurred by it Including all fees, Including 
agency fees and legal fees on a solicitor and his or her own client basis, to the Subcontractor who covenants forthwith to 
reimburse the Contractor therefore. 

(d) If the Contractor faUs to pay to the Subcontractor any undisputed amounts owing to the Subcontractor under this Subcontractwhen 
due and the Contractor fails to rectify such default within thirty (30) days foDowlng Its receipt of written notice of such default from the 
Subcontractor, the Subcontractor shall have right to suspend its performance of the Subcontract Work until such default has been 
rectified. If the Subcontractor suspends the Subcontract Work In accordance with this Article 14{d), the Subcontractor shall 
recommence an suspended Subcontract Work within five (5) days of the paying to the Subcontractor of such outstanding undisputed 
amounts owing to the Subcontractor. 

ARTICLE 15. 

The Contractor shall have the right at any time by written notice to the Subcontractor to terminate or suspend this Subcontract. If this 
Subcontract Is suspended by the Contractor for reasons other than the default of the Subcontractor or any other event referred to In Article 
14, the Subcontractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the Subcontract Price and the schedule for performance of the 
Subcontract Work in respect of such suspension provided that the Subcontractor hes taken atl reasonable steps to mlllgate the cost and 
schedule Impacts arising from the suspension. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such suspension is as a result of suspension of the Work 
or the Subcontract Work under the Prime Contract, other than es a result of default of the Contractor not caused or contributed to by the 
Subcontractor, the Contractor's obllgatlon to make an equitable adjustment of the Subcontract Price and the schedule for perfonnance of 
the Subcontract Work shall be conditional upon the Contractor being In receipt of funds and being granted an extension of tlme for the 
same pursuant to the terms of the Prime Contract, the Contractor having taken all commerclany reasonable steps to obtain such 
compensation and extension. If this Subcontract is terminated for reasons other than the default of the Subcontractor or any other event 
referred to In Article 14, the Subcontractor shall be entitled to be paid for all work performed to the date of termination, as provided In the 
payment provisions of this Subcontract, for loss sustained with respect to sub-subcontracts and supply contracts and such other damage 
as the Subcontractor may reasonably have sustained as a result of tennlnaf on of this Subcontract provided that: 

(a) the Subcontractor has taken all reasonable steps to mitigate such loss or damages; and 

(b) the Contractor may require the Subcontractor to assign to the Contractor any agreements that the Subcontractor has with 
sub-subcontractors and suppliers In respect of the Subcontract Work; and 

(c) the Subcontractor shall not be entitled to recovery of anticipated profits on Subcontract Work not performed or any other 
consequential damages. 

Any payments owing to the Subcontractor under this Article 15 shall be made In accordance with Article D of this Subcontract. 
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ARTICLE16. 

Payment by the Contractor to the Subcontractor, approval of progress payments by the Contractor, fullure by the Contractor to complain 
against or to sue the Subcontractor, Inspection or testing of any of the Subcontract Work by the Contractor, the ConsuHant or the Owner, 
or the issuance of any cerilficate for payment by the Consuttant or the Owner shall not be deemed to be a waiver by the Contractor of any 
of its rtghts against the Subcontractor Including the rig it of the Contractor lo either withhold payments from the Subcontractor or set-off 
agalnst any obllgallon of the Contractor to the Subcontractor In accordance with this subcontract unless there is an express agreement in 
writing to that effecL Whenever It may be useful or necessary, the Contractor or the Owner shall be permitted to occupy and use any 
portion of the Subcontract Work that has been either i:artially or fully completed by the Subcontractor, but such occupation or use shan 
not be deemed to be a waiver by the Contractor of any of its rights against the Subcontractor unless there is an express agreement In 
writing to that effect The Subcontractor shall not be responsible for any damage caused by the Contractor or the Owner during such 
occupation. 

ARTICLE17. 

The Subcontractor shall store all construction materials to be supplied for the Subcontract Work (" Materials"), whether such Materials ere 
supplied by the Subcontractor, or by the Contractor or Owner to the Subcontractor, until such Materials have been Incorporated into the 
Subcontract Work. Such Materials shall be stored so as to: 

(a) ensure the preservation of their cteanllness, quality and fitness for the Subcontract Worf<; 

(b) be protected from vandalism and theft; and 

(c) be protected from moisture and other conditions promoting the growth of mold or the propagation of corrosion or rust. 

Such Materials shall be located so as to facilitate prompt Inspection. The Subcontractor shall be responsible to ensure that any Materials 
transported to the Site by or for It shall be protected from moisture and kept clean during transportation and handling. Any unclean 
materials shall be cleaned or replaced to the Contractor's satisfaction. Any Materials that have become moist shall be Immediately dried 
to ensure that no mold, rust or corrosion will result from such moisture, to the satisfaction of the Contractor. Wet Materials or Materfals 
that have not been dried In a timely way or to the satisfaction of the Contractor shall be removed from the Site and replaced with Materfars 
satisfactory to the Contractor. The Subcontractor sha I notify the Contractor prior to the Incorporation of any moist materials In the 
Subcontract Work, or before using any water In any of Its construction methods. The Subcontractor shall lmmedlately notify the 
Contractor of any leaks or spills of which it becomes aware. The Subcontractor shall undertake all of the foregoing requirements at Its own 
cost and shell be responsible for the cost of any rework or replacement required due to improper material storage or Installation. The 
Subcontractor shall ensure that these provisions are incorporated Into all of its subcontracts or purchase orders on this Project. 

ARTICLE18. 

The United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods shell not apply to this Subcontract. 

ARTICLE 19. 

(a) In this Article 19, "Confidential lnfonnatlon• means all information, documentation or records of one party that ere disclosed to the 
other that are marked "Confldentrar at the time o~ disclosure or that would be considered by a prudent and reasonable businessperson 
to be confidential or proprietary in nature and lnaudes all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents that contain or are 
derived from the foregoing Information, documen-:atlon or records. 

(b) Each party (the "Reclpienr) will hold In confidence any ConfidenUal Information disclosed to It by the other party (the •Disclosing 
Party"), to be used only for the purpose for which such Confidential Information was disclosed. Such obligation shall not apply to any 
Information, documentation or records: 



(i) which the Oisdoslng Party confirms In writing is not required to be treated as Confidential Information; 
(II) which Is In or becomes a part of the public domain otherwise than through disclosure prohibited by this Article 19; 
(iii) to the exlent either party ls required to disclose such Confidential Information by applicable law; 
(Iv) to the extent such lnfonnatlon, documentation or records were lawfully In the possession of the Recipient prior to Its 

disclosure by the Disclosing Party; or 
(v) to the extent such Information, documentation or records are received by the Recipient on a non-confidential basis from a third 

party, provlded that to the best of the Recipient's knowledge, such third party was not bound by a confidentiality agreement 
with the Dlscloslng Party or otherwise prohibited from dfsclosing the information lo the Recipient. 

(c) The obligatlons of the Subcontractor pursuant to this Article 19 are In addition to any confidentiality obligations under the Prl-ne 
Contract that are Incorporated Into this Subcontract pursuant to Article 2. 

(d) All obllgatlons of the Subcontractor and the Contractor pursuant to this Article 19 shall survive termination of this Subcontract for any 
reason. 

ARTICLE20. 

(a) Any Claim, dispute, or other matter in question between the Contractor and the Subcontractor in any way pertaining to this 
Subcontract Including any dispute In respect of scope of the Subcontract Work, changes to the Subcontract Work, the Subcontract 
Price or scheduling (a "Subcontract Dispute"), shall, if possible, be resolved by negotiation between the Conlractots and the 
Subcontractor's designated representatives for the Project. The Contractor and the Subcontractor each commit to seeking resolution 
of such matters In an amicable, professional and expeditious manner so as to avoid unnecessary losses, delays and disruptions to 
the Prcject. If a Subcontract Dispute cannot be resolved by the parties' designated representatives for the Project, no later than thirty 
(30) days after either party submits same In writing for resolution, representatives from executive management of the Contractor and 
the Subcontractor shall attempt to resolve the matter through additional good faith negotiations. If resolution cannot be reached within 
sixty (60) days by the parties' executive managers, the Subcontract Dispute shall be referred for resolution in accordance with Articles 
20(c) through 20(g). 

(b) Notwithstanding the existence of any Subcontract Dispute, the Subcontractor shall continue to dlllgenlly perform the Subcontract 
Work In accordance with the directions of the Contractor. Provided the Subcontractor has provided all applicable notices to the 
Contractor with respect to such Subcontract Dispute, the Subcontractor's contlnuect perfonnance of the Subcontract Work shall not 
prejudice to any right of the Subcontractor to contes~ dispute or challenge the relevant matter In accordance with the provisions of this 
Subcontract. 

(c) Should any Subcontract Dispute arise that Is related to a dispute between the OWner and the Contractor, such Subcontract Dispute 
shaM, at the election of the Contractor, be disposed of In the same manner, by the same mediator, arbitrator or arbitration panel, or the 
same court, at the same lime, and In the same proceeding as the dispute Is to be disposed of as between the Owner end the 
Contractor. 

(d) If a Subcontract Dispute: 

(i) has not been resolved pursuant to Article 20(a); or 

(ii) has not been referred to a dispute resolution procedure pursuant to an election made by the Contractor In accordance with Article 
20(c); 
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either party may by written notice to the other par.y refer the Subcontract Dispute to mediation. If either party refers a Subcontract 
Dispute to mediation, the parties shall within 14 days of such notice jolnUy appoint a mediator {the "Project Mediator"). 1f the parties 
fall to jolnUy appoint a Project Mediator within such 14 day period, either party may request a neutral appointing authority operating In 
the province of the Subcontract Work or, If appllcable, a Judge of the superior court of the Jurisdiction of the Subcontract Work, to 
appoint the Project Mediator and the Project Med ator so appointed shaU be deemed acceptable to the parties and appointed by them. 

(e) If a Project Mediator Is appointed, the parties she I submit their position regarding the Subcontract Dispute in writing to the Project 
Mediator and shall afford to the Project Mediator access to an records, documents and information the Project Mediator may request. 
The parties shall meet with the Project Mediator at such reasonable limes that the Project Mediator may request and shall, through 
the Intervention of the Project Mediator, negotiate In good faith to resolve the Subcontract Dispute. All proceedings involving a Project 
Mediator are agreed to be without prejudice and the cost of the Project Mediator shad be shared equally between the parties. 

(f) If a Subcontract Dispute has not been resolved within six months after the appointment of a Project Mediator, either party may by 
notice to the other party withdraw from the media~lon process. 

(g) Any Subcontract Dispute that: 

(I) ls not resolved pursuant to Article 20(a); 

(Ii) has not been referred to a dispute resolution procedure pursuant to an election made by the Subcontrador In accordance wilh 
Article 20(c); or 

(iii) has not been resolved through or as a result of a mediation 

shafl be rererred to and finally resolved by arbitration conducted by a single arbitrator In accordance with the appUcable commercial 
arbitration statute In force in the jurisdiction of the Subcontract Wor1<, unless the parties mutualy agree otherwise in writing. The 
award rendered by the arbitrator shall be final, an:j judgment may be entered upon it In accordance with applicable law In any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. The prevailing party stall be entitled to reasonable solicitor's fees and costs, and the arbitrator shall have 
the power to make such an award. 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. WCB Requirements 

Prior to commencing Work on the Project, and when requested by the Contractor, the Subcontractor shall provide a letter of 
good standing from the Worker's Compensation Board of Alberta. The Subcontractor must remain In good standing with the 
Worker's Compensation Board of Alberta for the duration of the Projec:. 

2. Utilfzation of Contractor Spill Kits 

The Subcontractor Is responsible for the reporting, clean-up and disposal of all spllled material(s) pursuant to applicable 
regulatory requirements. This Includes preventative measures as well for worker education/training. personal protective 
equipment and spill kit materials {when appllcable) prior to commencement of on-site work related activities. In the event that 
Contractor's Spill Kits are utlllzed by any Subcontractor, all costs associated with the replacement of spill kit materials will 
be paid to the Contractor by the Subcontractor. 

3. Shipping 

All material and equipment must be crated and/or bundled securely ror shipment AU materials shall be clearly Identified as 
to destination and are to be ready for shipment as directed on or before Sept 30, 2019. Total weights and description of 
materials are to be provided before goods are shipped. Provide contractor with copies of all detail shipping manifests at the 
following address: 
9 Ave Bridge SE (lngelwood}. 

4. Inclusions 

Performance Bond - Supplier 
The Subcontractor shall provide to the Contractor on behalf of their Su:ipller a Surety Association of Canada Performance 
Bond covering the amount of the Supplier cost made In favor of the Contractor or naming the Contractor as a dual oblige on 
said bond end be with a Bonding Company approved by the Contractor. If the Subcontractor falls to provide such bond, the 
Contractor may terminate the Subcontract preserving its' right to claim any damage it may be put to as a result thereof. This 
bond shall be signed and sealed by both the Supplier and the Bonding Company and returned with the signed copies of this 
Subcontract Agreement. The cost of the bond, without markup, is lnclu:fed In the Subcontract amount 

Labour & Materials Payment Bond - Supplier 
The Subcontractor shall provide to the Contractor on behalf of their Su:>pller a Surety Association of Canada Labour & 
Materials Payment Bond covering 50% of the amount of the Supplier cost made In the favor of the Contractor or naming the 
Contrac1or !SS a dual oblige on said bond and be with a Bonding Company approved by the Contractor. If the Subcontractor 
fails to provide such bond, the Contractor may terminate the Subcontract preserving its' right to claim any damage it may be 
put to as a result thereof. This Bond shall be signed and sealed by both the Supplier and the Bonding Company and 
retumed with the signed copies ofthis Subcontract Agreement. The cost of the bond, without markup, may be Invoiced by 
the Subcontractor to the Contractor. Subcontractor Is responsible for e'"lsurlng that It provides prompt written notice of the 
existence of the Labour & Materials Payment Bond to any potentlal beneficiaries under the such Bond. 

For greater clarity, Supplier's bond shall cover 50% of $3,700,000.00 representing the Supplier's alSt and the 
Subcontractor's bond shall cover 50% of the remaining Subcontract Price of $924,000. 

Performance Bond - North American 
As an extension to the performance bond verbiage under special cond11on 18, The Subcontractor shall provide to the 
Contractor on behalf of their Supplier a Surety Association of Canada Perfonnance Bond covering 50% of the balance of the 
contract (50% of $924,000.00) 

5. Supervision 

Pursuant to Article 11 (b), at all times, In connection with the performance of the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shall 
keep and employ at the Site a suitably qualified superintendent (the "Subcontractor's Superintendenr) who Is skilled, fluent 
In the English language, experienced and competent, who shaK be awilable at the Site at an times during the performance 
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of the Subcontract Work. Any explanations, orders, Instructions, directions and requests and nolices given by the 
Contractor shaU be well and sufficlenUy made or given to the Subcontractor when made or given to the Subcontractor's 
Superintendent. 

If, doong the performance of the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor's Superintendent is required to leave the Site for a 
perlod of time such that he cannot reasonably oversee the progress of the Subcontract Work, the Subcontractor shall notify 
the Contractor of the anticipated duration of the absence and, 1f deemed necessary In the sole and unfettered discretion of 
the Contractor, the Subcontractor's Superintendent shall appoint an acting Subcontractor's Superintendent to fulfill the 
duties of the Subcontractor's Superintendent during the anticipated absence from the Site. The Subcontractor's 
Superintendent shall, prior to leaving the Sile, deliver or cause to be delivered lo the Contractor the name of the person 
whom he or she nominates as the acting Subcontractor's Superintendent and shall not leave the Site prior to receiving kcm 
the Contractor acceptance of said nominee. 

6. Unit Prices 

Quantities of work are approximate only and final payments will be based on actual quantities as determined by Ciaran 
Curran. 

The following unit prices shall form part of this Subcontract: 
See unit rates in unit price breakdown 

7. Cleaning During Construction 

Each subcontractor shall be responsible for cleanlng up during and after installation of their materials, and shall leave areas 
'broom clean' daUy. 
Each subcontractor shall, at all times, assemble and remove their bulk debris from the site. In addition, one workman for 
each 10 people employed, or pro-rated portion thereof, shall be assigned to the contractor's clean-up crew one day per week 
for the duration of the subcontractor's lnstaftalion period. In lieu of the workman, arrangements may be made with the 
Contractor for use of their labour force for such clean-ups which will be chargeable to the subcontractor. 
Each subcontractor shaQ, upon request of the contractor, remove excess debris from the work areas within four working 
hours. Failure to so perform will result In the contractor having this work done at the subcontractor's expense. 

8. Schedule 

Time is of the essence; substantial completion by November 30, 2020 and ready for turnover to Owner. This subcontractor 
agrees to co-ordinate all work with the General Contractor's Master Schedule and add men, or work extra hours as required 
to meet this schedule. 

9. Hoisting 

The Subcontract price includes all holstlng necessary to carry out the work. 

10.Shop Drawings 

1 cople(s) ofshop drawings are to be submitted no later than June 15, 2019 to the attention of Mark Reid and Copy Ciaran 
Curran. The subcontractors shop drawings sha• complement the Issued for Construction Design drawings. Any exclusion or 
deviation from the Design drawings must be Identified and made very clear on the subcontractors shop drawings using 
highlighted notations and clouding. 

11 . Liquidated Carnages 

As the contract with the OWner Includes a provision of $2,000.00 per calendar day liquidated damage for late completion, 
your failure to meet the construction schedule for work ln your trade will result In backcharges to your account in such 
amount or as to such portion thereof as Contractor determines relates to Subcontractor's delays. 

12.Schedule and Delivery Oates 

An orders for materials should be placed and guaranteed delivery dates arranged to confonn wtth the schedule. Completion 
of your work must be carried out In such a manner as to cause no delay to the Project and in accordance with Contractor's 
progress schedule. The Supplier shaU be responsible for any additional costs or losses to Contraclor caused by any delays 
by the Supplier. 
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13.Subcontractor Agreement 

The Subcontractor agrees that there wlll be no work stoppages, work slowdowns, or any other forms of withdrawal of labour 
while the Subcontractor Is engaged In performing hfs subcontract on the work site. In the event employees of the 
Subcontractor engage In any work stoppages, work slowdowns, or any other forms of withdrawal of labour or disruptions 
whtle the Subcontractor rs engaged on the project, the Subcontract may be terminated within 48 hours by the Contractor, 
and the Subcontractor shall have no recourse against the Contractor, tie Owner, the Consultants, or any of their respective 
agents or employees. 

14.PCL Builders Agreement 

The Subcontractor acknowledges that the Contractor has appointed PCL Bulldets Inc. to act as Its agent In respect of 
certain aspects of this Subcontract and that either the Contractor or PCL Builders Inc. may provide Instructions, directions, 
notices, or fulfill other actions related to the Contractor's administration of, or execution of rights under, this Subcontract. 
The Subcontractor agrees to follow any such Instructions, directions, notices, or other actions given or performed by PCL 
Builders Inc. as though such Instructions, directions, notices, or other actions were given or performed by the Contractor. 

15. Insurance Requirements 5 Million 

In accordance with Articles of this Subcontract, the Subcontractor shall maintain at his expense: 
A. Public Llability and Property Damage Insurance with minimum limits of $5 million per occurrence. 
B. OWned Vehicle Insurance with minimum limits of S5 mlllfon. 
C. Non-Owned Vehicle Insurance with minimum llmlls of $5 mllllon. 
D. Equipment Insurance. 
Prior lo commencing Work on the Project, the Subcontractor shall furnish certificates of such Insurance lo the Contractor. 
The certificate shall Include the clause "The Insurer shall man to Contractor 30 days written notice of any malerlal change In 
or cancellation of these policies". The poHcles shall Include the Contractor as an Additional Insured and certificates Issued to 
the Contractor shall list the Contractor as an Additional Insured. 

16.Quallty Control Requirements 

It Is the responsibility of the Subcontractor to perform quality control co11ering all activitles, products, and services related to 
the execution of the products and services being provided. The Subcontractor must ensure compliance with the stated 
Project perfonnance requirements as well as compliance with the Intent of such requirements. The following terms form part 
of !his Subcontract 

a) Prior to commencing work the Subcontractor must submit a quality plan satisfactory to the Contractor. 

b) Quality control documentation must be presented to the Contractor, as a minimum, on a monthly basis. 

c) Notwithstanding Item (b) above, the Contractor Is to be notified immediately upon evidence of a non-conformance quality 
event. 

d) Before payment of a Construction Payment, all quality control documentation shall be presented to the Contractor. The 
applications for Construction Payments may be withheld at the discretion of the Contractor In the absence of this 
documentation. 

e) Non-conformance of an activity, product, or service win result fn withholding of funds until rectification or resolution of the 
non-conformance rs achieved. The funds withheld wilf be based on the Contractor's assessment of the value to rectify the 
non-conforming work. All non conforming work must be rectified or made acceptable to the Owner and the Contractor In a 
timely manner. 

f) Quallty control documentation Include specific documentation speclfb to each trade scope for material supplied (Including 
but not limited to testing of products) and the installation of that material, quality control plan, and any other documents that 
may be required to confirm the quality of products provided including irstallatlon. 

g) Quality control, procedures and Inspections must meet the requirements of the owner and the Contractor's OM System. 
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17. Performance Bond 

The subcontractor shall provide a Surety Association of Canada Perfonnance Bond covering 50% of the amount of this 
Subcontract made in favor of the Contractor and be with a Bonding Company approved by the Contractor. If Subcontractor 
falls to provide such bond, the Contractor may terminate the subcontract preserving its' right to claim any damage It may be 
put to as a result thereof. This bond shall be signed by both the Subcontractor and the Bonding Company and returned with 
the signed copies of this Subcontract Agreement. The cost of the bond Is Included In the Subcontract amount 

18. Textura® 

Article E1 is deleted and replaced with the fonowlng: 

The Subcontractor shall submit invoices, back up to lnvolcas, and all supporting documents required by the Contractor, 
including but not limited to those items specified In Articles 0(5) and E(2), in an electronic fonnat acceptable to the 
Contractor covering progress claims referencing this Project through the Textura«> Construction Payment Management 
(CPM'™) system ("Textura®") not later than the twenty-fifth day of the month in which materials were supplied or work 
performed. In the event invoices are received later than this, the Contractor may postpone payment to the month following 
that In which it would othelWise have been due, notwithstanding anything contained elsewhere in this Subcontract. The 
subcontractor ls responsible for all fees and costs associated with the use of Textura®. The Subcontractor agrees to enter 
into an agreement with Textura® with respect to the payment of fees for the use of Textura® and to pay such fees directly to 
Textura®. Fees, as of February 1, 2014, are specified In the table below: 

Subcontract (SC) 
Value Fee 

< $27,778 
$27,n8 - $1,388,889 

> $1,388,889 

$50 (min) 
0.18% of SC 
$2.500 (max) 

Fees are subject to change in accordance with the agreement between the subcontractor and Textura®. 

Articles E2(a) and E3 are deleted. 
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• 
PCL HSE MANUAL 
Leadership and Administration 
Standard HSE-15-0 I 

Project Specific HSE Plan Acknowledgement Form 

Project Name: 9th Avenue SE (Inglewood) Vehicle Bridge Replacement 

After reviewing the policies and practices as outlined in this plan, the company owner, site 
superintendent, on-site foreman, lead hands, and all trade contractors are to sign off this sheet. The sign­
off sheet must be returned to the PCL Project Manager, before commencement of work-related activities 
on the jobsite. 

I have read and 1mdersta11d this Project Specific Healtlz, Safety a11d Environmental Plan and will carry 
out my work within tlzese g1tidelines. 

Company Name: North American Steel Erectors 

Company Owner 

Name: Steeve Toupin 

• Signature. ~ 

Company Superintendent 

Name: Go:?J(J 
Si~ature:-02_!£ 
On Site Foreman 

Signature: --------------

December, 2012 
Rcv. 04 

Date: June 27. 2019 

Title: President 

Date: June 27. 2019 

Title: VP of Operations 

Date: ---------

Title: ---------

I - I 



August6,2019 

9912 - 107 Street 
PO Box2415 
Edmonton AB T5J 2S5 

PCL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT INC. 
288211 ST NE 
CALGARY AB T2E 757 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

Re: NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 
590 GRIFFIN RD E 
COCHRANE AB T 4C 2B8 

Email: ebuslness.support@wcb.ab.ca 
Tel: (7BO) 498.3999 (1·866-922-9221) 
Fax: (780) 498-7999 
wee website: www.wcb.ab.ca 

Reference Number: 2497809 

The above named subcontractor has an account with WCB-Alberta in the following industry(ies): 

account trade names(s)llndustry 

8093467 

ERECT-STRUCTURAL STEEL 

Self Storage Units 

effective date 

Jan 01 , 2017 

Oct20, 2018 

coverage 

worker coverage 
no personal coverage 

worker coverage 
no personal coverage 

Thank you for checking into the status of this contractor or subcontractor. Under Section 126 of the 
Workers' Compensation Act, you are responsible for obtaining a clearance on your contractor or 
subcontractor, in order lo release you from any liability for unpaid WCB premiums owed by them. Please 
ensure clearance has been issued in the correct name and that there is coverage in the industry(ies) for 
which work was performed. 

Please accept this letter as a clearance for work completed between the effective date of the account and 
the date of this letter. For this account, you are cleared of any liability under Section 126 of the Workers' 
Compensation Act up to the date of this letter. Any holdback may be released for contracts completed, 
and/or for work completed to the date of this letter. For an account that shows closed under the effective 
date, the clearance is only valid for work completed up to the close date. If work has not started, obtain a 
clearance prior to releasing final payment. 

Please note, if any directors of the corporation are injured at work, you are protected from lawsuit if they 
have personal coverage. If they do not have personal coverage, you may not be protected in the case of a 
workplace injury. 

If your contractor or subcontractor is performing work outside Alberta, contact the WCB in that jurisdiction 
to determine your clearance and any other WCB requirements. 

Any alteration of this document is strictly prohibited. 

SIGN UP FOR ONLINE SERVICES - GO TO MY.WCB.AB.CA 



- 2-

Yours truly, 

eBusiness Support Team (11246141) 
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This is EXHIBIT "D" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this~ 
day of Augu t, 2022. 

Province of Ontario 



• CONSmUCTION 

July 30, 2021 

Steeve Toupin, P.Eng, PE 
North American Steel Erectors, Inc. 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB 
T4C 2BB 

Re: glh Avenue (Inglewood) Bridge Replacement 
Notice of Default - Subcontract no. 463022 

Dear Mr Toupin: 

TOGETHER WE BUILD SUCCESS 

PCL Construction Management Inc. ("PCL ")writes to advise that North American Steel Erectors 
Inc. ("NASE") has failed to carry out the Subcontract Work pursuant to Subcontract no. 463022 
(the "Subcontract"). 

The nature of NASE's defaults of the Subcontract are as follows: 

(1) In accordance with Article 14(b), NASE has failed to meet the obligations required during 
the Cure Period or to respond to the notice of default issued on July 26, 2021 to address 
NASE's failure to carry on and complete the Subcontract Work in a prompt and diligent 
manner so as not to interfere with or delay the work of PCL or the work of any of its 
subcontractors pursuant to the Subcontract including but not limited to Article A of the 
Subcontract's Agreement and Article 1 (b) of the Subcontract's General Conditions (the 
"Schedule Default"). 

(2) Contrary to Article 14(a) of the Subcontract's General Conditions: (a) NASE is insolvent,; 
(b) NASE is adjudged bankrupt; (c) proceedings under the Companies' Creditors 
Arrangement Act or the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act have been initiated as of July 29, 
2021. (the "Insolvency Event of Default"). The Insolvency Event of Default allows PCL 
to immediately exercise the full spectrum of its legal rights against NASE including but 
not limited to those set out at Article 14(c) of the Subcontract's General Conditions. 

The Schedule Default and the Insolvency Event of Default shall here in after be collectively 
referred to as the "Subcontract Defaults"). 

As you are aware, pursuant to Article 6 of the Subcontract's General Conditions, PCL is entitled 
to be fully indemnified and held harmless from and against any losses or damages suffered by 
PCL (including but not limited to PCL's internal overhead and administration and legal costs) on 
account of the Subcontract Defaults or any other breaches of the Subcontract. 

Further, please be advised that PCL intends to call upon Performance Bond# MCS1150074, 
dated August 12, 2019, (the "Performance Bond*) provided by NASE (as Principal) to PCL (as 
Obligee) with Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company ("Trisura") (as Surety) as security in 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 
2882 11th Street NE 
Calgary, AB T2E 757 
Phone {403) 250-4800 www.pcl.com 



• TOGETHER WE BUILD SUCCESS 

CONSTRUCTION 

relation to the Subcontract (a copy of which is attached hereto for NASE's ease of reference). 
Pursuant to the Performance Bond, which guarantees NASE's performance of the Subcontract, 
PCL is entitled to recover all amounts which are, or may become, due and owing to PCL with 
respect to the Subcontract Defaults or any other breaches of the Subcontract. 

Pursuant to Article 12(b) of the Subcontract's General Conditions, PCL hereby provides written 
notice to NASE that PCL intends to exercise its contractual right to withhold payment from 
NASE to such extent as may be necessary to protect PCL from losses or damages on account 
of the Subcontract Defaults. 

As stated in Article F of the Subcontract's Agreement, Time is of the Essence for performing the 
Subcontract Work. As such, NASE's and Trisura's immediate attention to the Subcontract 
Defaults is required. Should you have any immediate concerns or queries, please feel free to 
contact me at any time. 

Kind regards, 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 

Sean Bush 
Sr. Project Manager 

SB 

cc: Mitch Beauchamp, Manager, Finance & Commercial Risk 
Connie English, Assistant Manager, Finance & Commercial Risk 
Keith Mitchell, Manager, Civil Operations 
Ciaran Curran, Project Coordinator 

Page 2 of2 
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This is EXHIBIT "E" referred to in the Affidavit 

of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this J.1..t= 
day of Augus~-L•...1.£.I.. 

Province of Ontario 
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CON51RUCTION 

July 30, 2021 

Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company 
333 Bay Street, Suite 1610 
Toronto, ON 
MSH 2R2 

TODETHER WE BUILD SUCCESS 

By Facsimile (514-845-6876) 
and Registered Man 

RE: Installation of Structural Steel for 9th Avenue Bridge Replacement, Calgary, Alberta (the 
"Project'') and the Contract (the "Contracr) between PCL Construction Management Inc. 
("PCL"} and North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE") dated June 1, 2019 and Performance 
Bond #MCS1150074 In the amount of $462,000 Issued by Trlsura Guarantee Insurance 
Company (the "Bond") 

To whom it may concern: 

Trlsura Guarantee Insurance Company (the "Surety") Issued the Bond (MCS 115007 4) on 
August 12, 2019. A copy of the Bond is attached hereto. 

NASE Is and has been declared by PCL to be In default of Its obllgatlons under the Contract. 
The Default Notice Issued by PCL to NASE Is attached hereto. PCL hereby claims under the 
Band noted herein and demands that the Surety respond In accordance with the terms of the 
Bond. 

We look forward to hearing from the Surety. 

Kind regards, 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 

Connie English 
Assistant Manager, Finance & Commercial Risk 

CE 
cc: Mitch Beauchamp, Manager, Flnance & Commercial Risk 

Keith Mltchell, Manager, Clvll Operations 
Sean Bush, Sr. Project Manager 
Claran Curran, Project Coordinator 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 
2882 11th Street NE 
Calgary, AB T2E 787 
Phone (403) 25D-4BOO www.pcl.com 



• CONSTRUCTION 

July 30, 2021 

Steeve Toupin, P.Eng1 PE 
North American Steel Erectors, Inc. 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB 
T4C 288 

Re: 9111 Avenue (Inglewood) Bridge Replacement 
Notice of Default - Subcontract no. 463022 

Dear Mr Toupin: 

TOGETHER WE BUILD SUCCESS 

PCL Construction Management Inc. ("PCL ") writes to advise that North American Steel Erectors 
Inc. ("NASE") has falled to carry out the Subcontract Work pursuant to Subcontract no. 463022 
(the •subcontract''). 

The nature of NASE's defaults of the Subcontract are as follows: 

(1} In accordance with Article 14(b), NASE has falled to meet the obligations required during 
the Cure Period or to respond to the notice of default Issued on July 26, 2021 to address 
NASE's failure to carry on and complete the Subcontract Work In a prompt and dlllgent 
manner so as not to interfere with or delay the work of PCL or the work of any of its 
subcontractors pursuant to the Subcontract including but not limited to Artlcle A of the 
Subcontract's Agreement and Article 1(b) of the Subcontract's General Conditions (the 
"Schedule Default"). 

(2) Contrary to Article 14(a) of the Subcontract's General Conditions: (a) NASE Is Insolvent,; 
(b) NASE Is adjudged bankrupt; (c) proceedings under the Companies' Creditors 
Arrangement Act or the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act have been Initiated as of July 29, 
2021, (the "Insolvency Event of Default"). The lnsblvency Event of Default allows PCL 
to Immediately exercise the full spectrum of its legal rights against NASE Including but 
not limited to those set out at Article 14(c) of the Subcontract's General Conditions. 

The Schedule Default and the Insolvency Event of Default shall here in after be collectively 
referred to as the "Subcontract Defaults"). 

As you are aware, pursuant to Article 6 of the Subcontract's General Conditions, PCL Is entitled 
to be fully indemnified and held harmless from and against any losses or damages suffered by 
PCL (Including but not limited to PCL's internal overhead and administration and legal costs) on 
account of the Subcontract Defaults or any other breaches of the Subcontract. 

Further, please be advised that PCL Intends to call upon Performance Bond# MCS1150074, 
dated August 12, 2019, (the "Performance Bond•) provided by NASE (as Principal) to PCL (as 
Obllgee) with Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company ("Trlsura") (as Surety) as security in 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 
2882 11th Street NE 
Calgary, AB T2E ts7 
Phone (403) 250-4800 www.pcl.com 



, • TOGETHER WE BUILD SUCCESS 

CONSlRUCTION 

relation to the Subcontract (a copy of which Is attached hereto for NASE's ease of reference). 
Pursuant to the Performance Bond, which guarantees NASE's performance of the Subcontract, 
PCL is entitled to recover all amounts which are, or may become, due and owing to PCL with 
respect to the Subcontract Defaults or any other breaches of the Subcontract. 

Pursuant to Article 12(b) of the Subcontract's General Conditions, PCL hereby provides written 
notice to NASE that PCL intends to exercise its contractual right to withhold payment from 
NASE to such extent as may be necessary to protect PCL from losses or damages on account 
of the Subcontract Defaults. 

As stated In Artlcle F of the Subcontract's Agreement, Time Is of the Essence for performing the 
Subcontract Work. As such, NASE's and Trlsura's immediate attention to the Subcontract 
Defaults Is required. Should you have any immediate concerns or queries, please feel free to 
contact me at any time. 

Kind regards, 

PCL Construction Management Inc. 

Sean Bush 
Sr. Project Manager 

SB 

cc: Mitch Beauchamp, Manager, Finance & Commerclal Risk 
Connie English, Assistant Manager, Finance & Commercial Risk 
Keith Mitchell, Manager, CMI Operations 
Claran Curran, Project Coordinator 
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Bond No. MCS1150014 (the "Bond") 
Bond Amowit $482,0Do.oo (Ille "&nd Amount') 

Performance Bond 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC 11 Principal (lhe "P~nc:lper) end Trlsun Gusrant.11 ln1uranc::e 
Compny a COlpOraUon cnt•ltd and ~ undlf the laws of Canada and dutv eulhorlzod to trwn11ct lhe bullnote 
or Sul'lltyahlp In Canada as Surely (the 'Surely") ara held end llml!v bound unto PCL ConstrucUon Manag1t11Wnt 
Inc. as Obllgea (Ille "Oblgee") Ill the ernount or Four Hundred SlxtY,-TWo T11ou1and And 001100 Dollars 
($482,000.00) lawfi.11 money of Canada for lhe p11y11111nt of which .um Ille P~nclpal and the Suraty bind 1t1em1elvu, 
their hel111, execulonl, admlnlslnltol'll, 8\ICCeeaors 1nd asslgna, Jointly and save111lly. 

WHEREAS, the Prlnclpal mltanld Into a written contract (the 'Conner) with the Obffgee, deted this 1st dey of June, 
In the yur 20111 l"1lr INSTALLATION OF STRUCTURAL STEEL FOR 8TH AVENUE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT, 
CALGARY ALBERTA. 

The tord1lon of Ihle obliga11on Is IUCh that II the Prlndpal ehaD promplly and falthfuly perfcnn the Contract lhen lhls 
obllg1Uon ehaD be nul and void; otherw!M It shall remain In full fDrce and •lf•cl .. 

I· P11-D11m1nd Con~{!nce 

Prior to a Demand (as defined In Sectlon It 3) below) under 11111 Bond, t~ Obllgee mey nolll'y the Surety and the 
Prlnc:lpal In ~Ung that It 19 conslder1~ dllClarlng the Prlnc\pal lo ba In derautt undar th• Contract and n1quaat a pr.­
demend c:on1'lrllnce (Iha "Pre-0.rnand Confnnce1. Upon ~ of such request Ula surety and Prtnclpal shal 
panlcipllte In a Pre-Oemlllld ConfelWIC:e mae&ng or telephone con'9rance can, ori • WlthOUt pn1Judlce buts, wtlh the 
Ob!lg88 which lhalt be 1rranged by Iha Suraty and held II a mulually agreeable tlmo end pl•ce not i.ter then ftftean 
(1S) calendlll' d11Y11 after receipt or such notice, 111118':1 olherw!" mu!/Jaly agnitd lo. by uch of Iha Obllgte, SU111ty 
ind Ptlnclpll. 

The purposa of th• p,.oemand Confertnce la to elloW tht ObUg1111 to 1xpra11 Ila concems about the PrlndpaJ'e 
performence punuant ta tha Coner.ct and to elow lhe P"'1dpal to ratpOnd to II/Ch c:oncema ptlor 1o 1111 Ollllgee 
1mrc1Alg b rights under Iha, CanlJKt or thlt Bond. It •hould not be c:ollltnlacl as 1n alt1m1dve to any dapule 
n1soluUon pmislone which may appear ti the Conlntcl Nllllher the parllclpallon by any party In the Pra-Oem1111d 
C1?f1rettnca, nor any llatemeot or poaltlon taken by any party dwfng the Pre-Demand ConfBntnce or any foDovt.up 
PiiHlemand Confaranca, mey be nilled on by any Olher pa~ as 11 WlllVer or compromlaa or lh11 rlghla ot dUlk!lis of the 
Obllgte, the Surety orlhe PMclpel under Iha Conlnld, thlt Bond orappllcable law. . . 
II• Cond!t!ont Pl'!lSiedent to Y•blllty 

The Surety 11181 hava na llablllty und« this Bond un!esa 1111 of the fallowing conditions pieced11nt (the •conclllons 
Pn1c:eden!') have been 1alls11td: · 

1. The PMdpll It, and 18 declarld by the ObOgee lo be, In defa~ under lht Contract: and 
2. The Obllgee has padonned 1he Ob•gee'a obllgatlons under I.ha Contract; and 
ii. The Obllgee hu made 11 Dernend under the Bond. In lhl1 Bond, "Demand" maane a clur end unequlvocel 

Wllltan llatemant by lhe ObQgea, delvered lo Ila S1nty In ea:orclence \"11th Sec11on XI below, that 1111 
Pllndpel le In default of Ila Gbllgatlona under ht Connet and requeatlng flat the Sunil)' rulfil Ill oblgetlofl• 
under Ihle Bond; end , 

4. The ObOgee llu agn11d to inaka available Iha Balance of Iha Contract Price lo Iha Suraty In accatdance 
wMh Che mm. and oondlllonl ot Iha COnlract. In this Bond, "Bala~ of the Contr.lct Price" m118DI the -1 
amount pay.hie by the Ob{lgee to Iha Prtnqml under Ille ConlzacC leas !he ernounl propedy paid by Ille 
Ob!lgH to the Prlndpal. 

111- SL!l'!lll! lnvesSlqaUon and Resaon11 

Upon receipt or a Demand fnxn Iha Obllgae, the Sun1ty •hell be anUUad to 11 niucnabla lime 'lllthln whk:h to conduct 
an lnva1lgldon of the Demand and dellnnl1111 la bblllty under tho Bond, If any. Within ive (6} buaklell1 days of 
receipt of tl'e D1111and lhe Suraty ahaH BCkncw.iadga receipt of the Oamend In writing 111d raquaet from Iha ObllgM 
Iha Information and documantaaon Iha surety shell requln1 to complela Its lnvestlgaUon (Ille 'lnrormalon") end access 
lo 1he Illa whenr the work II b91ng per1brlned, f nec:eaary. Upon l'llCelpt d bl SUrety'a adal~t, bl 
Oblgee lhaB promptly piovlde the requealad Information and Ille access to the Suraty. 

Upon receipt of all the rnro1111atlon, and completlon of the Ill• viii!, If required, Ille Sllfaty ehaH have lwenty-0011 (21) 
celllll!lar day• to complete 111 lnvlsllgatlon end acMso the OblJg.e, In Wl'ilrG, of Ill poeltlon on llabllty pureuant to 1111 
llond and ID chooae en option for dfac:tuuvlng lb obllgdort heieunder, If eppioprlete. In the event ltlat thll Surety I• 
Uneble to complelt tta lnvesl!g1Uon end lllka a pgs111on on Debility wllhln 8UCh twenty.one (21) calendar daye n shall 
write tot.,. ObUgee prior lo Iha oplraUon of 1uc:h lwenty.one (21) calendar day• and provide the Obllgea with en 
updlllll which Mb out lie llatua of !he Slnty'• in...atlga11on and Iha Surety'• astinate bf 'llilen !he lnvaatlgallOll wil 
be campltllld Incl ID poe!llon dellven1d to the Ob!lgoa. ln Iha -nt that the Suraty denies that It has any Ullbllty 
pursuant to lhla Bond, lhe St1n1ty 1hall axpleln Its railsons 1hen1ror to the Obflg1111 In writing. 

IV· Ememency R•!Dtdlal Acuon by Iba ObHq11 

rr dutlng the time the SUrety 18 lnvutlgatlng a Demand, cktunslances dctate that the Obllgae mu1t underleM 
tmaigtncy l1lm9dlal work whk:h ta noceeeary lo: 

1) ensure pub!lo nfety; or • 
b) PfM81Y8 orprulac:t Iha work under the Contract from deterlor11tlon or damage, 

fie Obllgae may, acting with due dDlgence 1111d upon giving written nollca to-Iha Surety, under1ake !lllCh emergency 
remedla! wolil provided that 

... ' 



1, reasonablo coall lncurrud by the Obllg1111 In Unclerlaklng 1uch am91gency remedial work lhall be relmburHd 
by Ille Surety In accontance with Iha 18111111 and condlllona of this Bond and subject to tlw Pitnclpal'a default 
and the SUl'tey'a lab!Uty belllQ IUbsequenttf establlnd. Atrt paymenta made by tlw &nty In reapect of 
such 'Miik ahal bm part of b oblgaClon lftler lhla Bond and shal r8duc:8 Iha Bond Amount by dlll amount 
of any audJ p:iymen!s; and 

2. any 1uch emergency r.medlal work ahllll be llmll9d ID WOik which Is wllhln Iha so::ipa or Iha Contrecl and 
• which b raa1onably required lo millll•t• the pot1111llal coell or dama9a1 ol Iha ObllgH In the dn:umstance•: 

and . 
3. l1IY such 1m1rgency temtdW wane 111 .. be undertaken without Pl'llUCl1Ce Ill tie l19htl of Iha Obllgee, the 

Pflnclpal or the &Qty under Iha Conlract, this Bond or eppllcable laW. 

V • Paat.Dem!Qd C90fmnea 

Falowlng a Demand, the SU181y and the Principal lhaltplllllclpalll In a mealing or leleph- c:anferunca cal (Iha 
'Poat Demand Confet9nce") wtlll lhe Obtlge9, on a INllhcnt pr8fudlce basis, which shall be ll1'allged by Iha Surety 
Ind htfd llf a mutualtf ugninble tma end P- DOI later tl*l ten (10) Clllend9r dllyw afttr nlQlpt Of the Demand, 
unlna atheiwlla mutually agl9ed 1D by the Oblgee and the Surety. . 

Tllo pwpote ol lh• Pott Demand Confarenca lllall be to detennln• what 111111adlll 1cllon, Ir any, Iha Obllg11 b11Rev11 
must ba fak1n v.Hla the Sw.ty 11 conducllng 1111n11111tlg1tlon. Jfthe Obllgoa reuanably baUtw1 th11t Iha wotk arth• 
COnlnld must proceed ror tha benlft\lprolect!on of Iha Pn>Jecl l1Y8IWI and In mlUgellon ti lll1Y demagu Iha Obllgoa 
Intends to ll8lk A'om Iha &nty heminder, while the Surely Is conducllng Is mstlglllon !Pl provide• reasonable 
8Yldenc::e th9l90f 10 Iha Su191y, Iha Obllgee mey engage an epproptlata conlnlc:tot(a) to c:onllntJG Iha work ar Iha 
Conltact (Iha 'Remedlal Work") subject ID Iha follow!ng condition•: 

1. Iha ObUgae •haD pay Iha aoell or Iha Rem11dlal Work on tann• th• lll!Da aa or sfmllar to lhoee of the 
Connet: 

2. lhll Oblgea shlll knp llP8'111a records of d -a ralll8d to the Remedial Work It Intends lo -lt a 
dlllllllgU frolft Iha Slllllly henlwldtr, and 

3. the OblgM lhell allow Vie &nly and.lar Ill -llanl(•) 1c:ce1111 lo tha Ptofect dut1ng the counia of Iha 
Ram•dl•t Wolk ror Iha purpon or p111111111fng avtd1nc11 ind monHDllng the plllllf9CS al Iha Remedlal Work. 

Ir !he Surely objects to any pelt of the Remaclal Work, lnckdng without Dnjlatlon Iha Obllgae'1 propo1ed eompJaUan 
CXltlltaclol(1), It still lrnmadatel)' acMle the Oblg9e In writing ot Its cbJedlon- and the RIUOlll therefor. The 
Obllgee 1118Y st111 pnxeecl 1111'1 lhe Ram8(1al Wodt and lhe &nly'1 ~ ..ti be addrealed OmJugh negolla11on 
v.1th lhl ~or at the b1al af any lldlan b!Qughl p111S11ant lD thl• Bond. 

The reascnabla cosla lnCl.mld by Iha Obllgu In undertaking Iha Ramacllal Work -11d be ralmbuned by Iha Surety In 
accori!anc:e with th• temm ind condition• of1hlo Bond subject lo Iha Princlpa1'1 default and the Su19tY'• labllti being 
IUbMquently allablllhed. AIT'f peyments lll8lhl by tie Slnely In respec:t of Iha RllMdll wen 11181 ronn part of b 
abllgatlan under lhlt Bond and ehal r8duce the Bond Amount by Illa amount of any IUCh paymenls. 

So long 11 Iha Oblgee has attend ad a Poat Demand Conference and othaiwlse compUad with all of th• condKlona of 
lhll Bond !he Obllgea may procaad with Iha Remedlal Work and Iha SUfl!ly ahlll not raise the mere fact that the 
Rlmadlal Work proc1eded as 1 d1renc1 to any c:tal'!' by Iha Obllgea h11BUnder. 

Neither Iha perOdpatlon In tho Poat.·Demand Canteraoce. nor eny llatemant or po~ taken by ll"9t S*'Y dultng 
lie Poll-Oemlnd Confanlnc:e or any follow.ilp Post-Oamencl Conl9raoc;a, lhal be tan.d on by an)' other party • a 
waNar or compromln Df Iha rlghll or dut!ea or any Iha Oblgae, Iha Slftty or the Pmcipal uidar the Contract or lhw 
Bond. • 

VJ. Suntv'a oStlon• 

FOUOYl'1g the ~plelfon of the 6wely'1 lnYodgetfon, If the Conditions Prec:edent haYa been satlttlld by Iha Oblgte· 
and the Stnly has accepted llabllly pursuant to this Bond, aubftet to Sectlona VII and VIII below, the Surety shall 
promptly: 

L remedylhedllfault;or 
2. compln the Cailnlct In accordance Vtilh Its tlnns and candltlons; or 
l . obtain a bid or bids for lllblnllSlan 111 the OblJgea rot complttlng Iha COnnct In aaiordanca Win b lerma 

and conditions encl upon delermin•llon by tha 00~ and the Surety or the loweat re11>D11albl1 bidder, 
ar111n1111 fOr • contr.lct belv.9en 111ch bidder and the Obllgea Md m•kl avaUable 11 Wirt progresses (av1n 
lllO\lllh thera lhould be a daflurt, ar a 1uccasslan of defllulta, under Iha c:onltact or col'ltracll of compl16on, 
a1111nged under this pa111giaph) sutllclant fUnda to comple\I the Pr1nclpel'1 obllgatlonl In accord111C11 v.lth the 
lemll 8nd COlldlllon af the Contr8tt 11111 to pay tJ\oae upensea lnaumld by the Oblgee aa a relull of th• 
Ptfnclpal'a cWaul\ relellng dlradly to the pedonnance Of thll WOik under the CoNtxt, IHI the BUnc:e al th• 
Contract Pdce; ar 

' 4. pay tho ObOgee tho t111er of: (1) Iha Band Amoun~ or (2) !he Obllgea'a propb1111d c:ast of completion 1 .. 1 
the Belance of Conlnlct Price. 

VII• Um!taqon on 1he Stlretv'• Uab!litv 

Notwithstanding anything to Ille conlraty c:ont11nad In lhll Bond or In lhe Contract, the Si.nty shaQ not be llabla fDr a 
11111ot1r1um thin the Bond Amoc.nt under any .:ln:umatanca. 

In !he province of Qu6bec, lhe CXJYefBllll period af lhla Bond begins at Iha date of commancamtnl of Illa Canlnlcl 
WOllt and and• two (2) yea,. foaowtng aa;eptanca ot such WOik pursuant to Mlcle 2110 m Iha CMl Code. Only 
defaulta decllnld by ht ObllgM In writing to 11'9 Pilndpal oomg suc11 peilod shal be l\lbject lo coverage under thll 
Bond. • 



'Jlll· Commencement ofAcUon 

II ls a ccndlUon or !his Bond llllt any atilt or acllan mUlt be cammancad befora the lllCplraUon of lwo (2) yelllll from 
Illa earllw or : (1) Iha data or Sublllantlcil Parformoinca of the Conlrad N delioecf In Iha Pen leglslatlon \W\ero the 
work under lhe Contnict Is taking pl-, or, tr no such deftnlllon exlalS, the dale wt'IOl1 tile WOik la ready for use ot Ill 
being uaed tbr the purpose Intended, or (2) the dal9 on which the Principal b declared In default by the Obllgae, 

IX- R!aht of ,Action 

No right or acllon ahall accrue on Ihle Bond ta or for the use or eny pelWOll or cotporallon Olhlr lhao Ille Obllgea 
named herein, or the hell1, aeculo!8, lldmlnltValols or lllOC9aacn DI the Obllgee. 

x. HudlnQ! for R•ferrnce On!v 

The heeding• and rol'erencea to them In Ulla l!bnd 11111 for convenience only, shall not consUtule a part of this Bond, 
and WI not be takBn Info canalderatlon In the lnllMpfelallon DI lllls Bond. 

XJ. Notice• 

All Demlllde and notices Ulldlr this Bond llhaN be dellvered by ra~Ue and reglttared man at 1111 addresses 111 out 
blllow. All other cam11pond1nce may ba dlllMltad by ony or faoslmlla, nigular mall, niglate:ed man, emall or courier 
at the al!dlassas Ht out below. · 

The Surety: 
Trilu111 OUlllalllH ll\IUl'lnc:e Company 
333BaySlntet,SUha161D 
Toronto, ON M5H 2R2 
Fax: 1114-845-8878 
Elnel: ua~.com 

Tha Principal: 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC 
182 BON RIDGE OR. 
COCHRANE, AB T4C 1V1 
Fax: NIA 
Emal: f!OuolnAnHtefltr!C!q!,COfD 

ThaObllga: 
PCL C~on Management lno. 
2882 11 Slreet NE 
Calgary, AB T2E 787 
Fax: NIA 
cok!tMQnl!!cllfmpCl,C91D 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Iha Prlndpll llld Iha Surety have Signed and Saaled Olis Bond Ills Ulh day or AUpt ~ 

lhay11r201s. 

Wltnasslld by: , 

I~ 

Trlaura Guarantee ln1uran1» Company 

By: . • ~ •• (seal} 
Name:uarie 
Altomey-ln-Fact 

' 
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This is EXHIBIT "F" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this 11..!: 

-z 
day of Au . " 2. 



OocuSign Envelope ID: FOB500.A3-4E50-49CE-9598-FA3ABEIMD14 

INVOICE I APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
Contractor. N.JJrth American SteeLEceclomJnc 

'160_Grtflin ranch road 
Cochrane Alberta_T4C2Bli 

Sent To: PCL Construction Mananemenllnc.. 
Project 9th AllaSE VehlclltBiid<Je Reolacement 

9A~OverElbow River. Caloarv. Alberta T2G 4K8 

Original Contract Amount: 

Approved Change Orders: 

Gross Contract Value: 

Gross Amount Claimed to Date: 

Less Gross Amount Claimed Previously: 

Gross Amount this Claim: 

Less Holdback at 0.00 % 

Net Amount This Claim: 

$4,648,509.00 

$1.922.106.05 

$6.5Z_Q.6-'l5.05 

$5,427,916.66 

Sfi.386.399.16_ 

Add GST/HST at 5.00 % (GST/HST # 739358497RTOOO:I): 

Invoice Total: 

Holdback Summary: 

Total Holdback to Date: 

Less Holdback Released: 
Holclback Retained: 

Submitted by the Contractor 

Steeve Touoln .. President 
Name and Tiile of person Signing 

~ -$:' 
..::. 

$459,571.13 

$386.096.47 
$'l3AM._6_6_ 

Slu»t..~ 
Signature 

Sub Invoice #: 00483022QS.JUL2021-49 
GC Invoice#: 004630220S-JUL202.1-49 
Invoice Date: .,,.0""71._.1 .... 612,,...0,..21....._ _______________ _ 

Period Covered: From: 07/01/2021 To: 07/1 B/2021 
subcontraa#: ~0~04630 ....... ~220,,_.~s.._ ______________ _ 
Prefect#: 04004-63 

.82.§.1_% Complete 

$41,516.90 

$0.00 

$41,516.90 

$2.075.84 

S43_.592_. 7 4 
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DocuSlgn Envelope ID: FOBSODA3-4E50-49CE-9598-FA3ABE9AAD14 

Continuation Sheet· North American Steel Erectors Inc 
APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT. containing 
Contractor's signed certification ls attached. 
In tabolallons below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar. 
Use Colurm I on Contracts where holdback for Ane items may apply. 

A I B I c I D E 
WORK COMPLETED 

FROM 
ITEMNO. I DESCRIPTION OF WORK I CONTRACT I PREVIOUS 

AMOUNT APPLICATION THIS PERIOD 

(D+E) 

,.s. 1 steelAn:hRlbCIXBradng $1,640,361.45 $1,640,361 .45 $0.00 

'.!5.2 GallrAn:hTieBeams $501,828.03 $501,828.03 $0.00 

'.!5.3 SteelAn:flRlbCIZBraclng $26,100.78 $26, 100.711 $0.00 

.5.4 SAi ArchRlbCladdgPanel $46,064.80 $46,064.8D $0,00 

.5.5 SAi Arch Cross Bracing $23,720.6 $23,720.60 $0.00 

.!5.8 GalvSleelDllElamSlrlngt $2,095,356.84 $2,095,358.64 $0.00 

1.5.7 SteelDec:lcSeamS1rlnge $78,302. $78,302. $0. 

1.S.8 SAi GalvSteeJArchHangr S193,098.3 $193,098. $0.00 

.5.9 SAi CoalSteelPlleHangr $19,168.85 $19,166.85 $0.00 

1% PeifBond.Shleldlndustry $14,95D.O ' $14,950.00 . $0.00 

'% lbMalBond-Shieldlndustry $6,325.00 $6,325.00 ·so.ao 

% PerfBond-NAStllelEntdols $3,234. $3,234.00 $0.00 

$4,648,509. $4,648,509. SO.DO 

$75,000. $75,000. $0.00 

,3 ElectrlcalCondultAddnSc:op• I $7,106.05 $7,106.05 $0.00 

to complela steel $1,540,000.00 $355,784.71 $41,516.90 

$300,000.00 $300,000.00 $D.OO 

S1,922, 106.05 $737,890.76 $41,516.90 

GRAND TOTALS I $41,516.90 

~ 
~ 

~ 

F G 

MATERIALS TOTA!. 
PRESENTI.Y COMPLETED 

STORED AND STORED 
(NOTIN TO DATE 
DORE) (D+E+F) 

$0.00 $1,640,361.45 

SO.OD $501,828.03 

SO.OD $26,100.78 

$48,064.80 

$23,720.llO 

$2.095,3$.84 

$78,30 

$0.00 $193,098.30 

SO.OD $19,186.85 

$0.()p $14,950.DO 

$0.0 $6,325.00 

$0.0 $3,234.00 

$0. $4,648,509.00 

$0. $75,000. 

$0. $7,106.05 

$0. $397,301.61 

$300,000.00 

$779,407.M 

so. $5,427,916.66 

% 
(G•C) 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100. 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100. 

100.0% 

25.8% 

100.0% 

40.5% 

82.6% 

APPLICATION NO: 49 

APPLICATION DATE: 07/20/2021 
PERIOD TO: 07/16/2021 

PROJECT NAME: 9th Ave SE Vehlde Bridge 
Replacement 

H I J I K 

BALANCE HOLDBACK I NET AMOUNT 
TOANISH HOl.DBACK 

RELEASED 
THIS TO DATE 

(C·G) PERIOD (G • I) 

$0. $0.~ $1,640,36VISI 

$0.00 $0.00 $501,828.03 

$0.00 SO.DO 

$0.00 I 
so.ool 

$0.00 so.co 
$39,316.60 

$6,056. $'72.245 . .' 

$15,969.34 $0.00 $177,128.961 

$0.00 $1,754.81 $0.00 $17,412-041 

$0,00 $1,495.00 $0.00 
! 

' $13;455.00 

$0.00 $532.50 $0.00 $5,692.50 

$0.00 $323.40 $0.00 $2,910.60, 

$0. $65,54 $0 $4,582,960..71 

$0.00 $7,500. so $67,500. 

$0.00 $428.36 $0.00 $6,679.691 

$1,142,698.39 so.oo $0.0D $397,301.611 

SO.DO $0.00 $0.00 $300,000.00 

$1,142,698.39 $7,926.36 $0.00 $771,-481.30 

$1,14Z.fi86.39 $73,474. $D.OO SS,354,442.00 
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This is EXHIBIT "G" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this I J V>-­
day of ugu t, O 

, I~ 

sioner for Oaths in and for the 
Province of Ontario 



Back charges I cost to complete NASE subcontract 

Item DescrlpUon Cost Incurred to Cost to Complete Total Cost 
Data 

Supreme Steal LP (Fabrication) $ 446,578.19 s 753,421 .81 $ 1,200.000.00 

Supreme Steel LP (Remediation of Steel required 
$ 50,0Q0.00 $ 50,000.00 

from NASE's direction) 

Testing/ Inspection - Nortech NOT $ 65,000.00 $ 65,000.00 

Metallzlng • Park Derochle s 256,554.00 $ 258,554.00 

Painting - Park Derochle $ 105,000.00 $ 105,000.00 

Galvanltlng- Dam Galvanizing $ 50,000.00 $ 50,000.00 

Machining - SPM Oii & Gas $ 169,500.00 $ 169,500.00 

Machining missing pins -TBD $ 5,000.00 $ s,000.00 

3rd Party Engineering for Erection Planning $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 

3rd Party QC Inspections I Shop Supervision $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 

survey I Trlal flt costs $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 

Installation I Erection Bridge $ 1,200,000.00 $ 1,200,000.00 

Palntlng/Metallzlng Touch ups (followlng Install) $ S0,000.00 $ so.000.00 

Trucking I Crane estimate to transport steel to $ 400,000.00 $ 400,000.00 
site 

Allowance for fabrication of missing steel $ so,000.00 $ 50,000.00 

Additional bolts for erection $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00 

PCL supervision of Supreme fa brlcatlon $ 20,000.00 $ 20.000.00 

Equipment/Tent Rental $ s,soo.oo $ 8,500.00 

Steel retrieval from NASE storage yard $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 

PCL direct cost for heating & hoarding $ 200,000.00 $ 200,000.00 

Legal Fees $ 40,000.00 $ 40,000.00 

PCL General Expense for Delay $ 225,000.00 $ 225,000.00 

LD's - Interim Operational Date $2,000/Day to $ 350,000.00 $ 350,000.00 
max $350,000 {revised Nov 30, 2021) 
LD's ~Scheduled 0 peratlonal Date $2,000/0ay to $ 250,000.00 $ 250,000.00 
max $250,000 (revised June 06, 2022) 

$ 446,578.19 $ 4,344,975.81 $ 4, 791,554.00 
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This is EXHIBIT "H" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this~ 
day oJ.A , 2022. 

Province of Ontario 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Kim, Eugene <Eugene.Kim@Trisura.com> 
April 22, 2022 6:46 AM 
CALACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE@PCLCOM 
Trisura Guarantee Insurance EFT Transfer Notice 

• TRISURA 
This Is a notice to confirm that $462,000.00 will be deposited into your bank account via electronic fund transfers on 

4/22/2022 from Trisura Guarantee Insurance Company. The following details are related to the deposit: 

Invoice#: 

Amount: 

Paid Date: 

Payee Name: 

18APR2022 

$462,000.00 

4/22/2022 

PCL CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT INC. 

Thi< nm~il mcs~nen i< lnlenolerl for lhe usr. of lho ltocllultlu•I or r.nlity lo whl1h 11 ls :1ddrr.s<cd and mav uml:iio informall11n that I< conlhlc11tlal. If you ore nol rho inrcndotl 

recipient, you arc noliFictl thol any use, lll<1riliutlnn or copyinc 111 this cnmmuulc~tlnn h >lrictly prohlhilcd. ti ynu h~ve retcivcd this rommunicallon h1 ciror, plea"' 11olify 

the senucr antl cra'e this email mcssacc Immediately. 

This emijil tommunlcallon w~s sent by Trlsura Actounlln& faccountln1!!!rlsu"".com), 333 Ony ~!reel, 5ultc 1610, Toronto, ON, M5fl 2R2 

1 
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This is EXHIBIT "I" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this~ 
day 

Province of Ontario 



DBPR202 

TRISURA GUARANTEE INSURANCE COMPANY 
TRISIJOOOlC 

FILE CREATION NO . : 0405 

BANK OF MONTREAL 

DIRECT ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE 
LIST OP TRANSACTIONS ON FILE 

REC. TRAN VALUE 
TYPE TYPE DATE AMOUNT DEST . INST ACCOUNT # PAY . NAME 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

RUN DATE : APR 21 , 2022 

CROSS REFERENCE RBT. INST / AC<.'1' 
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This is EXHIBIT "J" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this~ 
day of Au st, 2022. 

/,/ 

Province of Ontario 



District of: 
Division No. 
Court No. 
Estate No. 

Alberta 
02 - Calgary 
25-095246 
25-095246 

All notices or corresJIOIJPence regard! 
tr r.s~ ... . (,. """' ..... '4 

FORM31 l36 
Proof of Cla'm I Proxy 

In lhe Maller of the Bankruptcy of 
North American Sleel Erectors Inc. 

-.
1 

In lhe ~tter.ol ~an.!ruplqOf North American Sleel Erectors Inc. of the town of Cochrane In the Province of Alberta and lhe claim of 
, .,.,l.-. ~ ~creditor. - ("'" T-1'),.,.... -r) 

I, · , of lhe city of a creditor In the above mailer, hereby appoint 
______________ _, of lo be my proxyholder In the above 
mailer, except as to tho receipt of dividends (with or without) power lo appoint another proxyholder In his or her place. 

I, S-..J.,,,..j IJ•h') (name of creditor or representative of the creditor), of the city of -t"o-.J. In the 
province of ~~ do hereby certify: 

1. That I am a creditor of the above named debtor (or I am V f C 4,~ (posllion/lilfe) of --r;.,_..._ 
creditor). 

2. That I have knowledge of all the circumstances connected with the claim referred lo below. 

,3, Thal the debtor was, at the date of bankruptcy, namely the 29th day of July 2021, and stiU Is, Indebted to the aecl.lor In the sum of 
$ .) O O 09" · 0 <i , as specified In the statement of account (or affidavit or solemn dedaratlon) attached and marked Schedule •A•, 
after dedu'cllng any aiunterclalms to which the debtor ls entitled. (The a!lached slalement of accounl or affidavil must specify the vouchers or other 
evidence In support of the claim.) 

4. (Check and complete appropriate category.} 
Cl A. UNSECURED CLAIM OF$ ______ _ 

(other than as a customer contemplated by Section 262 of !he Acl) 

That In respecl or this debl, I do not hold any assets of the debtor as security and 
(Check appropriate descripllon.) 

Cl Regarding the amount of$ I claim a right to a priority under section 136or1he Acl. 

Cl Regarding lhe amount of$ , I do not claim a right lo a priority. 
(Set 0111 on a11 al/ached slzeet details lo support priority claim.) 

Cl 8. Cl.AIM OF LESSOR FOR DISCLAIMER OF A LEASE$'---------

Thal J hereby make a claim under subseclion 65.2(4) of the Act, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give/111/ particulars of the claim, including the calc11lations upon which the claim is based.) 

s:Y' C. SECURED Cl.AIM OF$ S Dt;. cJIJo. Oo . 

That In res peel of this debt, I hold assels of the debtor valued at$ ff as security, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give full parlicu/ars of the security, lnclud/ng the date on 1vhfch the security was given and the value at which you assess Iha security, and 
attach a copy of the securilydocumenls.) 

Cl D. Cl.AIM BY FARMER, FISHERMAN ORAQUACULTURIST OF$. ______ _ 

Thal' I hereby makeadalm·under subsec\lorr8t2(1 )·otthe·Actforthirunpaid·amount-of$. _____ - -_:-_------------
(Attach a copy of sales agreement and delivery receipts.) 

Cl E. CLAIM BY WAGE EARNER OF $, ______ _ 

Cl That I hereby make a claim under subsection 81 .3(8) of lhe Act Jn the amount of$, ___ _. 

Cl That I hereby make a claim under subsection 81.4(8) of the Acl In the amount of$ __ _ 

0 F. CLAIM BY EMPLOYEE FOR UNPAID AMOUNT REGARDING PENSION PLAN OF $'---------

Cl That I hereby make a claim under subsection 81.5 of Iha Act In the amount of$ __ _ 

Cl Thal I hereby make a daim under subsection 81 .6 of the Act in the amount of$ __ __. 

Cl G. CLAIM AGAINST DIRECTOR$ __ _ 

Page 1 of2 



ru"~ ,) 1/,)0 - \,UllUUUW 

(To be complelod when o proposal provides for the compromise of cfalms against directors.) 
That I hereby make a claim under subsection 50(13) of the Acl, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give fun parlicu/ars of the claim, including Iha calculations upon which tho claim is based.) 

D H. ClAIM OF A CUSTOMER OF A BANKRUPT SECURITIES FIRM$ __ _ 

That I hereby make a claim as a customer for net equity as contemplated by sectlon 262 of the Act, particulars of whlch are as follows: 
(Give full parliculars of the claim, Including the calculations upon which the claim Is based.) 

5. Thal, to the best of my knowledge, I ____ (am/am not) (or the above-named creditor (is/is not)) related to the debtor 
wilhln the meaning of section 4 of the Act, and (have/has/have notnias not) dealt with the debtor In a non·ann's-length manner. 

6. Thal the following are the payments that I have received from, and the credits that I have allowed lo, and the transfers al undervalue within 
the meaning of subsection 2(1) d the Act that I have been privy lo or a party to with the debtor within the three months (or, If the creditor and the 
debtor are related within the meaning of section 4 of the Act or were not dealing with each other at arm's length, within the 12 months) Immediately 
before the date of the [ni1ial bankruptcy event within the meaning of Section 2 of the Act: (Provide details of payments, credits and transfers at 
undervalue.) 

7. (Applicable only in the case of the bankroplcy of an Individual.) 

o Whenever the trustee reviews the financial situation of a bankrupt lo redeterm:ne whether or not the bankrupt Is required to make 
payments under section 68 of the Act, I request lo be Informed, pursuant lo paragraph 68(4) of the Act, of the new fDCed amount or of 
the fact that !here ls no longer surplus rncome. 

D I request that a copy of the report filed by the trustee regarding the bankrupt's application for discharge pursuant to subsection 
170(1) of the Act be sent lo the above address. 

Dated at -fOnJ... o}V this / ,pn day of ~ '4.ef ~ ;;> I . 

Witness 

Return To: 

MNP lid •• Licensed Insolvency Trustee 
Per: 

Victor Kroeger· Licensed Insolvency Trustee 
1500, 640 - 5 Avenue SW 

---6algaiy·AB-T.ZP-3G4-
Fax: (403) 537-8437 
E-ma:J: calgary.lnsolvency@mnp.ca 

Individual Creditor 

P~cer 
PhoneNumber: o/ffl - $ 01- -;}{&.f 
Fax Number: _________ _ 
E-mail Address: ________ ...--

S"-}v,,~/.. Pi :A!? ~ i -... 

VIAllNlHGS: A miff may, pinaant lo subsm'oll t2ap) cl Ile Ac!, rtdeem ascarty on paymtnl lo lhe seand m!DI ollhe debtor lie ~i. ollhe SCCllily u mused, In a prool of 
MQ!rily, by th! •-d Cledlot, 

Sullsetlicn2D\IJ cllhtktpm-ld11 mt11 pena.~esror mal:lng 111Jlals8'lailn.p1001, decl~n ct slmnentolaa:wol 
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SCHEDULE "A" TO PROOF OF CLAIM 

Claim Amount: $500,000 

The claim amount Is derived from the bond amount of $462,000 for Performance Bond MCS1150074 
and potential expenses of $38,000 owed by the bankrupt pursuant to the attached Indemnity 
Agreement. 
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This is EXHIBIT "K" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this~ 
day of Au st, 2022. 

Province of Ontario 



District of Alberta 
Division No. 
CourU Estate No. 

BACKGROUND 

Calgary 
25-095246 

IN THE MATTER OF THE BANKRUPTCY OF 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

TRUSTEE'S PRELIMINARY REPORT 

MNR 

1. On July 29, 2021, on an application made by the Bank of Nova Scotia ("ScotiaBank"), a Bankruptcy 
Order was granted by the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta (the "Court") against North American 
Steel Erectors Inc. (the "Bankrupt" or "NASE"). MNP Ltd. (the "Trustee") was appointed by the 
Court to act as Trustee of the bankrupt estate of NASE. 

2. NASE Is a steel structure fabrication company that was Incorporated in Alberta on January 18, 
2016 and is based in Cochrane, Alberta. NASE carried on business throughout Canada. On the 
date of bankruptcy, the Bankrupt had three open contracts, one in Alberta and, two in Ontario. 

3. The Trustee is of the view that the Bankrupt's insolvency was primarily caused by the Bankrupt's 
failure to pay its employer source deduction obligations (the 'Deemed Trust Claim") to Canada 
Revenue Agency (the "CRA"). NASE's former director, Steeve Toupin has advised the Trustee 
that he attributes the Bankrupt's financial difficulties primarily to a contract for the supply of steel 
on a project in Calgary, Alberta, (the •9111 Avenue Bridge Project"). To the best knowledge of the 
Trustee, the supplier of steel on the 9111 Avenue Bridge Project, Shield Industries Ltd. ("Shield") is 
no longer actively in business. Prior to the bankruptcy of NASE, litigation regarding the 9111 Avenue 
Bridge Project had been commenced by NASE against Shield and Wynward Insurance Group 
("Wynward"), who had issued a Performance Bond concerning the 91h Avenue Bridge Project. To 
date, no payments have been made under the Performance Bond. 

4. The Trustee received the sworn Statement of Affairs of the Bankrupt on August 111h, 2021 . 

BOOKS AND RECORDS 

5. Selected books and records of the Bankrupt have been provided to the Trustee. The Trustee is 
still awaiting the receipt of additional financial Information, including the QulckBooks back up, from 
NASE's former Controller. 

CONSERVATORY AND PROTECTIVE MEASURES 

6. The Company's operations were discontinued as at the date of bankruptcy, July 29, 2021. The 
Trustee took reasonable steps to conserve and protect the assets of NASE, Including changing the 
locks on NASE's main office, inventorying NASE's assets within the office, NASE's equipment 
located outside of the office, and on their former job sites, and ensuring adequate insurance 
coverage is in place. 

7. NASE's operations at the date of the bankruptcy included three projects, the 9'h Avenue Bridge 
Project, the McDonald Block project In Toronto, Ontario, and the Children's Hospital Project in 

Prax;f:j;·: 
MUIUll • " 

Gl HAl llllARCf or 
INHPfNDUf fl ~lll 

AoN. 

BESTEMPLOYER 

LICENSED INSOLVENCY TRUSTEES 
1500, 640 - 5TH AVENUE SW, CALGARY AB, T2P 3G4 

1.877.500.0792 T: 403.538.3187 F: 403.537.8437 MNPdebt.ca 



Toronto, Ontario. The Trustee has reviewed the costs associated with these projects and has 
determined that there is no economic benefit to the bankrupt estate of NASE to complete any of 
the projects. PCL Construction Ltd. ("PCL") is the general contractor on all projects and have 
advised the Trustee that they will likely be submitting a claim into the bankruptcy for the extra costs 
associated with replacing NASE to complete these projects. 

8. The Trustee has contacted CRA regarding its trust audit to determine the amount of a potential 
Deemed Trust Claim. CRA has advised that this mailer has not yet been assigned to a trust 
examiner. The CRA source deduction payable, as reported in the Bankrupt's Statement of Affairs 
exceeds $1 .1 million. 

ASSET REALIZATION AND PROJECTED DISTRIBUTION 

9. The assets listed on the Bankrupt's Statement of Affairs are as follows: 

Description 

Cash 

Furniture 

Vehicles 

Machinery, plant & equipment 

Total Assets 

Amount 

$314,410 

10,000 

244,000 

200,000 

$768,410 

10. Cash is currently frozen, for the benefit of the Estate, In the Bankrupt's Scoliabank account. These 
funds will be remitted to the Trustee once a trust account is in place. The cash, along with all other 
assets of the Bankrupt appear to be subject lo CRA's Deemed Trust Claim. 

11 . The Statement of Affairs also listed accounts receivable. The accounts receivable balance reported 
to be good were $777,587. A receivable amount of $17,320 was collected by the Trustee from 
PCL for the progress payment on the 9111 Ave Bridge Project. 

12. The $744,322 remaining accounts receivable balance reported as good In the Statement of Affairs 
is due from 2127712 Alberta Ltd. ("212"), a related party to the Bankrupt. The Trustee issued a 
letter demanding payment of this amount. The Trustee is aware that Roynat Ltd. has made an 
application to appoint a receiver over the assets of 212 that Is scheduled to be heard by the Court 
on August 20, 2021 . Therefore, collection of this receivable Is doubtful. 

13. The Trustee Is aware that as of the dale of bankruptcy, NASE was involved in the following four 
court actions: 

Page I 2 

a. As discussed above, NASE advanced a claim regarding the gth Avenue Bridge Project 
against Shield, a steel supplier, and Wynward, Shield's insurance company who has Issued 
a Performance Bond regarding the 9111 Avenue Bridge Project, with the Court of Queen's 
Bench of Alberta. The claim is for $3,673,856.02 and the penal limit of the Performance 
Bond is $1,860, 174.02. Shield has not defended the claim, but a Statement of Defence 
has been filed by Wynward. This litigation was at the document exchange phase as at the 
date of bankruptcy. 

b. A claim was made by NASE against Exact Detailing Ltd. ("Exact") in the Court of Queen's 
Bench of Manitoba for $4,677, 711.08 concerning steel procurement and structural steel 
design regarding the design and construction of the Winnipeg Artis Tower. Exact has 
defended the action and brought a counterclaim for $205, 152.41 for alleged unpaid 
services concerning the project. Exact filed a builder's lien against the lands upon which 
the Winnipeg Artis Tower Is situated for the said $205,152.41 sum. The lien has been 

MN~ 



vacated from the lands as a result of NASE paying the sum of $205, 152.41 into Court of 
Queen's Bench of Manitoba. The action was to be dealt with by way of arbitration but as 
of the date of bankruptcy, no arbitration had occurred or been scheduled. 

c. A claim was made by Exact against NASE for the sum of $232, 106.86 plus interest and 
costs in the Ontario Superior Court for alleged unpaid fees for the supply of structural steel 
design and erection drawings concerning the construction of a casino in Pickering, Ontario 
(the "Pickering Casino Project"). Exact registered a construction lien regarding the unpaid 
sum, which construction lien has been vacated as a result of NASE postlng a letter of credit 
from the Bank of Nova Scotia with the Ontario Superior Court in the amount of $282, 106.87. 
NASE has defended the action. As of the date of bankruptcy, the litigation was at the 
document exchange phase. 

d. A claim was made by Metal Perreault Inc. ("MPI") against NASE for the sum of $244,995.40 
in the Ontario Superior Court for alleged unpaid amounts in respect of steel material 
supplied by to the Pickering Casino Project. NASE has defended the action and brought 
a counterclaim for $2,980,000 plus interest and costs for alleged lost profits and costs in 
rectifying materials allegedly supplied by MPI. As of the date of bankruptcy, the litigation 
was at the document exchange phase. 

14. The Trustee currently does not have funds to continue the litigation outlined above. 

15. A preliminary review conducted by GD Auctions has estimated that all machinery, equipment, 
furniture and the vehicles of NASE located in Cochrane have a realizable value of $205,675 based 
on their report dated August 13, 2021 . The Trustee has received proof of claims from Ford Canada 
for the vehicles being financed. The Ford claims are currently being reviewed by the Trustee and 
its legal counsel. 

16. The Trustee has estimated the following realizations of assets that would be available after CRA's 
Deemed Trust Claim is paid: 

Description 

Cash 
Furniture 
Vehicles 
Machinery, plant & equipment 
Total Assets 

*Estimated 
Realization 

$0 
0 
0 
0 

$0 
•Estimated realization based on funds available after 

CRAdeemed trustclalm Is paid. 

17. CRA's Deemed Trust Claim is currently unproven, however, any realizations that the Trustee 
makes on behalf of the Estate, including cash, will likely be subject to the Deemed Trust Claim. 

18. Based on the above information, the Trustee does not currently anticipate there to be any funds 
available for distribution to the unsecured creditors of this estate. 
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SUMMARY OF CLAIMS 

19. The Bankrupt's statement of affairs listed the following creditor claims: 

Description 

Secured 

Preferred 

•unsecured 

Amount 

$524,410 

$38,010 

$6,671,182 

$7,233,602 

•Unsecured amount Includes $1.1 milllon cla im for unremitted source 

deductions that form a deemed trustclalm that ranks in priority to all otherclalms 

20. As at 12:00 PM, August 19, 2021, the following claims have been submitted to the Trustee: 

Descrietlon #of claims Amount 

Secured 3 $514,429.51 

Preferred 

Unsecured 5 1,858,613.18 

8 $2,373,042.69 

LEGAL 

21 . Prior to the First Meeting of Creditors the Trustee has retained the services of Caron & Partners 
LLP ("Caron") to provide preliminary legal advice lo the Estate with respect to getting access lo 
assets, obtaining the sworn Statement of Affairs and obtaining information regarding the legal 
claims. We will be seeking confirmation of Caron as the Estate solicitors at the First Meeting of 
lnspeclors. 

REVIEW OF FRAUDULENT PREFERENCES AND TRANSFERS AT UNDERVALUE 

22. The Trustee is required to undertake a review of any transactions that occurred prior to the dale of 
bankruptcy that would constitute a transfer at undervalue or a fraudulent preference as defined by 
subsections 95 and 96 of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (the "Review"). 

23. The Trustee has started the Review and is aware of $32,300 in payments made on the dale of 
bankruptcy by NASE to 212. These, and other transactions, will be reviewed once the Trustee 
receives the accounting and banking records from NASE's former Controller and from review of 
account records received from the various financial Institutions that held NASE accounts. 

OTHER 

24. The Truslee's fees and that of its legal counsel, Caron & Partners LLP, are being paid by 
ScotiaBank through a fee guarantee. 
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25. Further Information with respect to these proceedings will be made available on the Trustee's 
website al hllps://mnpdebl.ca/en/corporate/corporate-engagements/north-american-steel­
erectors-inc as it becomes available. 

Dated at Calgary, Alberta this 191h day of August 2021. 

MNP Ltd., 
In its capacity as Trustee of 
North Americ Steel Erectors Inc. and not In its personal 

pacily 

Victor P. Ko ger, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT, CFE 
Senior Vice President 
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INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

1. On July 29, 2021 the Honourable Mr. Justice C.M. Jones Court of the Queen's Bench of 

Alberta (the "Court") granted an Order (the "Bankruptcy Order") adjudging North American 

Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE" or the "Company") bankrupt and appointing MNP Ltd. as the 

trustee (the "Trustee") of the bankrupt estate. A copy of the Bankruptcy Order is attached 

hereto as Appendix "A". 

2. NASE operated a steel structure fabrication company on lands owned by a related 

company, 2127712 Alberta Ltd. ("212"), located at 160 Griffin Ranch Road, Cochrane, 

Alberta. 212 was placed into receivership pursuant to a Receivership Order granted by the 

Honourable Madam Justice B.E.C. Romaine in Court File Number: 2101-10276 on August 

2021. MNP Ltd. acts as the receiver of 212. 

3. At the time of NASE's bankruptcy, Steeve Toupin ("Mr. Toupin") was the sole director of 

NASE, and Mr. Toupin (holding 77.78%) and Gordon Spalding (holding 22.22%) were the 

voting shareholders of NASE. Attached hereto as Appendix ue" are the Alberta Corporate 

Registry search results for NASE as of the date of bankruptcy, July 29, 2021. 

4. Copies of the relevant documents relating to these proceedings are available on the 

Trustee's website: https://rnnpdebt.ca/en/corporate-engagements/north-american-steel­

erectors-inc. 

REPORT LIMITATIONS 

5. In preparing this first report (the "First Report") and in making comments herein, the 

Trustee has been provided with, and has relied upon, certain unaudited, draft and/or internal 

financial information of the Company, books and records of the Company, and information 

from other third-party sources (collectively, the "Information"). The Trustee has not audited, 

reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the Information in 

a manner that would wholly or partially comply with generally accepted assurance standards 

or other standards established by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (the 

"Standards"). Additionally, none of the Trustee's procedures were intended to disclose 

defalcations or other irregularities. If the Trustee were to perform additional procedures or to 

undertake an audit examination of the information in accordance with the Standards, 
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additional matters may have come to the Trustee's attention. Accordingly, the Trustee does 

not express an opinion, nor does it provide any other form of assurance on the financial or 

other information presented herein. The Trustee may refine or alter its observations as 

further information is obtained or brought to its attention after the date of this report. 

6. The Trustee assumes no responsibility or liability for any loss of damage occasioned by any 

party as a result of the use of the First Report. Any use, which any party makes of this 

report, or any reliance or decision to be made based on this report, is the sole responsibility 

of such party. 

7. All amounts included herein are in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated. 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

8. The purpose of the First Report is to provide this Honourable Court with information in 

respect of an application filed by Mr. Toupin on May 30, 2022 (the "Toupin Application") for 

an Order seeking the assignment of the Trustee's interests in the following legal actions 

concerning NASE, to Mr. Toupin: 

i. North American Steel Erectors Inc. v. Shield Industries Ltd. and Wynward 

Insurance Group - Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta Court File No. 2001-

16202 (the "Shield Action"); 

ii. North American Steel Erectors Inc. v. Exact Detailing Ltd. - Court of Queen's 

Bench of Manitoba Court File No. Cl-20-01-27129 and Cl-19-01-24911 

(collectively, the "Manitoba Exact Actions"); and 

Ill. Exact Detailing Ltd. v. North American Steel Erectors Inc., Pickering 

Developments (Squires) Inc., Pickering Developments (Bayly) Inc., Pickering 

Developments (401) Inc. and Ontario Gaming GTA Limited Partnership, by its 

general partner 2569129 Ontario Inc., also known as Pickering Casino -

Ontario Superior Court of Justice Court File No.: CV-19-0003223-000 (the 

•Exact Ontario Action"). 
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9. The Toupin Application states that it is brought under sections 37 and 38 of the Bankruptcy 

and Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985, c 8-3 (the "BIA"). 

NO PROOF OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY STEEVE TOUPIN 

10. As of the date the First Report, Mr. Toupin has not submitted a Proof of Claim of any kind to 

the Trustee with respect to any amounts claimed to be owed to Mr. Toupin by NASE. 

THE SHIELD ACTION 

11. The Shield Action concerns a construction project, specifically the gth Avenue vehicle bridge 

replacement project located in Calgary, Alberta (the "gth Avenue Bridge Project"), in which: 

(i) NASE was engaged to supply, fabricate and install structural steel to the gth Avenue Bridge 

Project; (ii) Shield Industries ltd. ("Shield") is alleged to have agreed to fabricate and supply 

steel for the g•h Avenue Bridge Project; and (iii) the Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") 

is alleged to have issued a performance bond with respect to the gth Avenue Bridge Project, 

specifically a performance bond in which NASE was the named Obligee, Shield was the 

named Principal, and Wynward was the named Surety. 

12. The Shield Action was commenced by way of a Statement of Claim filed on behalf of NASE 

by Borden Ladner Gervais LLP ("BLG") in the amount of $3,673,856.02. The Shield Action 

was defended by Wynward, who filed a Statement of Defence. The Trustee was advised by 

BLG that Shield was insolvent and did not defend the Shield Action. Attached hereto and 

collectively marked as Appendix uc" are copies of the pleadings filed in the Shield Action 

that were provided to the Trustee by BLG, consisting of: (i) the Statement of Claim filed by 

NASE; (ii) the Statement of Defence filed by Wynward; and (iii) the Reply to the Statement of 

Defence filed by NASE. 

13. Following its appointment, the Trustee and its legal counsel had discussions with BLG, who 

was acting for NASE with respect to the Shield Action. BLG advised the Trustee that the 

Shield Action was at the Affidavit of Records I exchange of documents phase. BLG further 

advised the Trustee that they were owed $28,861.31 by NASE for unpaid legal fees and 

disbursements and that BLG was asserting a solicitor's lien over its file and NASE's 

documents. 
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14. Notwithstanding the solicitor's lien, BLG did provide copies of NASE's documents to the 

Trustee for the purposes of the Trustee's administration of the estate. 

15. BLG has also submitted a Proof of Claim to the Trustee, a copy of which is attached hereto 

as Appendix "D". 

16. The Trustee and its legal counsel reviewed the pleadings and documents concerning the 

Shield Action provided by BLG. The Trustee determined that it did not have access to the 

funds necessary to pursue further litigation of the Shield Action. The estate Inspector at the 

7th meeting of the Inspectors, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix "E", directed 

the Trustee to provide the required Section 38 of the BIA notice to the estate creditors. The 

notice to creditors was sent on February 23, 2022 (the "Creditor Notice". A copy of the 

Creditor Notice is attached hereto as Appendix "F" the Creditor Notice was sent to all 

known creditors and potential creditors of NASE. The Creditor Notice summarized the 

Shield Action, advised that the Trustee had preformed its due diligence and an investigation 

regarding the Shield Action and determined that it did not have access to funds to pursue 

the Shield Action. The Creditor Notice further indicated that section 38 of the BIA provides 

that any one or more creditors may apply to the Court for an Order authorizing them to 

pursue the Shield Action in their own name and at their own expense. 

17. Following the issuance of the Creditor Notice, the Trustee and or its legal counsel were 

contacted by counsel for three different creditors or possible creditors of NASE, including 

counsel for Mr. Toupin, who indicated that they may be interested in bringing an application 

under section 38 of the BIA concerning the Shield Action. 

18. The Trustee then issued a second notice to all known creditors and potential creditors of 

NASE dated April 13, 2022 (a copy of which is attached as Appendix "G") advising that any 

creditors seeking to pursue an application under section 38 of the BIA may, at their own risk 

and expense within thirty days of the notice, view those records of NASE in the Trustee's 

possession concerning the Shield Action by contacting the Trustee's legal counsel. Such 

notice further stated that any creditors seeking to view the said records shall do so at their 

own risk and expense and shall be responsible for reimbursing the Trustee and its legal 

counsel for any costs and expenses incurred in making said records available for viewing. 
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THE MANITOBA EXACT ACTION AND THE ONTARIO EXACT ACTIONS 

19. The Manitoba Exact Actions concerned a claim made by NASE regarding steel procurement 

and structural steel design concerning the design and construction of the Artis Tower in 

Winnipeg, Manitoba (the "Winnipeg Tower Project"). NASE commenced the Manitoba 

Exact Actions by way of a Statement of Claim filed on its behalf by David Marr of Marr 

Finlayson Pollock LLP ("Mr. Marr"), and Exact Detailing Ltd. ("Exact") defended by way of a 

Statement of Defense and Exact brought a Counterclaim for $205, 152.41 for alleged unpaid 

services provided to NASE concerning the Winnipeg Tower Project. Attached hereto and 

collectively marked as Appendix 0 H" are copies of the Statement of Claim filed by NASE, 

the Statement of Defence and Counterclaim filed by Exact, and the Consent Order 

concerning the discharge of the aforementioned builder's lien and payment of monies into 

Court. 

20. The· Ontario Exact Action concerned a claim made by Exact against NASE for the sum of 

$232, 106.86 plus interest and costs brought by way of a Statement of Claim filed with the 

Ontario Superior Court of Justice for alleged unpaid fees for the supply of structural steel 

design and erection drawings concerning the construction of a casino in Pickering, Ontario 

(the "Casino Project"). Exact registered a construction lien regarding the alleged unpaid 

sum, which construction lien had been vacated as a result of NASE posting a letter of credit 

from the Bank of Nova Scotia in the amount of $282, 106.87 with the Ontario Superior Court 

of Justice. NASE defended the Ontario Exact Action by way of a Statement of Defence filed 

on its behalf by Andrea Lee of Glahot Bowels LLP ("Ms. Lee"). The Statement of Defence 

sought set-off regarding amounts alleged to be owed to NASE by Exact with respect to the 

Winnipeg Tower Project. Attached hereto and collectively marked as Appendix 111" are 

copies of the Statement of Claim, Statement of Defence and Consent Order concerning the 

discharge of the said builder's lien and posting of the said letter of credit with the Court. 

21. Following its appointment, the Trustee and its legal counsel had discussions with both 

NASE's legal counsel, Mr. Marr in Manitoba concerning the Manitoba Exact Actions, Ms. 

Lee in Ontario concerning the Ontario Exact Action. With respect to the Manitoba Exact 

Actions, the Trustee was advised by Mr. Marr that the action was to be dealt with by way of 

arbitration but that as of the date of bankruptcy, no arbitration had occurred or been 

scheduled. With respect to the Ontario Exact Action, the Trustee was advised by Ms. Lee 
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that as of the date of bankruptcy, the action was at the document exchange phase. 

22. Following the discussions with Mr. Marr and Ms. Lee, the Trustee, with the consent of the 

inspector of the bankrupt estate of NASE, engaged in settlement discussions with Exact 

which resulted in a Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release made between the Trustee 

and Exact dated October 28, 2021 (the "Settlement Agreement"), a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Appendix 11J 11
• The terms of the Settlement Agreement are as follows: 

(a) the monies that had been paid into Court in the Manitoba Exact Actions were paid to 

Exact; 

(b) the letter of credit that had been posted with the Court in the Ontario Exact Action was 

released and returned to the Trustee; 

(c) the Trustee paid Exact the sum of $1,500.00 as an agreed upon contribution to the legal 

fees incurred by Exact; 

(d) the Manitoba Exact Actions were discontinued on a without costs basis; 

(e) the Ontario Exact Action was discontinued on a without costs basis; and 

(f) any and all claims of NASE and Exact against one another concerning the Manitoba 

Exact Actions, the Winnipeg Tower Project, the Ontario Exact Action and the Casino 

Project were mutually released, save for any trust obligations or duties owed by directors 

or officers of NASE to Exact under any lien legislation and any possible claims by Exact 

against the directors or officers of NASE for breach of trust or any other duty owed under 

any lien legislation, at law or equity. 

23. Attached hereto and collectively marked as Appendix uK" are copies of: (i) Consent Orders 

granted November 9, 2021 in the Manitoba Exact Actions directing that the monies that had 

been paid into Court, with interest, be paid to Exact and that the actions are dismissed 

without costs; and (ii) the Consent Order granted November 22, 2021 in the Ontario Exact 

Action discharge Exact's lien to the lands upon which the Casio Project is located, directing 

the Clerk of the Court to return to the letter of credit that had been posted with the Court to 
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the Trustee, for delivery to the Bank of Nova Scotia, and dismissing the action without costs. 

The Settlement Agreement was entered into by the Trustee with the approval of the inspector of 

the estate of NASE. Attached hereto as Appendix 11L" are copies of inspectors meeting 

minutes of September 21, 2021 and September 28, 2021 regarding such Inspector approval. 

The September 21, 2021 Inspector minutes had not yet been signed by the Inspector as of the 

date of the First Report. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH MR. TOUPIN I HIS LEGAL COUNSEL 

24. On March 25, 2022, legal counsel for the Trustee, Dean Hutchison of Caron & Partners LLP 

("Mr. Hutchison"), received a voicemail message from Dan Ramsay of Ramsay Legal 

Counsel ("Mr. Ramsay"), then legal counsel for Mr. Toupin, inquiring on the status of the 

Manitoba Exact Actions. By e-mail correspondence between Mr. Hutchison and Mr. 

Ramsay of March 25, 2022, Mr. Hutchison advised that the Manitoba E~act Actions and the 

Ontario Exact Action had been resolved and discontinued in October/November 2021. 

Attached hereto as Appendix 11M" is a copy of this e-mail correspondence. 

25. On April 21, 2022, Mr. Ramsay sent an e-mail to Mr. Hutchison indicating he was in the 

process of filing an application on behalf of Mr. Toupin for the assignment of NASE's legal 

actions to him and requested a copy of NASE's list of creditors. Mr. Hutchison responded 

by e-mail of that same day providing a copy of an Affidavit of Mailing of the Trustee sworn 

August 19, 2021 containing the Creditor Mailing List of NASE's known creditors and 

potential creditors. Attached hereto as Appendix "W' is a copy of the e-mail. 

26. On May 16, 2022, Mr. Hutchison sent Mr. Ramsay an e-mail advising him, as a courtesy, 

that the Trustee will be moving forward to seek its discharge in the near future. Attached 

hereto as Appendix 110" is copy of the e-mail. 

27. On June 1, 2022 the Trustee was served with a copy of the Toupin Application and the 

supporting Affidavit of Mr. Toupin sworn April 20, 2022 from Mr. Ramsay's office. The 

Trustee's legal counsel was not served. 

28. During the period of June 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022, Mr. Hutchison sent Mr. Ramsay several 

e-mails outlining the Trustee's concerns with that portion of the Toupin Application seeking 
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relief under section 37 of the BIA and seeking to assign the Manitoba Exact Actions and the 

Ontario Exact Action to Mr. Toupin. Such correspondence noted that the Manitoba Exact 

Actions and the Ontario Exact Action had been resolved and discontinued, and that should 

Mr. Toupin proceed with that portion of the Toupin Application, that such relief will be 

vigorously opposed by the Trustee and the Trustee would be seeking costs against Mr. 

Toupin on a solicitor and own client, full indemnity basis. Such corr~spondence requested 

multiple times that Mr. Toupin confirm whether he would be proceeding with such portions of 

the Toupin Application. The responses from Mr. Ramsay were that he was seeking 

instructions from Mr. Toupin and would advise. Such correspondence further noted that Mr. 

Toupin had not submitted a Proof of Claim to the Trustee, and therefore his standing to 

make an application under section 38 of the BIA was potentially at issue. Attached hereto 

and collectively marked as Appendix "P" are copies of such e-mail correspondence. 

29. On July 4, 2022, Mr. Hutchison received an e-mail from Mr. Ramsay's office attaching an 

untiled copy of a Notice of Withdrawal of Lawyer of Record and advising that Mr. Ramsay 

had advised Mr. Toupin of the hearing scheduled in this matter on July 7, 2022, and that Mr. 

Ramsay's office did not know what Mr. Toupin will choose to do with respect to the Toupin 

Application. On July 5, 2022, Mr. Hutchison received a filed copy of the Notice of 

Withdrawal of Lawyer of Record filed July 4, 2022 from Mr. Ramsay's office. Attached 

hereto and collectively marked as Appendix "Q" is a copy of the foregoing described 

correspondence and filed copy of Notice of Withdrawal of Lawyer of Record filed by Mr. 

Ramsay. 

30. As of the time this First Report was signed, neither the Trustee or Mr. Hutchison have 

received any communications from Mr. Toupin regarding his intentions concerning the 

Toupin Application, nor a Proof of Claim from Mr. Toupin. 

RECOMMENDATION AND CONCLUSION 

31. Based upon the foregoing the Trustee respectfully recommends that this Honorable Court: 

i. Deny the Toupin Application; and 

ii. Grant costs in favour of the Trustee concerning the Toupin Application 

payable by Mr. Toupin on a solicitor and own client, full indemnity basis. 

Page 10of11 
North American Steel Erectors Inc. - In Bankruptcy 
First Report or the Trustee 
July 7, 2022 MNR 



All of which is respectfully submitted this 6th day of July, 2022. 

MNP Ltd. 

In its capacity as trustee in bankruptcy off 

North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

and not in its personal or corporate capacity 

Senior Vice President 
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Nova Scotia (the "Applicant''); AND UPON having read the application for Bankruptcy Order 
of the Applicant; AND UPON having read the Affidavit of Josh Coonan, filed in the within 
action; AND UPON reading the consent of MNP Ltd. to act as trustee in the bankruptcy of the 
estate of North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE"); AND UPON hearing from counsel for 
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(a) the debt owing by NASE exceeds $I ,000: and 

(b) within the 6 months preceding the date of liling of the application for Bankruptcy 
Order, NASE has ceased to meet its liabilities generally as they come due; 

IT JS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECLARED THAT: 

I. Service of the notice of this application and supporting materials is hereby declared to be 
good and sufficient, no other person is required lo have been served with notice of this 
application, and the time for service of this application is abridged to that actually given. 

2. NASE, be and is hereby adjudged bankrupt and that a Bankruptcy Order is hereby made 
against NASE. 

3. MNP Ltd. be and is hereby appointed as trustee oft he estate of the bankrupt NASE, without 
security. 

4. The costs of and incidental to this application and of this Order be paid Lo the applicant, on 
a full indemnity, solicitor and own client basis, out of the assets of the estate of the bankrupt 
NASE. 
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Corporate Access Number: 2019448758 

Business Number: 739358497 

Legal Entity Name: NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

Name History: 

!Previous Legal Entity Name llnate of Name Change (YYYY /MM/DD)I 

!CENTRAL ERECTORS INc.112016103108 I 

Legal Entity Status: Active 

Alberta Corporation Type: Named Alberta Corporation 

Registration Date: 2016/0 I /18 YYYY /MM/DD 

Registered Office: 
Street: 160 GRIFFIN RANCH ROAD 

City: COCHRANE 

Province: 
Postal Code: 

Records Address: 
Street: 
City: 
Province: 
Postal Code: 

ALBERTA 

T4C288 

160 GRIFFIN RANCH ROAD 

COCHRANE 

ALBERTA 

T4C2B8 

Email Address: MGOSWAMl@NASTEELERECTORS.COM 

Directors: 

Last Name: TOUPIN 

First Name: STEEVE 

Street/Box Number: 264095 MONTERRA DRIVE 

City: COCHRANE 

Province: ALBERTA 
113 
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Postal Code: T4COA7 

Voting Shareholders: 

Last Name: 
First Name: 
Street: 
City: 
Province: 
Postal Code: 

SPALDING 
GORDON 
I 0432 GLEN ROSE DRIVE 
DELTA 
BRITISH COLUMBIA 
V4COA6 

Percent Of Voting Shares: 22.22 

Last Name: 
First Name: 
Street: 
City: 
Province: 
Postal Code: 

TOUPIN 
STEEVE 
264095 MONTERRA DRIVE 
COCHRANE 
ALBERTA 
T4COA7 

Percent Of Voting Shares: 77.78 

Details From Current Articles: 

The information in this legal entitY. table supersedes equivalent electronic attachments 

Share Structure: 100 CLASS "A" SHARES 
Share Transfers Restrictions: NONE 
Min Number Of Directors: I 
Max Number Of Directors: 5 
Business Restricted To: NONE 
Business Restricted From: NONE 
Other Provisions: NONE 

Other Information: 

Last Annual Return Filed: 

!File Yearljnate Filed (YYYY/MM/DD)j 

I 2021 ll202011211s I 

Filing History: 

213 
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I List Date (YYYY /MM/DD)jlTypc of Filing I 
12016/0 1/18 llincorporate Alberta Corporation I 
12016/03/08 llName Change Alberta Corporation I 
12017/06/07 !IName/Structure Change Alberta Corporation I 
12019/0I111 !!change Address 

12019/03/08 llchange Director I Shareholder 

12020102122 llUpdate BN 

12020112115 llEnter Annual Returns for Alberta and Extra-Provincial Corp 

The Registrar of Corporations certifies that, as of the date of this search, the above information is an accurate 
reproduction of data contained in the official public records of Corporate Registry. 
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2001-16202 

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERTA 

CALGARY 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

SHIELD INDUSTRIES LTD. and WYNW ARD 
INSURANCE GROUP 

ST A TEMENT OF CLAIM 

Jeffrey D. Vallis, Q.C. I Theron Davis 
Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
1900, 520 3n1 Ave. S.W. 
Calgary, AB T2P OR3 
Telephone: (403) 232-9404 19761 
Facsimile: (403) 266-1395 

File No. 446270-00000 I 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT(S) 

You are being sued. You are a defendant. 

Go to the end of this document to see what you can do and when you must do it. 

Note: State below only facts and not evidence (Ruic 13.6) 

Statement of facts relied on: 

Form to 
[Rule 3.25) 

I. North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant to the 
laws of the Province of Alberta. NASE carries on the business of supplying and installing structural 
steel on commercial, institutional, bridge and sports facil ity projects. 

2. The Defendant, Shield Industries Ltd. ("Shield") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant to 
the laws of the Province of Alberta. Shield carries on business as a fabricator of, among other things, 
structural steel. 

3. The Defendant, Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") is a body corporate, duly incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of Canada and is duly authorized to transact the business of suretyship in Canada, 
including in the Province of Alberta. 
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Tlte Project 

4. Pursuant to Subcontract #463022 - OS, dated May 30, 2019, NASE was engaged by PCL 
Construction Management Inc. ("PCL") to supply, fabricate and install structural steel on the 9c1i Ave 
Vehicle Bridge Replacement project (the "Project"), located in Calgary, Alberta (the 
"Subcontract"). 

5. On or about April 4, 2019, NASE and Shield entered into Purchase Order Number 1906-002 (the 
"Purchase Order"), whereby Shield agreed to fabricate and supply the structural steel for the Project 
as described in Shield's Quotation No. 6317, dated January 31, 2019 (the "Work"), for a stipulated 
price of$3,720,348.03 (including GST) (the "Purchase Order Price"). 

6. The Purchase Order incorporated the terms and conditions of the Subcontract by express reference 
and Shield was bound to adhere to those terms and conditions in the performance of the Work. 

Tlte Performance Bond 

7. Pursuant to clause 4 of the special conditions of the Subcontract, Shield was obligated to provide a 
performance bond in favour of NASE, providing a penal sum equivalent to one-half of the Purchase 
Order Price. 

8. On or about October 9, 2019, Wynward issued Performance Bond No. W086-102-001P/L-A (the 
"Bond"), with a penal limit of $1,860, 174.02 (the "Bond Amount"), which replaced Bond No. 
WO 186-102-001 P/L. Under the Bond, NASE was the named Obligee, Shield was the Principal, and 
Wynward was the Surety. NASE pleads and relies upon the terms and provisions of the Bond. 

9. In the event that Shield defaulted on any of its obligations under the Purchase Order, NASE could 
deliver to Wynward a written statement that Shield was in such default and request that Wymvard 
fulfill its obligations under the Bond (a "Demand"). 

I 0. In advance of making a Demand on the Bond, NASE was, entirely at its own discretion, entitled to 
notify Wynward if Shield was, or was soon to be, in default and request that the parties attend a 
conference to communicate those concerns (a "Pre-Demand Conference"). 

11. Upon receipt of a Demand, Wynward would be afforded a reasonable time within which to conduct 
an investigation of the Demand and determine its liability under the Bond. 

12. Twenty-one days following receipt of the information required to conduct the investigation, 
Wynward was obligated to complete its investigation and advise NASE of its decision. Alternatively, 
if Wynward required more time to complete its investigation then, before the expiry of the 
aforementioned twenty-one days, it was obligated to write to NASE and set out the status of the 
investigation and provide an estimate of when the investigation would be complete. 

13. While Wynward performed its investigation, NASE was entitled under the terms of the Bond to 
engage a replacement contractor or contractors to proceed with the Work for the benefit and 
protection of the Project and in order to mitigate its losses. 

14. Where NASE engaged a replacement contractor, and subject to the conditions of the Bond, the 
reasonable costs incurred by NASE were to be reimbursed by Wynward. 

15. Following an investigation, if the conditions precedent have been satisfied and Shield's default 
confirmed, Wynward would then be obligated to promptly: 
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(a) remedy the default; 

(b) complete the Purchase Order in accordance with its tem1s and conditions; 

(c) obtain a bid, or bids, for submission to NASE for completing the Purchase Order in 
accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by NASE and Wynward 
of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and NASE, 
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default, or a 
succession of defaults, under the contract or contracts of completion, arranged under this 
option) sufficient funds to pay to complete Shield's obligations in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Purchase Order, and to pay those expenses incurred by NASE 
as a result of Shield's default relating directly to the perfommnce of the Work under the 
Purchase Order, less the balance of the Purchase Order Price; or, 

(d) pay NASE the lesser of: ( 1) the Bond Amount; or, (2) NASE's proposed cost of completion 
less the balance of the Subcontract price. 

Shield's Default a11d tile Surety's J11vestigatio11 

16. In order to ensure that Shield was meeting its obligations under the Purchase Order on or about 
October 31, 2019, among other times, NASE, PCL and Shield met and discussed Shield's progress. 
Part of that meeting included potential options that would ensure that Shield met the Purchase Order 
with respect to schedule, and conformed to the plans and specifications incorporated into the 
Purchase Order. Among the options discussed was the possibility that Shield engage a subcontractor 
to assist with portions of its Work. 

17. Entirely of its own volition, Shield subcontracted with Supreme Steel LP to perform portions of the 
Work. 

18. In the months subsequent to the October 31, 2019 meeting, it began to become clear to NASE that 
Shield was unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order. As a result, on 
December 11, 2019, NASE issued a notice of non-compliance to Shield requesting that Shield take 
steps to avoid a default (the "Notice of Non-Compliance"). 

19. NASE received and reviewed Shield's response to the Notice of Non-Compliance upon returning 
from a shut down for the holiday season and, on or about January 2, 2020, NASE contacted a 
representative of Wynward regarding its continuing concerns related to Shield's performance. 

20. Without any appreciable improvement following receipt of Shield's response to the Notice ofNon­
Compliance, on January 16, 2020, NASE informed Wynward in writing that Shield was in default 
under the Purchase Order, and that NASE had become aware that Shield was facing financial 
difficulties, and requested a Pre-Demand Conference. That Pre-Demand Conference was held on 
January 30, 2020, during which Shield confirmed that it was facing financial difficulties. 

21. On or about February 20, 2020, Shield indicated that it would be laying off its employees and that its 
financial difficulties would prevent it from being able to continue with the Work. 

22. Further, Shield's performance had not improved following the Pre-Demand Conference and, on or 
about February 27, 2020, NASE made a Demand to Wynward, declared that Shield was in default 
and requested that Wynward fulfill its obligations under the Bond (the "Bond Claim"). 
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23. On or about March 2, 2020 to March 5, 2020, Shield made the final deliveries of materials and then 
subsequently abandoned the Project. 

24. Following the Bond Claim, Wyn ward began an investigation, with the full cooperation of NASE. 

25. Shield failed to satisfy its obligations under the Purchase Order. These failures include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

(a) Shield issued invoices that included, and Shield sought payment for, Work that was not 
complete; 

(b) Shield failed to follow the change request requirements of the Purchase Order and failed 
to justify additional costs for which it was seeking payment, which in turn resulted in 
NASE being unable to obtain a corresponding approval from PCL; 

(c) Shield failed or otherwise refused to perform the Work as outlined m the plans, 
specifications, or as otherwise contemplated within the Purchase Order; 

(d) Shield performed the Work negligently and in breach of the express or implied terms of 
the Purchase Order; 

(e) Shield failed or refused to adequately correct significant portions of its negligent and 
deficient Work, but even where some portions of the Work were corrected, Shield failed 
to do so in a timely manner; 

(t) Shield failed to implement adequate quality assurance and quality control processes; 

(g) Shield failed to staff and maintain a sufficient number of employees, agents or 
subcontractors to complete the Work properly, on time, and in accordance with the express 
or implied terms of the Purchase Order; 

(h) Shield failed to staff appropriately skilled and competent employees, agents or 
subcontractors so that the Work could be completed properly, on time, and in accordance 
with the express or implied terms of the Subcontract; 

(i) Shield failed to properly train the employees, agents or subcontractors that it did have to 
ensure they were adequately qualified to perform the Work; 

G) Shield failed to properly manage and supervise its employees, agents, or subcontractors; 

(k) Shield failed to maintain a safe work site at all times in accordance with the express or 
implied terms of the Subcontract; and 

(I) Shield failed to complete its scope of Work and abandoned the Purchase Order 

(collectively, "Shield's Defaults"). 

26. By contrast, NASE has satisfied all of its obligations under the Purchase Order including, but not 
limited to, having made timely payment to Shield for all of its validly performed Work and properly 
submitted invoices. 
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27. At no point in time did NASE relieve Shield from its contractual obligations, or otherwise waive, 
acquiesce or abandon its right to demand that Shield perform its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. 

28. On or about August 8, 2020, Wynward and NASE entered into a mitigation agreement (the 
"Mitigation Agreement"), whereby Wynward agreed that NASE could proceed with a remedial 
plan (the "Remedial Plan") to complete the remaining work (the "Remaining Work"), as described 
in Schedules to the Mitigation Agreement. Pursuant to the Mitigation Agreement, Wymvard agreed 
not to challenge or dispute the completion of the Remaining Work performed by NASE in accordance 
with the Remedial Plan. 

29. Wynward and NASE entered into the Mitigation Agreement without prejudice to the rights and/or 
obligations of the parties under the Bond. 

30. To date, Wynward has failed or otherwise refused to provide a decision with respect to the Bond 
Claim and, despite repeated demands, has further failed to fulfill its obligations under the Bond. 

Tile Costs to Complete 

31. At this time, and subject to uncovering further deficiencies in Shield's work, the total cost to NASE 
to complete Shield's Work will be not less than $4,336,846.93. 

32. NASE had already paid to Shield$ I ,9 I 9,409. I 2 and, as a result, the balance of the contract price is 
$1,800,938.91. 

33. The resulting short fall from Shield's Defaults and abandonment of the Purchase Order is, therefore, 
not less than $2,53.5,908.02. 

Claims agai11st tlte Defe11da11ts 

34. Shield has failed, refused, or been otherwise unable to perform its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. As a result of Shield's Defaults, negligence, and breaches of the Purchase Order, NASE has 
suffered and continues to suffer damages and losses. 

35. Wynward has failed to fulfill its obligations under the Bond. Specifically, Wynward has failed to 
take the steps necessary to see that Shield's Defaults were corrected and the Work completed. By so 
doing, Wynward has exacerbated the delay on the Project to such an extent that NASE has had to 
incur significant additional costs and its losses have been substantially increased. 

36. Further, Wynward has failed and or otherwise refused to render a decision regarding the Demand 
and has taken an unreasonable amount of time in so delaying. 

37. As a result of both Shield' s Defaults or its negligence in carrying out the Work under the Purchase 
Order, and Wynward's conduct and breaches of the Bond, NASE has suffered, and continues to 
suffer, serious damages including, but not limited to, losses from delay, additional costs, Work 
deficiencies, bank charges, interest costs, increased administrative and overhead costs, and costs to 
complete Shield's unfinished Work. NASE currently estimates such losses, the particulars and total 
amount of which shall be proven at trial, to be not less than as follows: 

(a) Shortfall on costs to complete of $2,535,908.02; 
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(b) Additional manpower costs of $385,948.00; 

(c) Delay and acceleration costs of $648,000.00; 

(d) Liquidated damages losses of approximately $104,000.00; and, 

(e) Such additional costs as may be proven at trial. 

Remedy sought: 

38. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendant, Wynward: 

(a) a declaration that the Performance Bond remains in full force and effect; and, 

(b) a declaration that NASE has discharged all preconditions for payment under the 
Performance Bond, or alternatively for relief from forfeiture in respect thereof. 

39. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendants, Wynward and Shield, jointly and severally: 

(a) judgment in the amount of$3,673,856.02, or in the case ofWynward the Bond Amount; 

(b} pre-judgment and post-judgment interest in accordance with the Judgment JnteresJ Act, 
RSA 2000, c J-1 ; 

(c) costs of this action on a solicitor-client basis or on such other basis as may be determined 
by this Honourable Court; 

( d) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANT(S) 

You only have a short time to do something to defend yourself against this claim: 

20 days if you are served in Alberta 

I month if you are served outside Alberta but in Canada 

2 months if you are served outside Canada. 

You can respond by filing a statement of defence or a demand for notice in the office of the clerk of 
the Court of Queen's Bench at Calgary, Alberta, AND serving your statement of defence or a demand 
for notice on the plaintiff's(s') address for service. 

WARNING 

If you do not file and serve a statement of defence or a demand for notice within your time period, 
you risk losing the law suit automatically. If you do not file, or do not serve, or are late in doing 
either of these things, a court may give a judgment to the plaintiff(s) against you. 
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Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta 

CALGARY 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

SHIELD INDUSTRIES l TD. and WYNWARD INSURANCE 
GROUP 

STATEMENT OF DEFENCE 

WYNWARD INSURANCE GROUP 

Gowling WLG (Canada) LLP 
1600, 421 - 71t1 Avenue SW 
Calgary, AB T2P 4K9 

Phone: 403-292-9805 
Fax: 403-695-3523 
Email: kerry.powell@gowlingwlg.com 
File: A163536 

Attention: Kerry R. Powell 

1. The Defendant Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") adopts the terms emboldened in 
the Statement of Claim to name the parties and subjects in this matter, except where 
otherwise stated in the within Statement of Defence. 

2. In respect of paragraph 3 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward is a company incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of the Province of Manitoba and licensed to carry on business as an 
insurance company and surety in the Province of Alberta. 

3. Except as expressly admitted herein, Wynward denies each and every allegation 
contained in the Plaintiff's Statement of Claim. Wynward admits paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 5 and 
8 of the Statement of Claim. 

4. As admitted by NASE in paragraph 5 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward agrees that the 
terms and conditions of Shield's Quotation No. 6317 dated January 31, 2019 (the 
"Quotation") were incorporated into and formed part of the Purchase Order. 

ACTIVE_ CA\ 43138809\1 
Rev 2 0 (15111/10) 
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5. The Quotation provided, inter alia, that Shield did not assume or agree to any obligations 
or liabilities other than expressly provided for in the Quotation. 

6. The Quotation did not include reference to the Subcontract and expressly excluded any 
losses, damages or costs suffered by NASE resulting from any defects in workmanship. 

7. In specific reply to paragraph 6 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward denies that the terms 
and conditions of the Subcontract entered into by NASE and PCL on May 30, 2019, more 
than fifty days after the Purchase Order was entered into by NASE and Shield on April 4, 
2019, apply to the Purchase Order. 

8. As a result, an executed finalized copy of the Subcontract was not, and could not be, 
attached to the Purchase Order as required by the Purchase Order. 

9. Further, in the alternative, the reference to the Subcontract in the Purchase Order does 
contain sufficient specificity to identify which terms of the Subcontract, if any, were to be 
incorporated into the Purchase Order. 

10. As admitted by NASE in paragraph 8 of the Statement of Claim, the original Performance 
Bond No. W0186-102-001 P/L issued by Wynward was replaced with Performance Bond 
No. W086-102-001P/L (the "Bond"). 

11. NASE did not pay, and has not paid, for the Bond and should not be entitled to rely upon 
or be entitled to the benefits of the Bond. 

12. Further, Wynward denies that NASE has complied with the obligations required of it under 
the Bond. 

13. For instance, NASE has failed to comply with the obligations required of it under the Bond 
by failing to provide timely notice to Wynward of changes to fundamental terms and 
conditions of the Purchase Order. 

14. NASE unilaterally revised and extended the schedule for the completion of the Work 
eleven separate times (the "Schedule Extensions"). 

15. The Schedule Extensions resulted in the extension of the original delivery date of the 
fabricated steel from October 15, 2019 to March 15, 2020. 

16. The last Schedule Extension was issued by NASE on January 13, 2020. 

17. No notice whatsoever of any of the Schedule Extensions was provided to Wynward by 
NASE. 

18. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Schedule Extensions. 

19. Further, the delivery of the steel was significantly delayed and was not completely received 
until December 22, 2019 (the "Late Delivery of Steel"), more than two months after the 
original completion date of the Work on October 15, 2019. 

ACTJVE_CA\ 43138809\1 
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20. When all of the steel finally did arrive on December 22, 2019, the steel had to undergo 
extensive testing and additional approvals in order to comply with the specifications due 
to the fact that the steel was foreign sourced and had an excessively high boron content. 

21 . No notice whatsoever of the Late Delivery of the Steel was provided to Wynward by NASE. 

22. Further, NASE unilaterally revised the Specifications for the Work nine months after the 
commencement of the Work requiring Shield to perform additional Work and incur 
additional costs that were not included in the original Purchase Order (the "Revised 
Specifications"). 

23. No notice whatsoever of any of the Revised Specifications was provided to Wynward by 
NASE. 

24. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Revised Specifications. 

25. Further, NASE has failed to comply with the obligations required of it under the Bond by 
failing to provide timely notice to Wynward of Shield's default under the Purchase Order. 

26. On October 31, 2019 NASE and PCL met with Shield to express serious concerns about 
Shield's performance of the Work to date and required that Shield subcontract out a 
portion of the steel fabrication Work to Supreme Steel Ltd. ("Supreme"), a third party steel 
fabricator. 

27. Based on discussions at the October 31, 2010 meeting, a portion of the steel fabrication 
Work was subsequently subcontracted to Supreme by Shield at NASE's instruction and 
with its full knowledge and approval (the "Subcontracted Work"). 

28. No notice whatsoever of the Subcontracted Work was provided to Wynward by NASE. 

29. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Subcontracted Work. 

30. There were problems with the completion of the Subcontracted Work by Supreme which 
required additional rework and costs. 

31 . As admitted by NASE in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim, in the months 
subsequent to the October 31, 2019 meeting, it became clear to NASE that Shield was 
unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order. 

32. Instead of noting Shield in default and providing notice to Wynward under the Bond based 
on Shield's inability to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order, 
NASE required Shield to hire additional welding labour in order to accelerate the 
performance of the Work. 

33. As further admitted by NASE in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim, on December 11, 
2019, a formal Notice of Non-Conformance was issued to Shield by NASE which 
confirmed the serious concerns that NASE had with Shield's performance. 

ACTIVE_CA\ 43138809\1 
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34. Contrary to the allegation contained in paragraph 1 a of the Statement of Claim, the Notice 
of Non-Compliance did not mention or refer to Shield taking steps to avoid a default, but 
rather mentioned that the steps needed to be taken by Shield in to avoid further issues on 
the Project. 

35. A copy of the formal Notice of Non-Conformance issued by NASE on December 11, 2019 
was not provided to Wynward by NASE nor was Wynward advised of the issuance of the 
Notice of Non-Compliance. 

36. On December 16, 2019 Shield sent a letter to NASE objecting to NASE's allegations as 
set out in the Notice of Non-Conformance ("Shield's Response"). A copy of Shield's 
Response was not provided to Wynward by either Shield or NASE. 

37. Shield contended in its response that it had completed seventy-seven percent of its Work 
but had only been paid thirty-three percent of the value of the Purchase Order. 

38. On or about January 16, 2020, NASE sent a letter to Wynward to advise Wynward of the 
problems being experienced with Shield's performance and provided Wynward with notice 
of a potential claim under the Bond (the "Initial Notice"). 

39. Shield responded to the Initial Notice on the same day denying that it was in default of its 
obligations under the Purchase Order and provided details of non-payment by NASE and 
other factors that had made Shield's performance of the Work more arduous. 

40. The Initial Notice was provided to Wynward by NASE more than a month after the Notice 
of Non-Compliance had been provided to Shield by Wynward and more than three months 
after the original completion date of October 15, 2019 as specified in the Purchase Order 
had been revised by NASE without the knowledge or the consent of Wynward. 

41 . The Initial Notice was the first time that Wynward had been formally advised of any issues 
in relation to the performance of the Work by Shield. 

42. On or about January 20, 2020, a Pre-Demand Conference was held between 
representatives of NASE, Shield and Wynward (the "Pre-Demand Conference"). 

43. At the Pre-Demand Conference, based on representations made by NASE and Shield as 
to the status of the Work, it was decided by NASE and Shield that Shield would continue 
to complete the Work. 

44. No independent investigation was conducted by Wynward at this time based on the 
representations of both NASE and Shield as to the status of the Work. 

45. Accordingly, the Initial Notice of a potential claim provided to Wynward by NASE was 
effectively withdrawn by NASE. 

46. Based on the absence of a formal default by Shield, Wynward did not further investigate 
any of the issues raised in the Initial Notice or object to Shield continuing with the Work. 

47. Subsequently, NASE provided Shield with a payment of $350,000.00 in order to provide 
Shield with funds to complete the Work. 

ACTIVE_CA\ 43138809\1 
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48. There was no further communication between NASE and Wynward, or Shield and 
Wynward, until over six weeks later when on February 27, 2020 NASE formally declared 
that Shield was in default of its obligations under the Purchase Order and called upon 
Wynward to respond to NASE's claim under the Performance Bond (the "Notice of 
Default"). 

49. The Notice of Default contended that Shield was at that time four months behind in the 
completion of its Work. 

50. The Notice of Default was provided to Wynward considerably after NASE knew in the 
months following October 31, 2019, as admitted in paragraph 18 of the Statement of 
Claim, that Shield was unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. 

51. NASE's failure to provide timely notice of Shield's default has caused significant 
irreparable prejudice to Wynward by limiting Wynward's ability to address, remedy and 
mitigate the impact of Shield's default. 

52. NASE's failure to provide timely notice of Shield's default also minimized Wynward's 
ability to address, remedy and mitigate its obligations under Labour and Material Payment 
Bond W086-102-001 P/L (the "L&M Bond") under which Wynward has paid 
$1 ,860, 174.02 into the Court of Queen's Bench for the payment of unpaid suppliers and 
subcontractors of Shield (the "lnterpleader Proceedings"). 

53. Upon receipt of the Notice of Default, Wynward took steps to investigate the claim made 
by NASE in the Notice of Default, including the retention of a forensic engineering firm to 
sample the quality of the steel used and welding performed by Shield. 

54. Wyward's expert was to provide advice with respect to the welds undertaken by Shield in 
its performance of the Work given that the steel was showing significant signs of cracking 
where the welds had been made. 

55. After repeated requests, samples of the steel and welds were obtained from NASE. 

56. The results of these investigations on Wynward's behalf were shared with NASE. 

57. At all times, Wynward took reasonable and appropriate steps to advise NASE of its 
investigation and the need for additional information from NASE in order to conduct and 
complete its investigation. 

58. At all times, the steps taken by Wynward were reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, and were carried out in a timely manner even in the face of the global 
pandemic and the fact that Shield's project records or personnel were not available to 
Wynward to assist it in conducting its investigation. 

59. On March 2, 2020, after the Notice of Default had been issued by NASE to Wynward, 
NASE unilaterally, and without the involvement of Wynward, entered into an agreement 
with Shield for the purchase of certain fabricated steel components from Shield (the 
"Material Purchase Arrangement"). 

ACTIVE_ CA\ 43138809\1 
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60. Pursuant to the Material Purchase Arrangement, NASE paid directly to Shield a lump sum 
of $200,000.00. 

61 . The Material Purchase Arrangement was confirmed in writing by an agreement between 
NASE and Shield dated March 2, 2020 (the uBill of Sale"). 

62. The Bill of Sale included an acknowledgement that expressly provided that the amount 
being paid by NASE was a "final lump sum" and included "any and all costs to repair or 
replace any deficiencies in the fabrication of fully or partially completed work, including but 
not limited to transportation, galvanizing, painting, re-work and project delay costs". 

63. Wynward denies that NASE is entitled to the remedies listed in paragraph 38 of the 
Statement of Claim. 

64. Wynward admits that on or about August 8, 2020 NASE and Wynward entered into a 
mitigation agreement whereby NASE was entitled to proceed to complete the Work in an 
effort to mitigate the impact of Shield's alleged default (the "Mitigation Agreement"). 
Wynward had offered to enter in to the Mitigation Agreement with NASE on June 17, 2020 

65. The Mitigation Agreement provided that neither Wynward or NASE relinquished any rights 
or remedies other than as stated in the Mitigation Agreement. Wynward did not relinquish 
any defences that it was entitled to under the Performance Bond or waive any obligations 
that NASE was obligated to perform under the Performance Bond or the Purchase Order. 

66. The Purchase Order stated the price for the Work as $3,720,348.03 including GST. The 
Material Purchase Arrangement as confirmed by the Bill of Sale stated that the amount 
paid to Shield to March 2, 2020 was $1,741 ,926.27 leaving the sum of $1,978,421 .76 
available to NASE to complete any deficiencies in the Work (the "Balance of Contract 
Funds"). 

67. The penal sum of the Bond is $1,860,174.02 (the "Penal Sum"). 

68. On March 17, 2020 NASE advised Wynward that the costs to complete the Work would 
result in a shortfall to NASE of $1 ,751 ,860.23, an amount less than the penal sum of the 
Bond and within the Balance of Contract Funds available to NASE to complete the Work. 

69. The costs to complete the Work being claimed by NASE in its Statement of Claim are 
$3,673,856.02, more than double NASE's previous advice. 

70. NASE has neglected, failed or refused to use the Balance of Contract Funds appropriately 
and efficiently to complete the Work and mitigate any losses, damages or costs. 

71 . Wynward denies that NASE has suffered the losses, damages, or costs as alleged, or at 
all. 

72. If NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or costs, which is not admitted 
but denied, NASE's losses, damages or costse as claimed are, in any event, excessive, 
too remote, are contrived to exceed the Penal Sum, and not recoverable under the terms 
of the Performance Bond, or the Purchase Order. 

ACTIVE_ CA\ 43138809\1 
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Any matters that defeat the claim of the Plaintiff: 

73. NASE neglected, failed or refused to pay for the Bond and should not be entitled to rely 
upon or be entitled to the benefits of the Bond 

74. The Purchase Order expressly precluded the recovery by NASE of any losses, damages 
or costs that may have been suffered by NASE as a result of any defects in Shield's Work. 

75. The Subcontract had not been entered into at the time it was purported to have been 
incorporated into the Purchase Order and was not attached to the Purchase Order. 

76. Alternatively, the reference in the Purchase Order to the Subcontract did not contain 
sufficient specificity to identify which terms of the Subcontract, if any, were to be 
incorporated into the Purchase Order. 

77. NASE did not provide Wynward with the Notice of Default within a period of time that 
allowed Wynward with a reasonable opportunity to address, remedy and mitigate the 
impact of Shield's default and has caused irreparable prejudice to Wynward. 

78. NASE neglected, failed or refused to perform its own obligations and comply with the terms 
of the Purchase Order, or the Bond, properly or at all, the particulars of which are known 
to NASE and include, but are not limited to: 

(a) NASE neglected, failed or refused to make payments to Shield in accordance with 
and as required by the terms of the Purchase Order; 

(b) NASE neglected, failed or refused to deal with issues causing delay in Shield's 
performance of the Purchase Order that resulted from factors beyond Shield's 
control or scope of Work; 

(c) NASE unilaterally, and without the knowledge or consent ofWynward, revised the 
completion date of the Work on eleven different occasions such that the original 
completion date under the Purchase Order of October 15, 2019 was ultimately 
changed to March 15, 2020; 

(d) NASE unilaterally, and without the knowledge or consent of Wynward, changed 
the specifications relating to the Work nine months after the Work had been 
commenced by Shield causing Shield to undertake additional Work, expense and 
delay; 

(e) Pursuant to the Final Purchase Arrangement as confirmed by the Bill of Sale, 
NASE effectively, for consideration, waived any entitlement, if any, to recover any 
costs relating to any defects in the workmanship or materials provided by Shield; 
and 

(f) NASE neglected, failed or refused to use the Contract Balance appropriately and 
efficiently to complete the Work. 

79. Obligations arise on the part of Wynward under the Bond, if at all, only in the event that 
Shield is in default under the Purchase Order, Shield is properly noted in default under the 
terms of the Purchase Order and NASE has met all of its obligations under the Purchase 

ACTIVE_CA\ 43138809\1 
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Order. These conditions precedent have not been met and consequently, no obligations 
arise or can arise on the part of Wynward under the Bond. 

80. Further, or in the alternative, if any such loss, damage or cost was incurred, which is not 
admitted but denied, then such loss, damage or cost arises from unknown, unanticipated 
or undisclosed conditions, material imperfections, design errors, onerous or impossible 
specifications, and are not the responsibility or fault of Shield under the Purchase Order, 
or Wynward under the Bond. 

81. Further, or in the alternative, if any such tosses, damages or costs were incurred, which 
is not admitted but denied, then such losses, damages or costs result from the breach of 
contract, negligent acts or omissions of parties other than Shield, including NASE, and are 
not the responsibility or fault of Shield under the Purchase Order, or Wynward under the 
Bond. 

82. Further, or in the alternative, if any such losses, damages, or costs were incurred, which 
is not admitted but denied, then the Balance of Contract Funds are well in excess of any 
reasonable and proper losses, damages or costs incurred or that might be incurred in 
completing or correcting any of the Work. 

83. If NASE has suffered or will suffer any tosses, damages or costs, which is not admitted 
but denied, NASE's losses, damages or costs claimed are, in any event, excessive and 
too remote. NASE's claim for delay damages, acceleration, and liquidated damages are 
not compensable by the terms of the Purchase Order, or the Bond. 

84. Further, or in the alternative, if NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or 
costs, which is not admitted but denied, NASE has failed to take any or, alternatively, 
proper steps to mitigate such losses, damages or costs. 

85. Further, or in the alternative, if NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or 
costs, which are not admitted but denied, all or a portion of such losses, damages or costs 
improperly relate to the payment by NASE of suppliers and subcontractors who have 
claimed under the L&M Bond and will be, or have been, paid under the lnterpleader 
Proceedings. 

86. Further, or in the alternative, the amounts sought by NASE are overstated. 

Remedy sought: 

87. A denial of the declarations sought by the Plaintiff; 

88. Dismissal of the Plaintiffs claim for judgement; 

89. Dismissal of the Plaintiffs claim for interest; 

90. Costs of this action on a solicitor-client basis or on such other basis as may be determined 
by this Honourable Court; and 

91. Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

ACTJVE_CA\ 43138809\1 
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This is the Reply of the Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc., to the Statement of Defence, 
filed by Wynward Insurance Group, Defendant, on January 28, 2021 

Statement of facts relied on: 

I. The Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc., denies each and every allegation in the Statement 

of Defence of Wynward Insurance Group, filed January 28, 2021 (the "Statement of Defence") 

and puts the Defendant to the strict proof d1ereof. 

2. The Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc. repeats and relies on the allegations set out in its 

Statement of Claim, filed December 9, 2020 (the "Statement of Claim") 

3. All capitalized terms used in this Reply have the same meanings as set out in the Statement of 

Claim, unless otherwise indicated herein. 

4. In reply to paragraphs 4, 5, and 6, NASE states and the fact is, that on January 31, 2019, Shield 

provided a quote to NASE (the "Quotation·'). Upon receipt of the Quotation, and in the context 

of the Subcontract, NASE issued the Purchase Order. On April 4, 2019, NASE provided Shield 

with the Purchase Order, which clearly detailed the Work, the Purchase Order Price, and the terms 

, 
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and conditions of the Purchase Order. On the date that it was issued to Shield, Shield accepted the 

Purchase Order. The Work was done pursuant to both the Purchase Order and the Subcontract. 

5. In reply to paragraphs 7, 8, 9, 75, and 76 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is 

that the Subcontract was incorporated by reference and by attachment to the Purchase Order. 

Shield's Work was done pursuant to both the Purchase Order and the Subcontract. 

6. In reply to paragraph I 0 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that the Bond 

Number is "W086-102-00 I P/L-A", as stated in the Statement of Claim, not "W086- 102-00 I P/L", 

as stated in the Statement of Defence. 

7. In reply to paragraphs 11, 12, and 73 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE paid for the Bond, has complied with its obligations under the Bond, and is entitled to rely 

upon the Bond. As detailed in the Statement of Claim, it is Wynward that has failed to comply 

with its obligations under the Bond. 

8. In reply to paragraphs 13 through 18 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

while Shield breached the Purchase Order, resulting in significant delay, there were no changes to 

any fundamental terms or conditions of the Purchase Order. NASE denies unilaterally revising or 

extending the schedule for completion of the Work, as alleged or at all. The fact is that Shield's 

delay breached the Purchase Order, and the schedule agreed to therein. NASE acted reasonably in 

response to Shield's breaches, insisted that Shield's delay was not agreed to, and never waived its 

rights in relation to the Purchase Order or the Bond. NASE denies that Shield's delay is attributable 

to or acquiesced to by NASE, and puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegations to the 

contrary. Wynward was aware of Shield's delay, and specifically involved in meetings between 

PCL, NASE, and Shield in relation to Shield's delay. 

9. In reply to paragraphs 19 and 21 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

Shield never completed its delivery of steel obligations under the Purchase Order. 

I 0. In reply to paragraph 20 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that all steel 

testing was completed prior to delivery and compliant with agreed to specifications. 

11. NASE denies the allegations of fact stated in paragraphs 22 through 24 and puts Wynward to the 

strict proof thereof. The explicit and implicit specifications of the Work did not change. 

Accordingly, no notice of any revised specifications was necessary or possible. 

12. In reply to paragraphs 26 to 31 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that PCL, 

NASE, and Shield met lo discuss Shield's delay and default under the Purchase Order, and to 
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discuss ways in which the issues and damages accruing as a result of Shield's breaches of the 

Purchase Order and delay could be mitigated. NASE never required Shield to subcontract any 

portion of the Work, nor did NASE direct the means and methods that Shield was to accomplish 

the Work. 

13. In reply to paragraphs 33 through 39 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE complied with its obligations under the Purchase Order, and the Bond, making all reasonable 

efforts to mitigate its potential and actual damages, and losses in its dealings with both Shield and 

Wyn ward. While Shield has suggested that as of December 16, 2019 seventy-seven percent (77%) 

of the Work was complete, the fact is that Shield had only completed and delivered sixteen percent 

(16%) of the Work. NASE paid all invoices for Work completed that also complied with the 

mandatory invoicing requirements of the Purchase Order. 

14. In reply to paragraphs 42 through 45 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

Wynward raised no concems with NASE's actions in relation to the Bond at the January 20, 2020 

meeting or otherwise. Subsequent to that meeting or otherwise, NASE denies waiving any rights 

under the Bond or implicitly or explicitly withdrawing the Initial Notice or its claims under the 

Bond. NASE puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegations to the contrary. 

15. In reply to paragraph 46 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that NASE is 

unaware of what investigative efforts were made by Wyn ward, but denies that NASE was obligated 

to note Shield in default prior to when it did. 

16. In reply to paragraph 4 7 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that the $350,000 

payment from NASE to Shield was expressly consented to by Wynward. 

17. In reply to paragraph 48 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that Wynward 

was in regular communication with both NASE and Shield throughout January and February 2020 

and leading up to NASE's fonnal issuance of its Notice of Default upon Shield. 

18. In reply to paragraph 52 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that NASE 

complied with its obligations under the Bond, provided timely notice to Wynward, and denies that 

Wynward has suffered significant irreparable prejudice, as alleged or at all in relation to any notice 

that NASE provided. NASE puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegation to the contrary. 

19. In reply to paragraphs 53 through 56 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

none of its actions affected Wynward's ability to address, remedy, or mitigate its obligations under 

the Bond. NASE denies that repeated requests of it were made or necessary to obtain samples. In 

contrast to the allegations made in the referenced paragraphs, NASE provided Wynward's experts 
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prompt access to the site and Shield's work. NASE puts the Defendant Wynward to the strict proof 

of any allegations to the contrary. 

20. In reply to paragraphs 57 and 58 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE has no knowledge of Wynward's internal investigative efforts, which are irrelevant to 

Wynward's refusal to comply with its obligations under the Bond. 

21. In reply to paragraphs 59 through 62 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

the Bill of Sale does not preclude, limit, or estop NASE from its entitlements in this Action and the 

Bond. 

22. In reply to paragraphs 64 through 69 of the Statement of Defence NASE states and the fact is that 

the Balance of the Contract Funds, as that term is defined in the Statement of Defence will not 

make NASE whole, and does not preclude, limit, or estop NASE from its entitlements in this Action 

and the Bond. NASE has suffered the damages it has plead in the Statement of Claim, and is 

entitled to the Bond Amount. 

23. In reply to paragraph 74 of the Statement of Defence, NASE disagrees that the Purchase Order or 

any of its terms preclude recovery from the Defendants or either of them. 

Any matters that defeat the claim/defence of the defendant: 

24. In reply to paragraph 25, 28, 29, 31, 32, 35, 36, 40, 41, 63, 77, 78, 79, 80, and 81 of the Statement 

of Defence, and the Statement of Defence generally, NASE states and the fact is that NASE 

complied with the terms of the Bond and is entitled to the remedies sought through this Action, as 

against the Defendant, Wynward. NASE puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegation to the 

contrary. 

25. In reply to paragraphs 82 through 86 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

the losses, damages, and costs incurred and suffered by NASE as a result of the actions of the 

Defendants exceed any amounts owed under the Subcontract and will exceed the balance of the of 

the penal limit under the Bond. NASE has taken all reasonable steps and fulfilled its obligations to 

mitigate its losses, damages, and costs incurred and suffered. The damages suffered by NASE and 

plead w-e reasonably foreseeable, calculated correctly, proximate, compensable, conservatively 

stated, and specifically contemplated by the Bond. The losses, damages, and costs suffered by 

NASE do not relate to the suppliers and subcontractors who have claimed under the L&M Bond, 

as that term is defined in the Statement of Defence. 

Remedy sought: 
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26. The Plaintiff, NASE, reiterates and incorporates herein the relief sought in its Statement of Claim, 

at paragraphs 38 and 39. 

NOTE 

This reply may only make admissions or respond to matters raised for the first time in the statement 
ofdefencc(Rules 3.33(2)(b) and 13.10). 



District of: 
Division No. 
Court No. 
Estate No. 

Alberta 
02- Calgary 
25.()95246 
25-095246 

FORM 31 /36 
Proof of Claim I Proxy 

In the Maller of the Bankruptcy of 
North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

AD notices or correspondence regardl119 this dalm must be forwarded to the fol!owlng address: 
Borden Ladner Ge!Vais L[P, 1900, 520- 3 Ave SW, Calgary, AB T2P OR3 

In the matter of the bankruptcy of North American Steel Erectors Inc. of the town of Cochrane In the Province of Alberta and the claim of 
Borden Ladner Gervais LLP • creditor. 

I, of the city of a creditor In the above mailer, hereby appoint 
---------------'of to be my proxyholderln the above 
matter, except as to the receipt of dividends, ____ (with or without) power to appoint another proxyholder In his or her place. 

I, Locklyn E. Price (name of creditor or representative of the creditor), of the city of_c_al_g_ary ____ in the 
province of Alberta do hereby certify: 

1. That I am a creditor of the above named debtor (or I am _as_s_oo_·_a_te _____ (poslUon/litle) of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
creditor). 

2. That I have knowledge of all the circumstances connected with the clalm referred to below. 

3. That the debtor was, al the date of bankruptcy, namely the 29th day of July 2021, and sHIJ ls, Indebted to the creditor In the sum of 
$_28,861.31 as specified In the statement of account (or affidavit or solemn declaration) attached and marked Schedule 0A", 
after deducting any counterclalms to which the debtor ls entitled. (The attached slalement of account or affidavit must specify the vouchers or other 
evidence In support of the dalm.) 

4. (Check and complete appropriate category.) 
~ A. UNSECURED CLAIM OF $.28,861.31 

(other than as a customer contemplated by Section 262 of the Act) 

That In respect of this debt, I do not hold any assets of the debtor as security and 
(Check appropriate description.) 

D Regarding the amount of$ I dalm a right to a priority under section 136 of the Ad. 

D Regarding the amount of$ I do not claim a right lo a priority. 
(Set out on an attached sheet details lo support prfority claim.) 

0 B. CLAIM OF LESSOR FOR DISCLAIMER OF A LEASE$. ______ _ 

That I hereby make a claim under subsecllon 65.2(4) of the Act, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give fall particulars of the claim, including the calculations upon which the claim is based.) 

D C. SECURED CLAIM OF$ ______ _ 

Thal In respect of thls debt, I hold assets or the debtor valued at$ as security, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give full psttlculars of the security, including the date on which the security was given end the value et which you assess the security, end 
attach e copy of the security documents.) 

D D. CLAIM BY FARMER, FISHERMAN OR AQUACULTURIST OF$ ______ _ 

= -..,-, ...... - -.....hat I herebyinake'a'Clalnrundersubsectlorr8t2(1)•of'the-Actfortheunpaicf-amoanrof·$;=========------------
(Attach a copy of sales agreement and delivery receipts..) 

0 E. CLAIM BY WAGE EARNER OF $'--------

0 That I hereby make a dalm under subsectlon 81.3{8) of the Act In the amount or$ __ _, 

D That I hereby make a claim under subsection 81.4(8) of the Act In the amount of$ __ _ 

D F. CLAIM BY EMPLOYEE FOR UNPAID AMOUNT REGARDING PENSION PLAN OF $. ______ _ 

D That I hereby make a claim under subsecllon 81.5 of the Act in the amount of$ __ _. 

D That I hereby make a claim under subsection 81.6 of the Act In the amount of $ __ ___ 

D G. CLAIM AGAINST DIRECTORS. __ _ 
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FORM 31136 - Concluded 

(To be completed when a proposal prov/dos for the comprom;se of claims against directors.) 
Thal I hereby make a claim undersubsecUon 50(13) of the Act, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give full particulars of/he claim, including Iha calculalions upon which the claim is based.) 

D H. CLAIM OF A CUSTOMER OF A BANKRUPT SECURITIES FIRM $ __ _ 

That I hereby make a dalm as a customer for net equity as contemplated by section 262 of the Act, particulars of which are as follows: 
(Give full particulars of the claim, Including the calculations upon which the claim is based.) 

5. Thal, to the best of my knowledge, I am not (am/am not) (or the above-named creditor is not (ls/ls not)) related to the debtor 
within the meaning of section 4 of the Act, and have not (have/has/have not/has not) dealt with the debtor In a non-arm's-length maMer. 

6. That the following are the payments that I have received from, and the ciedits that I have allowed to, and the transfers al undervalue within 
the meaning of subsection 2(1) of the Act that I have been privy to or a party lo with lhe debtor within the three months (or, if the creditor and the 
debtor are related within the meaning of section 4 of the Act or were not dealing with each other at arm's length, within the 12 months) Immediately 
before the date of the lniUal bankruptcy event within the meaning or Section 2 or the Acl: (Provide details of payments, credits and transfers at 
undervalue) 

7. (Applicable only in the case of the bankruptcy of an Individual.} 

m Whenever the trustee reviews the financial situatron of a bankrupt to redetermine whether or not the bankrupt Is required to make 
payments under section 68 of the Act, I request to be Informed, pursuant to paragraph 66(4) or the Act, of the new fixed amount or of 
the fact that there Is no longer surplus Income. 

tsJ I request that a copy or the report filed by the trustee regarding the bankrupt's application for discharge pursuant lo subsecUon 
170(1) of the Act be sent to the above address. 

Oa!ed al Calgary, Alberta , this "29th day of September I 2021 

Witness tl., ( ~ \ }\ . \ , 
Witness 

RetumTo: 

MNP Ud. - Licensed Insolvency Trustee 
Per: 

Victor Kroeger - Licensed Insolvency Trustee 
1500, 640 - 5 Avenue SW 

---- ealgary AB-1-2P-3G4 - - ---
Fax: (403) 537-8437 
E-mail: calgary.lnsolvency@mnp.ca 

Individual Creditor 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Name of Corporate Creditor 

p~~cl~S~fg~nl~ng_O_ffi-1c_e_r~~~~~ 
Locklyn E. Price 
Associate 
Phone Number: 403-232-9793 
Fax Number: 402-266-1395 
E-mail Address: lprice@blg.com 

NOTE If., atl4"At II llKhtcl, I must""" t.n ult ~fin a ii-- quJMed II> lake alldaMts. 

WAllNINGS A lnlslH may, pinuant ID sabsedlocl 128(3) al lhe k~ rtdccm 1 scwtty en p-,irenl lo IM 1eand mcllDr al lhe debt gr tho value ol.,. sea.fly es 1S1essed. kl 1 proot or 
sectotty, by 11111eciredcndla, 

5absec11on20~11al lhll Ad pro.f4es11vn penallea lor maklng any r-.. claim, plOol, decl¥tdan gr Nllment ollaXIUlll 
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L3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Attention: Steeve Toupin 

Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers ] Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 • 3rd Avenue S W 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

June 28, 2021 

Invoice# 697991364 
Page 1 

File No: 446270/000001 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES rendered to May 31, 2021 in connection with the above matter as described 
in the attached. 

Fees 

Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

THIS IS OUR ACCOUNT - E. & O.E. 

BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP 

/-~e 
For: Locklyn Price 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12.°'• PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 

$ 3,962.00 

0.00 

3,962.00 

55.82 

200.89 

$ 4,218.71 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East T ewer 
1900, 520 -3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403 266.1395 

big.com 

June 28, 2021 
Invoice# 697991364 

File No: 446270/000001 
Page2 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED to May 31, 2021 

May 4, 2021 L. Price 

May 6, 2021 L. Price 

May 14, 2021 L. Price 

May 17, 2021 

May 18, 2021 

May 19, 2021 

May 19, 2021 
May 19, 2021 
May 19, 2021 
May 19, 2021 
May 20, 2021 

May 21, 2021 

May 25, 2021 

L. Price 

L. Price 

L. Price 

J.D. Vallis 
J.D. Vallis 
J.D. Vallis 
J.D. Vallis 
L. Price 

L. Price 

J. Mason 

May 25, 2021 L. Price 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from S. 
Carter-Edwards; follow up with client 
regarding sworn Affidavit of Records. 

0.50 Final Revision of Noting in Default 
Application, Affidavit, and Noting in 
Default. 

0.10 Email to client, following up on sworn 
Affidavit of Records. 

0.30 Receive and respond to emails from S. 
Toupin; receive and respond to email from S. 
Carter-Edwards; email to S. Toupin and S. 
Unrau. 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from S. Unrau 
regarding further documents and project 
meeting minutes, and daily site reports. 

0.30 Receive and respond to email from J. Vallis; 
review voicemail from Jeremy Kate; email 
to client. 

0.10 Telephone call from J. Taitinger. 
0.10 Memorandum to L. Price. 
0. 10 Telephone call to J. Taitinger. 
0.20 Memorandum from L. Price and reply (x2). 
0.30 Briefly review records; provide records to 

discovery services for Supplemental 
Affidavit of Records; instructions to provide 
service letter. 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from S. 
Toupin regarding exchange of records and 
Trial dates; review critical dates in relation 
to exchange of records and rules in relation 
to Trial dates. 

2.40 Perform work regarding Affidavit of 
Records. 

0.10 Emails with discovery services regarding 
Supplemental Affidavit of Records. 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 00 • PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICI I ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 

$ 104.00 

260.00 

52.00 

156.00 

104.00 

156.00 

84.50 
84.50 
84.50 

169.00 
156.00 

104.00 

588.00 

52.00 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

May 25, 2021 G. Song 

May 25, 202 l G. Song 

May 27, 2021 L. Price 

May 28, 2021 L. Price 

May 31, 2021 J. Mason 

May 31, 2021 L. Price 

Timekeeper 

J. Mason 
L. Price 
G. Song 
J.D. Vallis 

TO OUR FEES 

Borden Ladner Gervas LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 ·3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266. 1395 

big.com 

June 28, 2021 
Invoice# 697991364 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page 3 

0.60 Conduct data processing to prepare data for 
analysis, including expand client data from 
containers, extract metadata from files, 
normalize data into reviewable format, 
identify duplicate data and de-duplicate to 
reduce time and cost of document review. 

0.30 Populate client data received via dropbox on 
05/20/2021 from repository to review 
workspace, build and update searchable 
index to allow for increased efficiency in 
custom searching of data. 

I. I 0 Emails with Discovery services regarding 
document review of supplemental records; 
review records. 

1.10 Review records for Supplemental Affidavit 
of Records. 

1.30 Perform work regarding Affidavit of 
Records; prepare electronic production 
documents for other Party. 

0.30 Emails with Discovery Services; review 
records; draft Supplemental Affidavit of 
Records and Supplemental Schedule 1. 

FEE SUMMARY 

Avg. 
Hours Rate/Hr. Amount 

3.70 $ 245.00 $ 906.50 
4.70 520.00 2,444.00 
0.90 210.00 189.00 
0.50 845.00 422.50 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 

126.00 

63.00 

572.00 

572.00 

318.50 

156.00 

$ 3,962.00 

INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12.~~ PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

DISBURSEMENTS: 

9.80 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Cen!eMial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

June 28, 2021 
Invoice # 697991364 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page 4 

$ 3,962.00 

Taxable G•GST;Q=QST; H=HST, P=PST 

Relativity - Data Hosting Fee 
Relativity Processing Fee 

Total Taxable Disbursements 

Total Disbursements 

Total Fees and Disbursements and Other Charges 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

TOTAL THIS INVOICE 

PAY1\BLEON RECEIPT 

$ 53.22 G 

2.60 G 

55.82 

INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12.0% PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 

55.82 

4,017.82 

200.89 

s 4,218.71 



i3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Fees 

Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

REMITTANCE COPY 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 · 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403 266.1395 

big com 

June 28, 2021 
Invoice # 697991364 

LP/LP 

File No: 446270/00000 I 

$ 3,962.00 

0.00 

3,962.00 

55.82 
200.89 

$ 4,218.71 

PLEASE REFER TO PAYMENT OPTIONS PAGE FOR REMITTANCE INFORMATION. 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 o•o PER ANNUM MAY DE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WlllCH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION # R869096974RT0004 



L3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place. East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big com 

June 28, 2021 
Invoice # 697991364 

LP/LP 

Use one of the following payment methods and ensure your payment contains the details provided in the example. 

Client Name Client# Invoice # Amount Comments 
North American Steel Erectors 446270 697991364 4.218.71 (CAD) Pa ment for Invoice # 697991364 

Payment method# I - EFT/WIRE (Preferred Method) 
Beneficiary Customer: Beneficiary Bank: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP Canadian Clearing Code: //CC000247696 
Bay Adelaide Centre, East Tower Bank of Nova Scotia 
22 Adelaide Street West PO Box 4234 STN A 
Toronto. ON. Canada M5H 4E3 Toronto. ON. Canada MSW 5P6 
Payments Originnting from Canada or International Payments Originating from the USA in US Dollars: 
Locations (Excluding US Dollars from the USA): 
12 Digit Account#: 80002 14221 II 12 Digit Account#: 80002 51181 IS 
Bank#: 002 Bank#: 002 
Transit#: 80002 Transit#: 80002 
Swift Code: NOSCCATT Swift Code: NOSCCATT 
IBAN #: CA0028000214221 I I 

Intermediary Bank (If required): 

*IBAN number only required for clients OUTSIDE 
Bank of America NA 
222 Broadway 

NORTH AMERICA New York, N.Y. Swift Code: BOFAUS3N 
10038 United States ABA#: 026009593 

Remittance email required: Payment confirmation must be sent by email to remittnnceadvicel@blg.com and reference 
made to the invoice(s) paid. 

Payment method# 2 - ONLINE PAYMENTS, CANADIAN FUNDS ONLY 
You may pay your invoice(s) to BLG through participating Canadian financial institution's online banking. 
Select Borden L11dner Gervais through your financial institution and enter your client #, 446270 

Remittnnce email required: Payment confirmation must be sent by email to remittanceadvicefulblg.com and re ference 
made to the invoice(s) aid. '"Please note we do not acce t lnternc e-Trnnsfers. 

Payment method # 3 - CHEQUES 
Send by mail: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP 
PO Box# 81100 
World Exchange Plaza 
IOO Queen Street 
Ottawa, ON, Canada KIP I BI 

Send by courier: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP 
World Exchange Plaza 
I 00 Queen Street, Suite I 000 
Ottawa, ON, Canada KIP IJ9 

Attuch remittance details with a ment and reference invoice(s) aid. 

For additional infonnation contact cashrccriptscoe@blg.com OR (613) 369-4777 

P1\Y 1\ lllE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 120~.PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICll ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION # R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Attention: Sleeve Toupin 

Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520- 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232.9500 F 403 266.1395 

big.com 

May26, 2021 

Invoice # 697980145 
Page I 

File No: 446270/00000 I 

PROFESSIONAL SER VICES rendered to April 30, 2021 in connection with the above matter as described 
in the attached. 

Fees 
Less Discount 
Fee Balance 

Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

THIS IS OUR ACCOUNT - E. & O.E. 

BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP 

/-/e 
For: Locklyn Price 

PAY,\OLEON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12~. PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICllAREOVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 

$ 6,877.50 
(2,000.00) 
4,877.50 

2.00 

4,879.50 

98.55 
248.91 

s 5,226.96 



i3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 · 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232 9500 F 403 266.1395 

big com 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice# 697980145 

Fi le No: 446270/000001 
Page 2 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED to April 30, 2021 

Apr 5, 2021 T. Sadac 

Apr 6, 2021 L. Price 

Apr 6, 2021 T. Sadac 

Apr 13, 2021 T. Nguyen 

Apr 13, 2021 L. Price 

Apr 14, 2021 T. Nguyen 

Apr 14, 2021 

Apr 15, 2021 
Apr 15, 2021 

L. Price 

L. Price 
L. Price 

Apr 16, 2021 J. Mason 

Apr 16, 2021 L. Price 

1.00 Conduct data processing to prepare data for 
analysis, including expand client data from 
containers, extract metadata from files, 
normalize data into reviewable format, 
identify duplicate data and de-duplicate to 
reduce time and cost of document review. 

0.10 Email with discovery services regarding 
document production. 

0.30 Populate litigation team review workspace 
with data identified in repository workspace 
from 003 Documents received via Dropbox 
03/25/2021. Build and update searchable 
index of 003 Documents received via 
Dropbox 03/25/2021 to allow for increased 
efficiency in custom searching of data. 

0.60 Prepare images of data for legal team's 
document review. 

I. I 0 Document review; emails to discovery 
services in relation to corrupted documents; 
further emails with discovery services; 
document review. 

0.20 Prepare extracted text to reflect the text in 
the documents that were imaged to aid in the 
efficiency of the legal team's document 
review. 

0.50 Phone call with J. Mason regarding 
unviewable pdfs; document review for 
privilege and relevance. 

1.10 Document review. 
0.90 Document review; email to discovery 

services. 
0.40 Perform work in evidence database for legal 

team's document review. 
2.10 Document review; emails with discovery 

services. 

PAY ADLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 O~o PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDl,E 

GST/HST REGISTRATION # R869096974RT0004 

$ 210.00 

52.00 

63.00 

144.00 

572.00 

48.00 

260.00 

572.00 
468.00 

98.00 

1,092.00 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Apr 19, 2021 J. Mason 

Apr 19, 2021 L. Price 

Apr 20, 2021 L. Price 

Apr 21 , 2021 L. Price 

Apr 21, 2021 V. Smith 

Apr 22, 2021 J. Mason 

Apr 22, 2021 L. Price 
Apr 23, 2021 L. Price 

0.50 

0.20 

0.80 

1.40 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East T rmer 
1900, 520 . 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice# 697980145 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page 3 

Perform work regarding Affidavit of 
Records. 
Receive and respond to client email; emails 
with discovery services. 
Phone call with J. Mason regarding 
production; email with J. Mason; review 
documents; email to client. 
Phone call with S. Unrau; review production 
to find unredacted copy of bond; email with 
discovery services; phone call with 
discovery services regarding 
redacted/highlighted copy of bond; gave 
instructions to proceed with schedules; 
perform bankruptcy and insolvency 
searches, corporate search; phone call to 
Century auctions in relation to auction of 
Shield's assets; pulled Personal Property 
Registry search; review Civil Enforcement 
Act; email to assistant regarding PPR 
searches; email to S. Unrau regarding PPR 
searches and further operations. 

122.50 

104.00 

416.00 

728.00 

0.20 Receive instructions from A. Cabral. 51.00 
Respond via email. Attendance to Alberta 
PPR search and BIA and CCAA searches 
and send results via email. 

4.60 Perform work regarding Affidavit of 
Records. 

0.30 Receive and respond to email from S. Unrau. 
0.90 Receive and review schedule of records; 

draft Affidavit of Records; receive and 
respond to email from S. Unrau; receive and 
respond to emails from S. Toupin; proceed to 
serve unsworn copies on Defendants. 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 

1,127.00 

156.00 
468.00 

INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 O" o PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



L3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 ·3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403 266 1395 

big.com 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice # 697980145 

File No: 446270/000001 
Page4 

Apr 26, 2021 G. Song 

Timekeeper 

J. Mason 
T. Nguyen 
L. Price 
T. Sadac 
V. Smith 
G. Song 

0.60 Complete quality control of productions, 
identify redacted documents, prepare 
electronic productions including prepare 
branded images, export load files, 
production images, natives and text per 
required specifications, prepare data in 
zipped format for ease of delivery to 
opposing counsel. 

TO OUR FEES 
Less Discount 
FEE BALANCE 

FEE SUMMARY 

Avg. 
Hours Rate/Hr. 

5.50 $ 173.75 
0.80 170.20 
9.40 368.78 
1.30 148.93 
0.20 180.85 
0.60 148.95 

17.80 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 

Amount 

$ 955.64 
136.16 

3,466.55 
193.61 
36.17 
89.37 

$ 4,877.50 

INTEREST AT Tl!E RA TE OF 12.°'~ PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WlllCH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869D96974RT0004 

126.00 

$ 6,877.50 
(2,000.00) 
4,877.50 



i3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

OTHER CHARGES: 

Taxable 
Remote Database Fee 

Total Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

DISBURSEMENTS: 

Taxable 

Corporate Registry Search 
Industry Canada Search 
Postage 
PPSA Searches 
Relativity - Data Hosting Fee 

Total Taxable Disbursements 

Total Disbursements 

Total Fees and Disbursements and Other Charges 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 · 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232 9500 F 403.266.1395 

big com 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice # 697980145 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page 5 

G=GST, Q=-QST, H• HST. P PST 

$ 2.00 G 

G,,GST; QzQST, H~HST; P"'PST 

14.20 G 

7.00 G 

8.00 G 

14.69 G 

3.00 G 

51.66 G 

98.55 

2.00 

4,879.50 

98.55 

4,978.05 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 248.91 

TOTAL THIS INVOICE s 5,226.96 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12.0% PER 1\ NNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDlJE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Fees 
Less Discount 
Fee Balance 
Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

REMITTANCE COPY 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403-232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice# 697980145 

LP/LP 

File No: 446270/000001 

$ 6,877.50 
(2,000.00) 
4,877.50 

2.00 

4,879.50 

98.55 

248.91 

s 5,226.96 

PLEASE REFER TO PAYMENT OPTIONS PAGE FOR REMITTANCE INFORMATION. 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 0% PER ANNUM MAY DE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 2B8 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big_ com 

May 26, 2021 
Invoice# 697980145 

LP/LP 

Use one of the following payment methods and ensure your payment contains the details provided in the example. 

Client Name Client# Invoice ti Amount Comments 
North American Steel Erectors 446270 697980145 5.226.96 CAD) Pa ment for Invoice # 697980145 

Payment method # 1 - EFT/WIRE (Preferred Method) 
Beneficiary Customer: Beneficiary Bank: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP Canadian Clearing Code: //CC000247696 
Bay Adelaide Centre, East Tower Bank of Nova Scotia 
22 Adelaide Street West PO Box 4234 STN A 
Toronto. ON, Canada MSH 4E3 Toronto. ON, Canada MSW 5P6 
Payments Originating from Canada or International Payments Originating from the USA in US Dollars: 
Locations (Excluding US Dollars from the USA): 
12 Digit Account#: 80002 14221 11 12 Digit Account#: 80002 51181 15 
Bank#: 002 Bank#: 002 
Transit##: 80002 Transit#: 80002 
Swift Code: NOSCCATT Swift Code: NOSCCATT 
IBAN #: CA002800021422 I I l 

Intermediary Bank (If required): 

*IBAN number only required for clients OUTSIDE 
Bank of America NA 
222 Broadway 

NORTH AMERICA New York, N.Y. SwirtCode: BOFAUS3N 
I 0038 United States ABA#: 026009593 

Remittance email required: Payment confirmation must be sent by email to remittanceadvice@blg.com and reference 
made to the invoice(s) paid. 

Payment method# 2 - ONLINE PAYMENTS, CANADIAN FUNDS ONLY 
You may pay your invoice(s) to BLG through participating Canadian financial institution's online banking. 
Select Borden Ladner Gervais through your financial institution and enter your client#, 446270 

Remittance email required: Payment confirmation must be sent by email to remittanceadvicel@.hlg.com and reference 
made to the invoice(s) aid. *Please note we do not acce t lnterac e-Trnnsfers. 

Payment method # 3 - CHEQUES 
Send by mail: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP 
PO Box # 81100 
World Exchange Plaza 
I 00 Queen Street 
Ottawa, ON, Canada KIP 1 BI 

Send by courier: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP 
World Exchange Plaza 
I 00 Queen Street, Suite IOOO 
Ottawa, ON, Canada KIP 119 

Attach remittance details with a mcnt and reference invoice(s) aid. 

For odditionol information contact cnshrecciptscoc·'.lhlg.com OR (613) 369-4777 

Pr\ Y ABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT TIIE RA TE OF 12.0~~ PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE. 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



L3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Attention: Sleeve Toupin 

Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 • 3rd Avenue S W 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 

Invoice # 698012030 
Page I 

File No: 446270/000001 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES rendered to July 31 , 2021 in connection with the above matter as described 
in the attached. 

Fees 

Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

THIS IS OUR ACCOUNT - E. & O.E. 

BORDEN LADNER GERVAIS LLP 

/-£~ 
For: Locklyn Price 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12 o•. PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUl'ITS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION # R869096974RT0004 

$ 17,093.00 

13.00 

17,106.00 

129.96 

861.80 

$ 18,097.76 



a LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-maik Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520. 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232 9500 F 403.266.1395 

big com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice# 698012030 

File No: 446270/000001 
Page 2 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED to July 31, 2021 

Jun I, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 2, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 8, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 17, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 18, 202 l L. Price 

Jun 23, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jun 24, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jun 24, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 25, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jun 27, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jun 28, 2021 Y. Liu 

0.80 Emails with Discovery Services; instructions 
to assistant to draft Service Letter; revise 
draft Service Letter; email to clients 
regarding Supplemental Affidavit of 
Records and strategy; serve unsworn 
Affidavit of Records. 

l .30 Receive and respond to email from client; set 
up appointment to swear Affidavit of 
Records; email in relation to Summary 
Judgment; receive and forward email from 
K. Powell to client; respond to K. Powell 
email; emails with client; attend to swearing 
Supplemental Affidavit of Records with 
client; discussed Summary Judgment 
Application; email to K. Powell. 

0.20 Receive and forward email from S. 
Carter-Edwards; emails with client. 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from S. 
Toupin; email to Y. Lui. 

0.20 Emails with student regarding Summary 
Judgment research. 

0.40 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

l .80 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

0.20 Correspondence with student; review of 
provided case law. 

0.60 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

6.40 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

3.00 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST ATTllE RATE OF 12.0"o PER ANNUM MAY BE CllARGEDON ACCOUNTS WlllCH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 

$ 416.00 

676.00 

104.00 

104.00 

104.00 

102.00 

459.00 

104.00 

153.00 

1,632.00 

765.00 



i3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Jun 28, 2021 L. Price 

Jun 29, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jun 29, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 5, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 6, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 8, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jul 12, 2021 Y. Liu 
Jul 14, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jul 14, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 15, 2021 Y.Liu 

Jul 15, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 16, 2021 Y.Liu 

Jul 16, 2021 L. Price 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade.mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232 9500 F 403.266. 1395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice# 698012030 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page3 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from student 
regarding research; clarified student 
research. 

2.80 Research re Summary Judgment against the 
Defendants. 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from client; 
receive and respond to student email 
regarding research; draft letter to opposing 
counsel to demand Affidavit of Records. 

0.80 Receive and respond to email from client; 
review and revise research from student. 

0.20 Receive and respond to email from client 
regarding Summary Judgment Application; 
set up teleconference; phone call with client; 
received instructions to draft Application 
materials. 

I .SO Review file materials and prepare for a 
Summary Judgment Memorandum. 

0.50 Prepare for Summary Judgment Application. 
3.40 Prepare for Summary Judgment Application 

and materials; email L. Price regarding the 
same. 

0.10 Work with Student on Application and 
Affidavit. 

9.10 Review NASE's records to prepare for the 
Summary Judgment Application and 
Affidavit. 

0.20 Emails with Y. Lui regarding Summary 
Judgment Application and Affidavit drafts; 
email to J . Mason to provide access to 
producible records; review proposed 
structure of Application/Affidavit. 

5.80 Review tile materials and prepare for the 
Summary Judgment Application. 

0.20 Receive and respond to emails from Y. Liu 
regarding Summary Judgment Application. 

PAY ADLE ON RECEIPT 

104.00 

7 14.00 

104.00 

416.00 

104.00 

382.50 

127.50 
867.00 

52.00 

2,320.50 

104.00 

1,479.00 

104.00 

INTEREST AT TllE RA TE OF 12!1°~ PER ANNCl\I MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICll ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRA TJON # R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Jul 16, 2021 L. Price 

Jul 19, 2021 Y.Liu 

Jul23,2021 L. Price 

Jul 26, 2021 L. Price 

Jul27,2021 Y.Liu 

Jul27,2021 L. Price 

Jul28, 2021 Y. Liu 

Jul28,2021 J. Mason 

Jul 28, 2021 L. Price 

Jul29,2021 Y.Liu 

Jul29, 2021 L. Price 

Jul30,2021 L. Price 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 · 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T ~03.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice # 698012030 

File No: 446270/000001 
Page4 

0.20 Emails with Y. Lui regarding Summary 
Judgment Application. 

5.20 Draft Application and Affidavit for 
Summary Judgment; sent email to L. Price 
regarding my draft. 

1.20 Email to S. Carter-Edwards; review and 
revise Affidavit and Application; email to 
student. 

1.20 Receive and respond to email from S. 
Carter-Edwards; email with S. Toupin; 
review of caselaw and secondary resources 
in relation to Notice and material changes to 
contracts. 

1.10 Discuss with L. Price regarding Summary 
Judgment Application; finalize the 
Application materials. 

1.80 Emails with Y. Lui regarding Application 
materials and Exhibits; draft Brief; emails 
regarding Exhibits. 

0.40 Collect records for Summary Judgment 
Application. 

0.40 Prepare electronic documents from evidence 
database for Summary Judgment. 

0.30 Emails with discovery services regarding 
Exhibits. 

1.40 Prepare for the Brief of the Summary 
Judgment, pull relevant records from the 
database; email L. Price, A. Cabral and J. 
Mason regarding the relevant records for 
Affidavit for Summary Judgment. 

0.10 Follow up with S. Carter-Edwards regarding 
Wynwards' Affidavits of Records. 

0.10 Receive and respond to email from S. 
Carter-Edwards regarding Wyn ward 
Affidavit of Records. 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 

104.00 

1,326.00 

624.00 

624.00 

280.50 

936.00 

102.00 

98.00 

156.00 

357.00 

52.00 

52.00 

INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12.0~o PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDl E 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

Jul30,2021 L. Price 

Jul30,2021 L. Price 

Timekeeper 

Y. Liu 
J. Mason 
L. Price 

OTHER CHARGES: 

Taxable 
Copies 

Total Other Charges 

TO OUR FEES 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place. East Tower 
1900, 520 ·3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266. 1395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice # 698012030 

File No: 446270/00000 I 
Page 5 

I. I 0 Review Exhibits and correspondence 
between counsel; review case Jaw; draft 
Brief. 

572.00 

0.60 Receive and respond to email from D. 
Hutchinson, gathering Pleadings, providing 
budget and reporting. 

FEE SUMMARY 

43.40 
0.40 

11.40 

55.20 

Avg. 
Rate/Hr. Amount 

$ 255.00 $ 11,067.00 
245.00 98.00 
520.00 5,928.00 -----'----

$ 17,093.00 

G GST~ Q~QST; HzHST. P 'PST 

$ 13.00 G 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 

312.00 

$ 17,093.00 

13.00 

17,106.00 

INTUlEST AT THE RA TE OF 12 ~- PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



i3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
Re: Wynward Insurance Group 

DISBURSEMENTS: 

Taxable 
Relativity - Data Hosting Fee 

Total Taxable Disbursements 

Total Disbursements 

Total Fees and Disbursements and Other Charges 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place EastTower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue S W 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403 2661395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice # 698012030 

File No: 446270/000001 
Page 6 

G,.GST; Q: QST, H HST, P• PST 

129.96 G 

129.96 

129.96 

17,235.96 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 861.80 

TOTAL THIS INVOICE s 18,097.76 

PAY ABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST ATTBE RATE OF 12 .0'~ PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICH ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



aLG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 288 

Re: Wymvard Insurance Group 

Fees 

Other Charges 

Total Fees and Other Charges 

Disbursements 

REMITTANCE COPY 

GST on Fees and Taxable Disbursements and Other Charges 

Total this Invoice 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 ·3rd Avenue S W 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403.232.9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice # 698012030 

LP/LP 

File No: 446270/000001 

$ 17,093.00 

13.00 

17,106.00 

129.96 
861.80 

$ 18,097.76 

PLEASE REFER TO PAYMENT OPTIONS PAGE FOR REMITTANCE INFORMATION. 

rAYABLEON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RA TE OF 12 o•. f>ER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS WHICll ARE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION# R869096974RT0004 



L3LG 
Borden Ladner Gervais 

North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 2B8 

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
Lawyers I Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Centennial Place, East Tower 
1900, 520 - 3rd Avenue SW 

Calgary, AB, Canada T2P OR3 
T 403 232 9500 F 403.266.1395 

big.com 

August 26, 2021 
Invoice # 698012030 

LP/LP 

Use one or the following payment methods and ensure your payment contains the details provided in the example. 

Client Name Client # Invoice # Amount Comments 
North American Steel Erectors 446270 698012030 18.097.76 (CAD) Pa ment for Invoice# 698012030 

Payment method# I - EFT/WIRE (Preferred Method) 
Beneficiary Customer: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LLP 
Bay Adelaide Centre, East Tower 
22 Adelaide Street West 
Toronto, ON. Canada MSH 4E3 
Payments Originating from Canada or International 
Locations (Excluding US Dollars): 

Beneficiary Bank: 
Canadian Clearing Code: //CC000247696 
Bank of Nova Scotia 
PO Box 4234 STN A 
Toronto, ON. Canada MSW 5P6 
Payments Originating in US Dollars: 
ACll payments arc not accepted 

12 Digit Account#: 80002 14221 11 
Bunk#: 002 

12 Digit Account#: 
Bank#: 

80002 51181 15 
002 

Transit#: 80002 
Swift Code: NOSCCA TT 

Transit#: 
Swift Code: 

80002 
NOSCCATT 

I ntcrmediary Bank (If requircd):NOTE: do not use 
intermediary bank us the beneficiary bank 
Bank of America NA 
222 Broadway 
New York, N.Y. 
I 0038 United States 

Payment method I# 2 - ONLINE PAYMENTS, CANADIAN FUNDS ONLY 

Swift Code: 
ADA##: 

You may pay your invoicc(s) to BLG through participating Canadian financial institution's online banking. 

BOFAUS3N 
026009593 

1. As 11 bill paymcnl - Select Borden Ladner Gervais through your financial institution and enter your client# .i46270 
2. As an lnlerac -etrunsfcr-Add BLG' s e-trnnsfer email address etransfcrsl@hlg.com and enter the amount. No security question is 
needed ns BLG is rc~istered for Auto Deposit. 
Remittance email required: For payment methods #I and #2 a payment confirmation must be sent by email to 
remittanceadvicerCillila.com and referencing your client number and invoice(s) paid 

Paymcnl method II 3 ·CHEQUES 
Send by mail: 
Borden Ludner Gervais, LLP 
PO Box# 81100 
World Exchange Plaza 
100 Queen Street 
Ottawu, ON, Canada KIP !Bl 

Send by courier: 
Borden Ladner Gervais, LL(> 
World Exchange PlllZll 
100 Queen Street, Suite IOOO 
Ottawa, ON. Canada KIP IJ9 

Attach remittance details with a mcnt and reference invoice(s) aid. 

For additional information contact c11shrccciptscoe@blg.com OR (613) 369-4777 

PAYABLE ON RECEIPT 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF 12.0~~ PER ANNUM MAY BE CHARGED ON ACCOUNTS \VHICll 1\ RE OVERDUE 

GST/HST REGISTRATION # R869096974RT0004 



District of Alberta 
Division No: 02-Calgary 
Estate No.: 25·095246 
Court No: 25-095246 

Date: 
Time: 
Location: 

Present: 

IN THE MA TIER OF THE BANKRUPTCY OF 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

(the "Company") 
MINUTES OF THE SEVENTH MEETING OF INSPECTORS 

February 9, 2022 
3:30 PM 
Teams Call 

Crystal Martin - Inspector 
Rick Anderson - Trustee, MNP Ltd. 
Jacqueline Shellon - Secretary, MNP Ltd. 

1. A quorum of Inspectors was present and the meeting was called to order at 3:32 PM. 

2. The Trustee provided an update regarding the remaining matter in the estate, the litigation concerning the bankrupt, 

Shield Industries Ltd. and Wynward Insurance Group, the Sth avenue bridge litigation matter. The Trustee's legal 

counsel has received a reply from the Department of Justice confirming CRA is not prepared to defer a portion of its 

property claim to support the Trustee in pursuing this action. 

3. The Trustee advised the Inspector that the estate does not have the funds required to continue the litigation, and 

therefore the Trustee is seeking Inspector approval to proceed with a Section 38 Order to determine whether there is 

an interest amongst the proven creditors of the estate in taking on the matter. 

The Inspector directed the Trustee to proceed with sending notice to all proven creditors Jn the estate of the 
Section 38 proceedings. 

4. There being no further business, the meeting was terminated at 3:35 PM. 

Rick Anderson, CPA, CMA, CIRP, LIT, CFE 

15 day of February, 2022. 

Crystal Martin, Inspector 

Page 1of 1 



Dislrict of Alberta 
Division No: 02-Calgary 
Estate No.: 25-095246 
Court No: 25-095246 

IN THE MATIER OF THE BANKRUPTCY OF 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

(the "Company") 

NOTICE 
(Section 38 of the Ba11kr11ptcy a11d Insolt'e11cy Act) 

TAKE NOTICE THAT MNP Ltd., Trustee of the Estate ofNorth American Steel Erectors Inc. 
("NASE"), a Bankrupt, is willing to assign and transfer to any one or more of the creditors all of 
the Trustee's right, title and interest in the action described below pursuant to Section 38 of lhe 
Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act ("Acr'). 

• Litigation regarding a contract for the supply of steel on a project in Calgary, Alberta, (the 
"9th Avenue Bridge Project") commenced by NASE against Shield Industries Ltd. 
("Shield") and Wynwerd Insurance Group ("Wynward"}, who had issued a Performance 
Bond concerning the 9th Avenue Bridge Project with the Court of Queen's Bench of 
Alberta. The claim is for $3,673,856.02 and the penal limit of the Performance Bond is 
$1,860,174.02. Shield has not defended the claim, but a Statement of Defence has been 
filed by Wynward. This litigation was at the document exchange phase as at the date of 
bankruptcy. 

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT the Trustee perfonned its due diligence and completed 
its investigation with respect to the realization of the subject property. The Trustee has concluded 
that it does not have access to funds to continue the litigation and effect a potential realization for 
the benefit of the Creditors. 

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT Section 38 of the Act provides that, any one or more 
of the creditors may make application to the Court for an Order authorizing them to take a 
proceeding in their own name and at their own expense and risk. 

Dated at Calgary, Alberta this 23n1 day of February 2022. 

MNPLtd., 
In its capacity 
NorthAmeri 

Trustee of the Estate of 
Steel Erectors Inc. and not in its personal 
city 

Victor P. oeger, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT, CFE 
Senior Vice President 

.. 



District of Alberta 
Division No.: 02-Calgary 
Estate No.: 25-095246 
Court No.: 25-095246 

IN THE MATIER OF THE BANKRUPTCY OF 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

NOTICE 
(Section 38 of the Ba11kr11ptcy a11d I11solve11cy Act (the "Act")} 

FURTHER TO THE NOTICE ofMNP Ltd. (the ''Trustee") in its capacity as the Trustee of the Estate 
of North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE"), a Bankrupt, dated February 23, 2022 (the "Notice'', 
copy enclosed), the Trustee has obtained records of NASE concerning the litigation commenced by 
NASE with the Court of Queen's Bench of Alberta against Shield Industries Ltd. and Wynward Insurance 
Group concerning the 9th Avenue Bridge Project (as such term is defined in the Notice). As previously 
described in the Notice, the Trustee has concluded that it does not have access to funds to continue the 
said litigation and effect a potential realization for the benefit of Creditors. 

AND FURTHER TO THE NOTICE, any creditors seeking to pursue an application under Section 38 of 
the Act may, at their own risk and expense within thirty (30) days of the day of this notice, view those 
records of NASE in the Trustee's possession concerning the 9th Avenue Bridge Project litigation by 
contacting the Trustee's legal counsel, Dean Hutchison, of Caron & Partners LLP, via e-mail phone at 
403-770-4023, or via e-mail at dhutchison@caronpartncrs.com, to make arrangements to view the 
records. 

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT any creditors seeking to view the said records shall do so at 
their own risk and expense, and such creditor(s) shall be responsible for reimbursing the Trustee and its 
legal counsel for any costs and expenses incurred in making the said records available for viewing. 

Dated at Calgary, Alberta this 13th day of April 2022. 

MNPLtd., 
In its capacity as Trustee of the Estate of 
North American Steel Erectors Inc., and 
not in its personal or corporate capacity 

Rick Anderson, CPA, CMA, CIRP, LIT, CFE 
Vice President 
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This is EXHIBIT "M" referred to in the Affidavit 
of Stuart Detsky, sworn before me this l.i..!'.: 
day of Aug st, 2022. 

Province of Ontario 



COURT FILE NUMBER 

COURT 

JUDICIAL CENTRE 

PLAINTIFF 

DEFENDANTS 

DOCUMENT 

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE 
AND CONTACT 
INFORMATION OF PARTY 
FILING THIS DOCUMENT 

CALGARY 

THEBANKOFNOVASCOTIA 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS 
INC. 

AFFIDAVIT 

Ramsay Legal Counsel 
#101, 4603 Varsity Dr. NW 
Calgary, Alberta T3A 2L6 
Tel: {403) 247-2111 
Fax: (403) 247-1270 

Attn: Dan B. Ramsay 
Solicitor's File No. 21-0016 

AFFIDAVIT OF STEEVE TOUPIN 

Sworn/affirmed on April 20, 2022 

I, STEEVE TOUPIN, of Cochrane, Alberta, SWEAR AND SAY THAT: 

COM 
June 14 2022 

1. I am a principal and the Corporate Representative of the Defendant, North American 
Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE"), and as such have personal knowledge of the matters 
hereinafter deposed to except where stated to be based on information and belief. 

2. NASE carries on business throughout Canada providing steel erector contracting and 
other services to large construction projects, including bridges, commercial and 
residential condominium towers, and sports facilities. 

3. On July 29, 2021 NASE was ordered into bankruptcy by the Order of Justice C.M. Jones, 
and MNP Ltd. (the ' 4Trustee") was appointed as trustee of the bankrupt estate. 

4. At the time of the bankruptcy, NASE was the plaintiff in 2 separate ongoing legal actions 
in Alberta and in Manitoba, and a related action in Ontario. 
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5. On December 9, 2020, NASE had filed a Statement of Claim in the Court of Queen,s 
Bench of Alberta, Calgary, Court File No. 2001-16202, against Shield Industries Ltd. and 
Wynward Insurance Group arising from NASE's provision of materials and services for a 
bridge located at 9th Avenue in Calgary, Alberta (the "Shield Action"). Attached hereto 
and marked as Exhibit "A" is a copy of the Statement of Claim of the Alberta Action. 

6. As alleged in the Alberta Action, NASE entered into a purchase order with Shield 
Industries Ltd. for it to fabricate and supply steel for the bridge project. Shield Industries 
Ltd. ,s obligations were guaranteed under a performance bond issued by Wynward 
Insurance Group in favour of NASE. Shield Industries Ltd. failed to meet its obligations, 
and Wynward has disputed the amounts owing to NASE for the costs of the materials and 
services Shield Industries Ltd. was to provide under the purchase order. The total sought 
in this action against both defendants is $3,673,856.02. 

7. As the amount sought in the Shield Action was secured by way of a perfonnance bond, 
NASE will be guaranteed payment of $1.9 million (the amount of the bond coverage) by 
Wynward Insurance Group if NASE can establish liability. 

8. At the time of the bankruptcy, Statements of Defence had been filed in the Shield Action 
and the parties were in the process of compiling their documents for Affidavits of 
Records. 

9. On May 7, 2020, NASE filed a Statement of Claim in the Court of Queen,s Bench, 
Winnipeg Centre, Court File No. CI 20-01-27129 against Exact Detailing Ltd. (the 
"Exact Action"). The action pertains to an agreement for Exact Detailing Ltd. to provide 
structural steel detailing design services to the construction of a tower located in 
Winnipeg, Manitoba. Exact Detailing Ltd. breached the terms of the agreement by failing 
to attain approval for extra work orders, failing to provide electronic drawings, and 
causing delays in the progress of work and prevented NASE from completing its work on 
the project, causing damages to NASE of $4,677, 711.08. Attached hereto and marked as 
Exhibit "B" is a copy of the Statement of Claim in the Exact Action. 

l 0. The Exact Action was proceeding under the above-mentioned court file number, but there 
had been earlier proceedings under the Builder's Lien Act which were effectively 
incorporated into the Exact Action, Court of Queen's Bench Action No. CI 19-01-24911. 

11. fu addition to the Manitoba Exact Action, Exact commenced a claim against NASE and 
several other defendants in Oshawa, Ontario, CYJ9oQ0032230000 in respect of the same 
subject matter as the Winnipeg action (the "Ontario Exact Action"). 

12. Prior to the date of the bankruptcy, the parties to the Exact Action had agreed to 
arbitration. This was to take place sometime in the near future, though an actual date had 
not been scheduled. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "C" is a copy of a Year End 
Audit Letter from NASE's Manitoba counsel for the Exact Action. 
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13. At the time of the bankruptcy, I believed that the Exact Action (and Ontario Exact 
Action) would be resolved within the following few months by way of arbitration and 
would likely result in a significant payment or award made in favour of NASE. 

14. In late February, 2022, I and NASE received notice from the Trustee that it was willing to 
assign and transfer the Trustee' s right and interest in the Shield Action. Attached hereto 
and marked as Exhibit "D" is a copy of the Notice. 

15. I am a creditor of NASE by way of a shareholder loan to the corporation in the amount of 
$74 I ,868.28. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "E" is a copy of a promissory note 
dated January 18, 2016, evidencing the amount owed to me by the corporation. NASE 
was originally incorporated on January I 8, 2016, as Central Erectors Inc., and changed its 
name to NASE on March 8, 2016. The Promissory Nole remains outstanding and owing 
by NASE. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "F" is a Alberta Registries search 
evidencing the name change from Central Erectors Inc. to NASE. 

16. The amount owed to me by virtue of the promissory note was included in NASE's yearly 
financial statements as "advances from shareholders" . As of the date of bankruptcy, there 
was $634,862.00 owing. Attached hereto and marked as Exhibit "G" is a copy of 
NASE's 2020 financial statements, the latest available. 

17. I am in a position to prosecute and make decisions for NASE in respect of the Shield 
Action and the Exact Action as I have had firsthand involvement in the contracting and 
projects which are subject of the litigation. 

I 8. After receiving the Notice, I anticipated receiving a similar notice in respect of the Exact 
Action and the Ontario Exact Action. On March 24, 2022, after not receiving a similar 
notice, counsel for NASE contacted counsel for the Trustee inquiring into whether 
similar notices would be forthcoming. On March 25, 2022, Counsel for the Trustee 
emailed counsel for NASE informing him that the Exact Action and Ontario Exact 
Action had been "resolved and discontinued". 

19. I make this affidavit in support of an application to assign carriage of the Shield Action 
the Exact Action and the Ontario Exact Action to myself. Regardless of the status of the 
Exact actions, I wish to be granted carriage of these to determine whether they can be 
salvaged. The Exact Action was nearing arbitration and I am confident that if the action 
can be reinstated, NASE can receive an award through arbitration. 

SW9,~ BEFO~ ~fat Calgary, Alberta, 
this Yday of~ 2022. 

d for the issioner for 
Province of Alberta 

----;:;:::-:an:tlel Bertram Ramsay 
Barrister & Solicitor 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

.· i 
l I 

I i · 
~ \ I ,_ 'V 

) STEEVE TOUPIN 



COURT FILE NUMBER 
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JUDICIAL CENTRE 
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p :"'\~i· . !!Ot!C~ nATHS 

IN ANLI i-. 1 i1~ Frtcr.., INC~ OF ALBERTA 

2001-16202 
Daniel Bertram Ramsay 

Barrister & Solicitor 

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERT A 

CALGARY 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

SHIELD INDUSTRIES LTD. and WYNW ARD 
INSURANCE GROUP 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND 

Form 10 
(Rule 3.2S] 

CONT ACT INFORMATlON OF 

Jeffrey D. Vallis, Q.C. / Theron Davis 
Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
1900, 520 3n1 Ave. S.W. THIS IS EXHIBIT ': ...•... C.l.. ....... " 

PARTY FILING THIS 

DOCUMENT 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT(S) 

Calgary, AB T2P OR3 
Telephone: ( 403) 232-9404 1976 l 
Facsimile: (403) 266-1395 

File No. 446270-00000 I 

You are being sued. You are a defendant 

refeeed to in the Affidavit ol .... s.~~~~.~ .. T.9.Y.P.t.r.:z ....... . 
Sworn be ore me ibis .•••. ~ ........ .. 
day of ..... ~ ....... A.D. zo.z.~ 

Go lo the end of this document to see what you can do and when you must do it. 

Danrer Bertram Ramaay 
Barrister & Sollcltor 

Note: State below only facts and not evidence (Rule 13.6) 

Statement of facts relied on: 

I. North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant lo the 
laws of the Province of Alberta. NASE carries on the business of supplying and installing structural 
steel on conunercial, institutional, bridge and sports facility projects. 

2. The Defendant, Shield Industries Ltd. ("Shield") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant to 
the laws of the Province of Alberta. Shield carries on business as a fabricator of, among other things, 
structural steel. 

3. The Defendant, Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") is a body corporate, duly incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of Canada and is duly authorized to transact the business of suretyship in Canada, 
including in the Province of Alberta. 
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TheProjed 

4. Pursuant to Subcontract #463022 - OS, dated May 30, 2019, NASE was engaged by PCL 
Construction Management Inc. ("PCL'') to supply, fabricate and install structural steel on the 9lh Ave 
Vehicle Bridge Replacement project (the "Project"), located in Calgmy, Alberta (the 
"Subcontract''). 

5. On or about April 4, 2019, NASE and Shield entered into Purchase Order Number 1906-002 (the 
"Purchase Order''), whereby Shield agreed to fabricate and supply the structural steel for the Project 
as described in Shield's Quotation No. 6317, dated January 3 I, 2019 (the "Work"). for a stipulated 
price ofS3,720,348.03 (including GS'I) (the npurcbase Order Price"). 

6. The Purchase Order incorporated the terms and conditions of the Subcontract by express reference 
and Shield was bound to adhere to those terms and conditions in the performance of the Work. 

Tlte Perfornu111ce Bo11d 

7. Pursuant to clause 4 of the special conditions of the Subcontract, Shield was obligated to provide a 
performance bond in favour of NASE, providing a penal sum equivalent to one-half of the Purchase 
Order Price. 

8. On or about October 9, 2019, Wynward issued Performance Bond No. W086-102-00IP/L-A (the 
"Bond''), with a penal limit of $1,860,174.02 (the "Bond Amount''), which replaced Bond No. 
W0186-102-001P/L. Under the Bond, NASE was the named Obligee, Shield was the Principal, and 
Wynward was the Surety. NASE pleads and relies upon the terms and provisions of the Bond. 

9. In the event that Shield defaulted on any of its obligations under the Purchase Order, NASE could 
deliver to Wynward a written statement that Shield was in such default and request that Wynward 
fulfill its obligations under the Bond (a "Demand"). 

10. In advance of making a Demand on the Bond, NASE was, entirely at its own discretion, entitled to 
notify Wynward if Shield was, or was soon to be, in default and request that the parties attend a 
conference to communicate those concerns (a "Pre-Demand Conference"). 

11. Upon receipt of a Demand, Wynward would be afforded a reasonable 1ime within which to conduct 
an investigation of the Demand and detennine its liability under the Bond. 

12. Twenty-one days following receipt of the infonnation required to conduct the investigation, 
Wynward was obligated to complete its investigation and advise NASE ofits decision. Alternatively, 
if Wynward required more time to complete its investigation then, before the expiry of the 
aforementioned twenty-one days, it was obligated to write to NASE and set out the status of the 
investigation and provide an estimate of when the investigation would be complete. 

13. While Wynward performed its investigation, NASE was entitled under the terms of the Bond to 
engage a replacement contractor or contractors to proceed with the Work for the benefit and 
protection of the Project and in order to mitigate its losses. 

14. Where NASE engaged a replacement contractor, and subject to the conditions of the Bond, tho 
reasonable costs incurred by NASE were to be reimbursed by Wynward. 

JS. Following an investigation, if the conditions precedent have been satisfied and Shield's default 
confirmed, Wynward would then be obligated to promptly: 
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(a) remedy the default; 

(b) complete the Purchase Order in accordance with its terms and conditions; 

(c} obtain a bid, or bids, for submission to NASE for completing the Purchase Order in 
accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by NASE and Wynward 
of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and NASE, 
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default, or a 
succession of defaults, under the contract or contracts of completion, arranged under this 
option) sufficient funds to pay to complete Shield's obligations in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Purchase Order, and to pay those expenses incurred by NASE 
as a result of Shield's default relating directly to the performance of the Work under the 
Purchase Order, Jess the balance of the Purchase Order Price; or, 

(d) pay NASE the lesser of: (1) the Bond Amount; or, (2) NASE's proposed cost of completion 
less the bnlance of the Subcontract price. 

S/1ield's Default and 1/1e Surely's Investlgat/011 

16. In order to ensure that Shield was meeting its obligations under the Purchase Order on or about 
October 31, 2019, among other times, NASB, PCL and Shield met and discussed Shield's progress. 
Part of that meeting included potential options that would ensure that Shield met the Purchase Order 
with respect to schedule, and conformed to the plans and specifications incorporated into the 
Purchase Order. Among the options discussed was the possibility that Shield engage a subcontractor 
to assist with portions ofits Work. 

17. Entirely of its own volition, Shield subcontracted with Supreme Steel LP to perform portions of the 
Work. 

18. In the months subsequent to the October 31, 2019 meeting, it began to become clear to NASE that 
Shield was unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order. As a result, on 
December l 1, 2019, NASE issued a notice of non-compliance to Shield requesting that Shield take 
steps to avoid a default (the "Notice of Non-Compliance"). 

19. NASE received and reviewed Shield's response to the Notice of Non-Compliance upon returning 
from a shut down for the holiday season and, on or about January 2. 2020, NASE contacted a 
representative ofWynward regarding its continuing concerns related to Shield's perfonnance. 

20. Without any appreciable improvement following receipt of Shield's response to the Notice of Non­
compliance, on January 16. 2020. NASE informed Wynward in writing that Shield was in default 
under the Purchase Order, and that NASE had become aware that Shield was facing financial 
difficulties, and requested a Pre-Demand Conference. That Pre-Demand Conference was held on 
January 30, 2020, during which Shield confirmed that it was facing financial difficulties. 

21. On or about February 20, 2020, Shield indicated that it would be laying off its employees and that its 
financial difficulties would prevent it from being able to continue with the Work. 

22. Further, Shield's performance had not improved following the Pre-Demand Conference and, on or 
about February 27, 2020, NASE made a Demand to Wynward, declared that Shield was in default 
and requested that Wynward fulfill its obligations under the Bond (the ''Bond Claim"). 
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23. On or about March 2, 2020 to March 5, 2020, Shield made the final deliveries of materials and then 
subsequently abandoned the Project. 

24. Following the Bond Claim, Wynward began an investigation, with the full cooperation of NASE. 

25. Shield failed to satisfy its obligations W1der the Purchase Order. These failures include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

(a) Shield issued invoices that included, and Shield sought payment for, Work that was not 
complete; 

(b) Shield failed to foJlow the change request requirements of the Purchase Order and failed 
to justify additional costs for which it was seeking payment. which in tum resulted in 
NASE being unable to obtain a corresponding approval fi'om PCL; 

(c) Shield failed or otherwise refused to perform the Work as outlined in the plans, 
specifications, or as otherwise contemplated within the Purchase Order; 

(d) Shield pcrfonned the Work negligently and in breach of the express or implied terms of 
the Purchase Order; 

(e) Shield failed or refused to adequately correct significant portions of its negligent and 
deficient Work, but even where some portions of the Work were corrected, Shield failed 
to do so in a timely manner; 

(f) Shield failed to implement adequate quality assurance and quality control processes; 

(g) Shield failed to staff and maintain a sufficient number of employees, agents or 
subcontractors to complete the Work properly. on time, and in accordance with the express 
or implied terms of the Purchase Order; 

(h) Shield failed to staff appropriately skilled and competent employees, agents or 
subcontractors so that the Work could be completed properly, on time, and in accordance 
with the express or implied terms of the Subcontract; 

(i) Shield failed to properly tndn the employees, agents or subcontractors that it did have to 
ensure they were adequately qualified to perform the Work; 

(j) Shield failed to properly manage and supervise its employees, agents, or subcontractors; 

(k) Shield failed to maintain a safe work site at all times in accordance with the express or 
implied terms of the Subcontract; and 

(l) Shield failed to complete its scope of Work and abandoned the Purchase Order 

(collectively, "Shield's Defaults''). 

26. By contrast, NASE has satisfied all of its obligations under the Purchase Order including, but not 
limited to, having made timely payment to Shield for all of its validly perfonned Work and properly 
submitted invoices. 
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27. At no point in time did NASE relieve Shield from its contractual obligations, or otherwise waive, 
acquiesce or abandon its right to demand that Shield perform its obligations under the Purohase 
Order. 

28. On or about August 8, 2020, Wynward and NASE entered into a mitigation agreement (the 
"Mitigation Agreement"), whereby Wynward agreed that NASE could proceed with a remedial 
plan (the ".Remedial Plan") to complete the remaining work (the "Remaining Work'i, as described 
in Schedules to the Mitigation Agreement. Pursuant to the Mitigation Agreement, Wynward agreed 
not to challenge or dispute the completion of the Remaining Work performed by NASE in accordance 
with the Remedial Plan. 

29. Wynward and NASE entered into the Mitigation Agreement without prejudice to the rights and/or 
obligations of the parties under the Bond. 

30. To date, Wynward has failed or otherwise refused to provide a decision with respect to the Bond 
CJaim and, despite repeated demands, bas further failed to fulfiJl its obligations under the Bond. 

T/1e Costs to Compltte 

31. At this time, and subject to uncovering further deficiencies in Shield's work, the total cost to NASE 
to complete Shield's Work will be not less than $4,336,846.93. 

32. NASE had already paid to Shield $1,919,409.12 and. as a result, the balance of the contract price is 
$1,800,938.91. 

33. The resulting short fall ftom Shield's Defaults and abandonment of the PW'Cbase Order is, therefore, 
not less than Sl,535,908.02. 

Claims agai11st tlie De/em/ants 

34. Shield has failed, refused, or been otherwise unable to perform its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. As a result of Shield's Defaults, negligence, and breaches of the Purchase Order. NASE has 
suffered and continues to suffer damages and losses. 

35. Wynward has failed to fulfill its obligations under the Bond. Specifically, Wynward has failed to 
take the steps necessary to see that Shield's Defaults were corrected and the Work completed. By so 
doing, Wynward has exacerbated the delay on the Project to such an extent that NASE has had to 
incur significant additional costs and its losses have been substantially increased. 

36. Further, Wynward bas fa.iJed and or otherwise refused to render a decision regarding the Demand 
and has taken an unreasonable amount of time in so delaying. 

37. As a result of both Shield's Defaults or its negligence in carrying out the Work under the Purchase 
Order, and Wynward's conduct and breaches of the Bond, NASE has suffered, and continues to 
suffer, serious damages including. but not limited to, losses from delay, additional costs, Work 
deficiencies, bank charges, interest costs, increased administrative and overhead costs, and costs to 
complete Shield's unfmished Work. NASE currently estimates such losses, the particulars and total 
amount of which sbaJl be proven at trial. to be not less than as folJows: 

{a) ShortfalJ on costs to complete of $2,535,908.02; 
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{b) Additional manpower costs of$38S,948.00; 

(c) Delay and acceleration costs of$648,000.00; 

(d) Liquidated damages losses of approximately $104,000.00; and, 

( c) Such additional costs as may be proven at trial. 

Remedy souibt: 

38. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendant, Wynward: 

(a) a declaration that the Perfonnance Bond remains in full force and effect; and, 

(b) a declaration that NASE has discharged all preconditions for payment under the 
Performance Bond, or alternatively for relief from forfeiture in respect thereof. 

39. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendants, Wynward and Shield, jointly and severally: 

(a) judgment in the amount of$3,673,856.02, or in the case of Wynward the Bond Amount; 

(b) pre-judgment and post-judgment interest in accordance with the Judgment Interest Act, 
RSA 2000, c J-1; 

(c) costs of this action on a solicitor-client basis or on such other basis as may be determined 
by this Honourable Court; 

( d) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANT($) 

You only have a short time to do something to defend yourself against this claim: 

20 days if you are served in Alberta 

J month if you are served outside Alberta but in Canada 

2 months if you are served outside Canada. 

You can respond by filing a statement of defence or a demand for notice in the office of the clerk of 
the Court of Queen's Bench at Calgary, Alberta, AND serving your statement of defence or a demand 
for notice on the plaintifrs(s') address for service. 

WARNING 

If you do not file and serve a statement of defence or a demand for notice within your time period, 
you risk losing the lnw suit automatically. If you do not file, or do not serve, or are late in doing 
either of these things, a cowt may give a judgment to the plaintifits) against you. 
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BETWEEN: 

THE QUEEN'S BENCH 
Winnipeg Centre 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC., 

- and-

EXACT DETAILING L TO., 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 

TO THE DEFENDANT: 

plaintiff, 

defendant. 

A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED AGAINST YOU by the plaintiff. The 

claim made against you Is set out In the following pages. 

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, you or a Manitoba lawyer acting for you 

must prepare a statement of defence In Form 1 SA prescribed by the Queen's Bench Rules, serve 

it on the plaintiff's lawyer or where the plaintiff does not have a lawyer, serve It on the plaintiff, 

and fne It In this court office, WITHIN TWENTY DAYS after this statement of claim Is served on 

you, if you are served in Manitoba. 

If you are served In another province or territory of Canada or In the United States of 

America, the period for serving and filing your statement of defence Is forty days. If you are 

served outside Canada and the United States of America, the period is sixty days. 

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, JUDGEMENT MAY BE GIVEN 

AGAINST YOU IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE TO YOU. 



IF YOU PAY THE PLAINTIFF'S CLAIM, and $750.00 for costs, within the time for serving 

and filing your statement of defence, you may move to have this proceeding dismissed by the 

court. If you believe the amount claimed for costs Is excessive, you may pay the plaintiff's clalm 

and $750.00 for costs and have the costs assessed by the court. 

oa1e: ~ 7t aaa,o 

TO: EXACT DETAILING LTD. 
c/o Thompson Dorfman Sweatman LLP 
1700 - 242 Hargrave Street 
Winnipeg, MB R3C OV1 
Attention: Meghan C. Ross 
lawyers for the defendant 

D. CHAMPAGNE 
DBPUIYREGISTRAR 

COURT OF QUEEN'S BEN<ll 
Issued by: ___ _.F .... OR__...MANITO ___ BA __ _ 

Deputy Registrar 
Address of Court Office: 

1 OOC - 408 York Avenue 
Winnipeg, MB R3C OP9 



CLAIM 

1 • The plaintiff claims from the defendant: 

a) the sum of $4,Sn,711.08 (resulting from piecemeal procurement of steel and 

costs to engage TDS Industrial Services Ltd. to provide detailing services); 

b) payment for additional damages for breach of contract and breach of the duty of 

good faith in contractual performance in an amount to be determined at trial; 

c) pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; 

d) costs of this action; and 

e) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

2. The plaintiff, North American Steel Erecters Inc. {"NASEn), is a corporation incorporated 

pursuant to the laws of the Province of Alberta, and Is duly registered to carry on business in 

the Province of Manitoba, and carries on business as a prime steel contractor across Canada. 

3. The defendant, Exact Detailing Ltd. ("Exact") is a corporation Incorporated pursuant to 

the laws of the Province of Britrsh Columbia, and carries on the business of providing steel 

detailing services. 

4. This action arises from the design and construction of the Winnipeg Artis Tower (the 

11Projecf') located in Winnipeg, Manitoba. 

5. On or about April 6, 2018, NASE submitted a revised proposal for the supply and 

installation of structural steel, Joists and deckJng for the Project and on or about June 13, 201 B 

Dlaser Management (2006) Ltd. ("Diaser'), the Construction Manager, issued a purchase order 

to NASE to perform the work (the "Contract"). 
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The Sub-Contract 

6. On or about May 31, 2018 Exact tendered a quote to NASE for the supply of structural 

steel design detail services which included the supply of structural and steel design, direction 

drawings, shop drawings and steel erection detailed layout Instructions and modelling and, on 

or about June 19, 2018 NASE Issued a purchase order to Exact therefor, upon terms which 

Included weekly model sharing and progress reporting and payments to be made to Exact 

when NASE Is paid by Diaser (the "Sub-Contract"). 

7. The value of the Sub-contract Is made up of the base contract price of $375,000.00 plus 

$18,750.00 In sales tax (GST of 5%). 

8. Clause 2 of the Sub-contract directs that "payments (are) to be made within the latter of 

thirty (30) days or five (5) days after receipt of payment for such work from Construction 

Manager" (the "pay when paid clause"). For the purposes of the pay when paid clause, the 

Construction Manager and the Owner under NASE's contract are one and the same. 

9. NASE and Exact have collaborated on previous projects, which were governed by 

purchase orders issued by NASE which also contained a "pay when paid" clause. Exact 

understood that "pay when paid" clauses governed the contractual relationship between Exact 

and NASE, and Exact accepted the pay when paid clause under the Sub-contract. 

Extra Work Orders 

1 O. In addition to the base contract, between on or about July 61 2018 to on or about May 30, 

2019, Exact Issued 56 extra work orders ("EWOs"), 3 of which were cancelled, for which Exact 

claimed the sum of $205, 152.41 for the remaining 53 EWOs. 
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11. In accordance with the Sub-contract, and as agreed by Exact, any changes, Including 

EWOss had to be approved and paid by the Owner before NASE could issue payments to 

Exact. 

12. Contrary to the tenns of the Sub-contract, Exact withheld and failed to provide electronic 

drawings (models) and issued viewer only drawings such that NASE was unable to make any 

changes as required, and Insisted on payment prior to NASE being paid by the Owner which 

also contributed to delays in the progress of the work. 

13. Notwithstanding NASE'seffortsto have Exactcomply, onoraboutJune 28, 2019, NASE 

terminated the Sub-contract and retained TDS Industrial Services Ltd. who had to re-do some 

of Exact's work for which Exact had been paid, and complete the work left outstanding under 

the Sub-contract at a cost to NASE of $230,500.00 and GST of $11,525.00, totalling 

$242,025.00. 

14. On or about July 25, 2019s Exact caused a Builders Lien to be registered against the 

Owner's property for the sum of $205, 152.41 (the "Lien Amount"), which NASE vacated with 

Exact's consent by payment into court the Lien Amount without prejudice to any claims, set­

offs, or counterclaims which NASE may have, Including the validity of the claim for lien itself. 

The lien was discharged as of January 13, 2020. 

15. Exacrs claim for lien Is Improper and exaggerated, and NASE pleads and relies upon 

section 40 of The Builders' Liens Act, C.C.S.M. c. 891. 

16. As a result of Exacrs misconduct described herein, Including Its failure to deliver the 

detailed design model and insisting on premature payment before releasing shop drawings 
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pursuant to its Sub-contract with NASE, Exact severely impeded NASE's ability to periorm the 

Contract, NASE claims as set out in paragraph 1 hereof. 

~ 
"] 

Date: May)f, 2020 MARR FINLA VSON POLLOCK LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 

240 River Avenue 
Winnipeg, MB R3L 084 

Telephone: {204) 925·5308 
Facsimile: {204) 992-7099 

DAVID I. MARR 
lawyers for the plaintiff 
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. ., J ~, .... A.D. 20 ......... ~ 

day r1f .... ./:t,~· ··~::;;;;..:::,-_----~'.:» 

DAVID!. MARR 
dmarr@mfplawco.com 

(204) 925-5308 
Christine Watson 

cwatson@mfplawco.com 

.............. .. ....................... :............... ...JallA.No. DM190024 
............. ;..c:]t,HJ. .~ r' 'ilM;:: ~ ._ ... , ,J,\ ERTA oan\e\ Bertram ~·~~Cl"J February 18, 2021 IN AND FOR 1'rlc i-RU>Jlr!CE OF ALB Barrister & Sohc1tor 

Via email to: stoupin@JJasteelerectors.com 

THIS IS EXHIBIT ·: ...... r::: ........ " North American Steel Erectors 
160 Griffin Ranch Road 
Cochrane, AB T4C 286 

Attention: Mr. Steeve Toupin, PE, P.Eng 

referred to in the Alfidavii of 
....... s~~~.~~~ .. r.:9.!-:!.\>.~.~ ...... 

. . :2. Sworn be ore me this .................. . 
d ......... A.D. 20 ... ?.. ( 

Dear Sir: O~erril 
5
B
1
e
8

rtr r&am
8 

R
11

a.m
1 

1ay ................. • ................ ::;;::::::::: ~ 
Re: 

0 Cl or A co ISSIONEfl FO~ 
Year End Audit - Exact Detailing Ltd. lN ANO FOR THE PROVINCE OF AU3ERTA 

In response to your request for a status report of the claim of North American Steel Erectors 
Inc. (NASE) against Exact Detailing Ltd. (Exact) and Exact's counterclaim against NASE in 
the Court of Queen's Bench, Winnipeg Centre, under file No. Cl20-01-27129, we would 
advise as follows. 

In response to a Builder's Lien filed by Exact against land owned by Artis Winnipeg Square 
Parade Ltd. on July 25, 2019 in regard to its claim for the sum of $205, 152.41 for alleged 
unpaid accounts. NASE paid the said sum into court, following which Exact consented to the 
discharge of the Builder's Lien. Thereafter, on May 7, 2020 NASE commenced an action in 
the Court of Queen's Bench, Winnipeg Centre, against Exact claiming the sum of 
$4,677,711 .08, resulting from piecemeal procurement of steel and costs to engage another 
detailing service to correct the deficient work of Exact and to complete unfinished work. Exact 
filed a Statement of Defence and Counterclaim against NASE on June 9, 2020 for the said 
sum of $205.152.41 . 

Notwithstanding the pending action and counterclaim (the "Dispute"), the parties have agreed 
to refer the Dispute to arbitration. Discussions are underway to decide upon a sole arbitrator 
and. in the meantime, documents relevant to the Dispute are in the process of being 
exchanged. It is anticipated that an arbitrator will be agreed upon within the next month or 
so, after which the arbitrator's terms of appointment will be settled and pre-hearing matters 
including the exchange of documents and examinations for discovery will be arranged and 
dates will be set for the arbitration hearing, which may take place before the end of this year. 

Assuming NASE can satisfy the arbitrator of the validity and quantum of its claim (and 
correspondingly, that Exact is not entitled to its counterclaim). we anticipate an award in 
NASE's favour although the prospect of recovery of an award is unknown at this time. 
Regardless, assuming NASE can satisfy the arbitrator that Exact breached its contract with 
NASE, Exact's counterclaim should fail, thereby allowing NASE to make an application for 
payment out of court of the said sum of $205,152.41 (plus interest). which NASE paid into 
Court to have the Builder's Lien discharged. 

240 River A venue Winnipeg, Monitoba R3L 084 www.mfplawto.com ph 204 474 2600 fax. 204 992 7099 
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I trust this is satisfactory but should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 

Yours truly, 

MARR INLA YSON POLLOCK LLP 
Per: 

•SelVlces Provided by David I. Marr Law CotJ>otallon 

240 River Avenue: Winnipeg, Manitoba R3l 084 www.mfplawco.com ph. 204.474.2600 f11.11. 204.992. 7099 



District of Alberta 
Division No: 02-Calgary 
Estate No.: 25-095246 
Court No: 25-095246 

THIS TS EXTlfflTT " ...... LL .... "···~""" 

~
rrecl to iutf Affidavit of 

"7?£1/(,, . ~r~!.':~.L .... -.. ....... t:f.~ ..... . ...... f;l<~ll"'7.... 0 
Sworn before me this .... _ ....... - ......... --

day of. .... "-4./!..f' l. .. L .. A.D. 20 .. '!JZ 

IN THE MATTER OF THE BANKRUPTCY OF 
NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

(the "Company") 

\ \ oertram RamsaY oan e ~ · 't r . •·er & so\1c1 0 
Barns~ 

NOTICE 
(Section 38 of the Ba11kr11ptcy a11d J11solve11cy Act) 

TAKE NOTICE THAT MNP Ltd., Trustee of the Estate of North American Steel Erectors Inc. 
("NASE"), a Bankrupt, is willing to assign and transfer to any one or more of the creditors all of 
the Trustee's right, title and interest in the action described below pursuant to Section 38 of the 
Bankmptcy and Insolvency Act ("Act"). 

• Litigation regarding a contract for the supply of steel on a project in Calgary, Alberta, (the 
"9th Avenue Bridge Project") commenced by NASE against Shield Industries Ltd. 
("Shield") and Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward"), who had issued a Perfonnance 
Bond concerning the 9th Avenue Bridge Project with the Court of Queen's Bench of 
Alberta. The claim is for $3,673,856.02 and the penal limit of the Performance Bond is 
$1,860, 174.02. Shield has not defended the claim, but a Statement of Defence has been 
filed by Wynward. This litigation was at the document exchange phase as al the date of 
bankruptcy. 

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT the Trustee perfonned its due diligence and completed 
its investigation with respect to the realization of the subject property. The Trustee hns concluded 
that it does not have access to funds to continue the litigation and effect a potential realization for 
the benefit of the Creditors. 

AND FURTHER TAKE NOTICE THAT Section 38 of the Act provides that, any one or more 
of the creditors may make application to the Court for an Order authorizing them to take a 
proceeding in their own name and at their own expense and risk. 

Dated at Calgary, Alberta this 23rd day of February 2022. 

MNP Ltd., 
In its capacity 
North Amcric 

Trustee of the Estate of 
Steel Erectors Inc. and not in its personal 
city 

Victor P. oeger, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT, CFE 
Senior Vice President 



Promissory Note 

$741,868.28 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned, CENTRAL ERECTORS INC. (the 
''Borrower"), unconditionally promises to pay to STEEVE TOUPIN (the "Lender") the 
principal sum of SEVEN HUNDRED FORTY-ONE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED SIXTY­
EIGHT DOLLARS AND TWENTY-EIGHT CENTS ($741,868.28) (the "Principal Amount") 
in accordance with the provisions of the Bill of Sale between the Borrower and the Lender dated 
as of the date hereof (the "Bill of Sale") and the Principal Amount shall be payable on demand 
without interest (the "Loan"). 

The Borrower may prepay all or any part of the outstanding balance of the Loan at any time without 
notice, bonus or penalty. 

The Borrower hereby waives presentment for payment, notice of dishonour, protest, notice of 
protest and demand with regard to this Promissory Note. No course of dealing between the 
Borrower and the Lender or any delay on the part of the Lender in exercising any rights hereunder 
shall operate as a waiver of any rights of the Lender. All the covenants, stipulations, promises and 
agreements in this Promissory Note contained by or on behalf of the Borrower shall bind any 
successor and assigns of the Borrower, whether pennitted or not and whether so expressed or not. 

This Promissory Note shall be governed by the laws of the Province of Alberta and the federal laws 
of Canada applicable therein. 

CENTRAL ERECTORS INC. 

Per: ~ 
Stee\f:~ Director 

. .................................................. ~ ................ .. 
A COMMISSIONER FOR'"OATHS 

IN AND FOR THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

oan1el Bertram Ramsay 
Barrister & Solicitor 



Government 
of Alberta• 

Corporation/Non-Profit Search F 
Corporate Registration System rms rs EXHIBIT " ............... -: ........... " 

Date of Search: 
*~v.e..:.~. ~1~:~~.~:. .. _ ... 2022/04120 ····f-::t'IF.v.. tr.~·· ' "")_/J 

09:29 AM Sworn befor.e me this ......... ':]/.-·····"·) -· Time of Search: 
Search provided by: A~PLUS REGISTRY SERVICES LTD. day of .. :!ft. .zf.. ......... A.D. io2.., .. 
Service Request Number: 37451027 

Customer Reference Nwnber: NORTH AMERICAN STEEL EREC 

Corporate Access Number: 2019448758 

Business Number: 739358497 

Legal Entity Name: NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

Name History: 

!Previous Legal Entity NamellDate of Name Change (YYYYIMMIDD)I 

!CENTRAL ERECTORS INC.U2016/03/08 I 

Legal Entity Status: Active 
Alberta Corporation Type: Named Alberta Corporation 
Registration Date: 2016/01/18 YYYY/MM/DD 

Registered Office: 

Street: 160 GRIFFIN RANCH ROAD 

City: COCHRANE 
Province: ALBERTA 

Postal Code: T4C2B8 

Records Address: 

Street: 
City: 

Province: 

Postal Code: 

160 GRIFFIN RANCH ROAD 

COCHRANE 
ALBERTA 

T4C2B8 

Email Address: MGOSW AMI@NASTEELERECTORS.COM 

Directors: 

Last Name: TOUPIN 

oante1 Bertram ~a!1'say 
Barrister & Sohc1tor 



First Name: STEEVE 
Street/Box Number: 264095 MONTERRA DRIVE 
City: COCHRANE 
Province: 
Postal Code: 

ALBERTA 
T4COA7 

Voting Shareholders: 

Last Name: 
FintName: 
Street: 
City: 

SPALDING 
GORDON 
10432 GLENROSE DRIVE 
DELTA 

Province: BRITISH COLUMBIA 
Postal Code: V4COA6 
Percent Of Voting Shares: 22.22 

Last Name: 
FintName: 
Street: 
City: 

TOUPIN 
STEEVE 
264095 MONTERRA DRIVE 
COCHRANE 

Province: ALBERTA 
Postal Code: T4COA 7 
Percent Of Voting Shares: 77.78 

Details From Current Articles: 

The iofonpatiop in this legal entity table supersedes equivalent electronic attachments 

Share Structure: 100 CLASS 11A11 SHARES 
Share Transfen Restrictions: NONE 
Min Number Of Directors: 1 
Mu Number Of Directors: 5 
Business Restricted To: NONE 
Business Restricted From: NONE 
Other Provisions: NONE 

Other Information: 



Last Annual Return Filed: 

File Year Date Filed (YYYYIMMIDD) 
2021 ~020/12/15 

Outstanding Returns: 

Annual returns are outstanding for the 2022 file year(s). 

Filing History: 

List Date (YYYYIMMID~(!ype of Filing 
2016/01/18 lncoroorate Alberta Corporation 
2016/03/08 Name Change Alberta Corporation 
~017/06/07 I Name/Structure Change Alberta Corporation 
Z019/01/ll Change Address 
2019/03/08 8hange Director I Shareholder 
2020/02122 UpdateBN 
2020/12/15 Enter Annual Returns for Alberta and Extra-Provincial Corp. 

The Registrar of Corporations certifies that, as of the date of this search, the above information is an 
accurate reproduction of data contained in the official public records of Coiporate Registry. 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Financial statements 
Unaudited - See independent practitioner's G 
review engagement report THIS IS EXHIBIT " ...... , ...... -............. " 

~red to in tlrel)!fidavi~o 
August 31, 2020 ....... 'tf.,~f.tl,(;. ...... L_t?...~t. .. ....... . 

Swf1rn befJ ·e ;~ tp1.'i ····-······-- 'Z-l 
day of...... . ...... {./. ....... A.D. 20 ·······---

............ /,. ......... ................ :······ .. ··-...... $ 
INAND FOR THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

Daniel Bertmm R~msay 
Barrister & Solic1lu1 

. = ---:J . - -

EV 
Building a better 
working world 



Independent practitioner's review engagement report 

To the Shareholders of 
North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of North American Steel Erectors Inc. that comprise 
the balance sheet as at August 31, 2020, and the statement of (loss} Income and (deficit) retained earnings, and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting poltcles and other 
explanatory Information. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with Csnadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such Internal control as management 
determines Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner's responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on our review. We 
conducled our review In accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review engagements, which 
require us to comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements In accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review 
engagements Is a limlted assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting of 
making Inquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applylng analytical procedures, 
and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed In a review are substantially less In extent than, and vary In nature from, those 
performed fn an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Emphasis of matter 

Without qualifying our conclusion, we draw attention to Note 3 to the financial statements, which indicates that 
North American Steel Erectors Inc. Incurred a net loss of $4,971,654 during the year ended August 31, 2020 
and as of that date, had an accumulated deficit of $4,558,260 and Its current liabililles exceeded Its current 
assets by $6,681,869. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth In Note 3, Indicate the existence 
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about North American Steel Erectors lnc.'s ability 
to continue as a going concern. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial statements do 
not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of North American Steel Erectors Inc. as at 
August 31, 2020, and results of Its operations and cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with 
Csnadlan accounting standards for private enterprises. 

Calgary, Canada 
March 23, 2021 

Amemllet llml DI Emsli. Youn~ Glob~ l..lmllOd 

Char11red Prore11lonalAccountants 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

As at August 31 

Assets 
Current 
Cash 
Accounts receivable [notes 4 and 5} 
Goods and services tax recoverable 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 
Income taxes recoverable 
Total current assets 
Property and equipment [note 7) 
Advance to 212n12Alberta Ltd. [note 6] 

Balance sheet 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficiency) 
Currant 
Bank Indebtedness [note BJ 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 9] 
Goods and services tax payable 
Deferred revenue 
Current portion of long-term debt [note 10] 
Advances from shareholders [note 11) 
Due to related individual [note 12] 
Liability for contract loss [note 16] 
Contingent liability [note BJ 
Total current liabilltles 
Long-tenn debt [note 10} 
Total liabllHles 
Commitments [note 13} 

Shareholders' (deficiency) equity 
Share capital [note 14] 
(Deficit) retained earnings 
Total shareholders' {deficiency) equity 

Se9 accompanying notes 

Unaudited - See independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

2020 
s 

2,966,390 

2,966,390 
1,461,964 

856,814 
5,285,168 

1,064,430 
2,287,474 

419,325 
20,984 
73,097 

634,862 
59,262 

2,670,225 
2,418,600 
9,648,259 

195,079 
9,843,338 

90 
(4,558,260) 
(4,558, 170) 
5,285,168 

2019 
s 

234,791 
5,658,897 

88,470 
7,500 

41,058 
6,030,716 
1,128,707 

546,620 
7,706,043 

6,221,427 

61,992 
774,147 

59,262 

7,116,828 
175,731 

7,292,559 

90 
413,394 
413.484 

7,706,043 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Statement of (loss) income and (deficit) retained earnings 

Year ended August 31 

Sales 
Revenue 
Cost of sales 
Gress profit 

Expenses 
General and administrative [note 15] 
Amortization 
Interest on long-term debt 

Income before the following 
Contract loss [note 16] 

Contingent loss [note BJ 
Loss on foreign exchange 

Interest 

Gain on sale of property and equipment 

Government assistance [note 4) 

Net (loss) Income for the year 

Retained earnings (deficit), beginning of year 
Retained earnings (deficit), end of year 

See accompanying notes 

Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

2020 2019 
s $ 

15,213,834 16,127,505 
11,900,712 13,435,311 
3,313,122 2,692,194 

2,863,187 2,003,350 
341,992 194,466 

6,611 5,947 
3,211 ,790 2,203,763 

101,332 488,431 
2,670,225 

2,418,600 

146 7,255 

{34) 

(5,951) 

{10,000) 
5,072,986 7,255 

(4,971,654) 481,176 

413,394 {67,782) 
(4,558,260) 413,394 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Statement of cash flows 

Year ended August 31 

Operating activities 
Net (loss) Income for the year 
Add Items not involving cash 

Amortization 
Contract loss 
Contingent toss 
Gain on sale of property and equipment 
Government assistance 

Changes In non-cash working capital balances related to operations 
Accounts receivable 
Goods and services tax recoverable 
Prepaid expense 
Income tax recoverable 
Accounts payable 
Goods and services tax payable 
Deferred revenue 

Cash (used In) provided by operating activities 

Financing activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Cash provided by financing activities 

Investing activities 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 
Advance to related company 
Repayment of advances by shareholders 
Cash used in Investing activities 

Net (decrease) increase In cash during the year 
Cash (bank Indebtedness), beginning of year 
(Bank indebtedness) cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes 

Unaudited - See independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

2020 2019 
$ $ 

(4,971,654} 481,176 

341,992 194,466 
2,670,225 
2,418,600 

(5,951) 
(10,000) 
443,212 675,642 

2,692,507 {2,715,087) 
88,470 {88,470) 

7,500 {7,500) 
41,058 

(3,933,953) 3,884,845 
419,325 (124,951) 

20,984 
(664,109) 948,837 
(220,897) 1,624.479 

156,898 36,494 
(116,445) (34.451) 

40,453 2,043 

(723,423) (365,003) 
54,125 

(310,194) (151,276) 
(139,285) (87,695) 

(1,118,777) (603,974) 

(1,299,221) 1,022,548 
234,791 {787,757) 

(1,064,430) 234,791 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August 31, 2020 
Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 

review engagement report 

1. Nature of business 

North American Steel Erectors Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act of 
Alberta on January 18, 2016. Company's primary business activity is construction and engineering services. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private 
enterprises rASPE1. 

Financial instruments 

The Company Initially records a financial Instrument at Its fair value except for a related party transaction, which 
Is recorded at the carrying or exchange amount depending on the circumstances. 

The Company recognizes Its transaction costs In net Income In the period incurred. However, financial 
instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value are adjusted by the transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to their origination, issuance or assumption. 

Subsequently, the Company measures financial Instruments as follows: 

• Investments In equity Instruments that are quoted In an active market at fair value; 

• all other Investments In equity Instruments at cost less lmpainnent; 
• all other financial assets at amortized cost: 

• financial llabHilies at amortized cost; and 

• derivative contracts, other than designated In a qualifyfng hedging relationship, at fair value. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization Is provided on the 
followfng bases over the assets' estimated useful llves: 

On the declining balance method: 

Fumlture and fixtures 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment 
Vehicles 

On the straight.fine method: 

Leasehold Improvements 

20% 
20% 
55'/a 
30% 

overtheleaseterm 

1 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

August 31, 2020 

Income taxes 

Notes to financial statements 

Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

The Company follows the taxes payable method whereby only the cost or benefit of current Income taxes for the 
year Is reported, as determined In accordance with the rules established by taxation authorities. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue Is recorded on contracts using the percentage of completion method. Under this method, revenue Is 
recorded as costs are incurred, and includes gross profit on each contract. Percentage of completion Is 
determined as total Incurred costs over estimated total costs. Periodic reviews of estimated final revenues and 
cost during the terms of such contracts may result In revisions of contract estimates which have the effect of 
including on a prospective basis, cumulative adjustments necessary to refiect the results Indicated by the revised 
estimates. Anticipated losses are recognized In earnings when they first become Identifiable. 

Deferred revenue represents the excess of billings to date over the amount of contract costs and profits 
recognized to date on the percentage of completion accounting method. 

Long-lived assets 

long-lived assets, which comprise property and equipment, are reviewed for Impairment if events or changes In 
circumstances Indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undlscounted future 
cash flows expected from use and residual value Is less than the carrying amount, the Jong-lived asset Is 
considered impaired. An Impairment loss Is measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the long­
lived asset exceeds its fair value. 

Government assistance 

Amounts received or receivable resulting from government assistance programs are reflected as reductions of 
the cost of the assets or expenses to which they relate when the Company becomes eligible to accrue them, 
provided there is reasonable assurance the benefits will be realized. 

3. Going concern 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with Canadian accounting 
standards for private enterprises on a going concern basis, which presumes that the Company will be able to 
realize its assets and discharge Its llabllltles In the normal course of operations for the foreseeable future. 

2 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August31,2020 
Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 

review engagement report 

The Company has a current year loss of $4,971,654 and has an accumulated deficit of $4,558,260 as at August 
31, 2020. As at August 31, 2020, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets by $6,681,869 [2019 
-$1,086,112). Further, the Company Is In violation of all financial covenants under its non-revolving tenn loan 
facility and the revolving loan facility as well as a mortgage-backed loan that It has guaranteed for a related party. 
These factors create a material uncertainty about the use of the going concern assumption. The Company's 
continuation as a going concern Is dependent upon its ability to obtain financing, the continued support of 
existing lenders and related parties and achieving profitable operations. As the outcomes of these matters cannot 
be predicted at this lime, there exists material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. 

The accompanying financial statements do not give effect to any adjustments which could be necessary should 
the Company be unable to continue as a going concern and, therefore, be required to realize Its assets and 
discharge Its liabilities In other than the normal course of business and at amounts different that those reflected 
In the accompanying financial statements. 

4. Government assistance 

In response to the negative economic impact of COVID-19, the Government of Canada announced a number of 
measures aimed to minimize the impact of the virus. The Company has recorded the following government 
assistance: 

[a) Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy 

The Company quaKfled for wage subsidies totaling $328,918 under the Canada Emergency Wage 
Subsidy Program. Under the terms of this program, companies that experienced declines In revenues 
meeting the eligibility criteria for each eligible period were entitled to receive wage subsidies for each 
employee based on the percentage of revenue decline up to maximum amounts specified for each period 
under the legislation. Of this amount, $163,242 Is included In accounts receivable as at August 31, 2020. 

[b] Canada Emergency Business Account Loan 

During the year, the Company received $40,000 [2019 - $nll] Canada Emergency Business Account 
(•cEBA") Term Loan that is non-interest bearing and which has no required principal repayments prior to 
December 31, 2022. Under the terms of the loan, If 75% of the principal ls repaid prior to December 31, 
2022, the remaining 25% principal will be forgiven. The loan has been recorded at the principal amount 
expected to be repaid and a benefit accrued for the amount expected to be forgiven. 

3 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August 31, 2020 

5. Accounts receivable 

Trade receivables 
Holdback receivables 
Government assistance receivable 

6. Advance to 2127712 Alberta Ltd. 

Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

2020 
$ 

1,837,877 
965,271 
163,242 

2,966,390 

2019 
$ 

4,091,458 
1,567,439 

5,658,697 

Amounts owing from 2127712 Alberta Ltd. ("2127712 AB"), a company related by common ownership, are non­
lnterest bearing with no set terms of repayment The amount receivable is subject to measurement uncertainly as 
2127712 AB has breached debt covenants on its mortgage-backed loan, as described in note 8. 

7. Property and equipment 

2020 2019 
Accumulated Net book Net book 

Cost amortization value value 
$ s s s 

Computers and printers 38,478 26,666 11,812 21,344 
Furniture and equipment 19,570 4,693 14,877 18,265 
Tools and equipment 1,092,610 489,764 602,846 595,432 
Leasehold improvement 700,468 159,406 541,062 202.424 
Vehicles 468,567 177,200 291,367 291,242 

2,319,693 857,729 1,461,964 1, 128,707 

8. Bank indebtedness 

In the prior year, the Company entered Into demand credit facility with a Canadian chartered bank for a maximum 
amount of $500, 000, bearing interest at the bank's prime rate plus 1.2%. The relevant prime rate at August 31, 
2020 was 2.45% (2019 - 3.95%). Subsequent to the fiscal year end, the maximum amount on this faciWty was 
Increased to $1,500,000. The credit facility is secured a general security agreement, a guarantee from 2127712 
AB, and guarantees from the Company's shareholders. As at August 31, 2020, the Company had drawn 
$1,109,950 (2019 • $n1Q on the facility. The terms of the banking agreement require the Company to comply with 
certain financial covenants. As at August 31, 2020, the Company was not in compliance with these requirements, 
and as a result, it Is not known what actions, if any will be taken by the lender. 

4 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August31,2020 
Unaudited - See independent practitioner's 

review engagement report 

The Company has also guaranteed the mortgage-backed loan of 2127712 AB with the same Canadian chartered 
bank. As at August 31, 2020 the amount owing on the related party loan Is $2,418,600 (2019 - $2,523,000). The 
loan bears Interest at the bank's variable Interest rate plus 3.75% per annum, repayable In monthly instalments of 
$8,700, and maturing on October 15, 2023. This loan requires both 2127712 AB and the Company to comply 
with certain financial covenants. As al August 31, 2020, both the Company and 2127712 AB were not In 
compliance with these covenants. The lender has not provided a waiver to the borrower for the breach of 
covenants as at August 31, 2020, and therefore, a contingent liability of $2,418,600 has been accrued in these 
financial statements with respect to the guarantee. This represents the outstanding principal amount on the loan, 
and the ultimate payment of the contingent liability would be potentially offset from proceeds of sale of the 
secured building. 

9. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities Is $1,213,602 {2019 - $368,669) of government remittances 
payable, including an estimate of penallles on unpaid payroil wltholdlngs of $122,000. 

5 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August31,2020 
Unaudited - See Independent practitioner's 

review engagement report 

10. Long-term debt 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 1.99% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $1, 124. The loan matures on August 21, 2022 and rs 
secured by a vehicle which has a carrying value of $32,657. 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 1.99% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $1, 124. The loan matures on August 21, 2022 and Is 
secured by a vehicle which has a carrying value of $32, 657. 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 3.49% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $1,221. The loan matures In August 23, 2023 and Is 
secured by a 2019 Ford Truck which has a carrying value of $44, 116. 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 3.99% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $672. The loan matures on August 24, 2024 and is secured 
by a Ford Truck which has a carrying value of $44, 123. 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 7.04% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $976. The loan matures on June 15, 2023 and Is secured by 
a 2018 Ford Truck which has a carrying value of $30,379. 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 1.49% per annum, with monthly 
Installment of $1,478. The loan matures on July 24, 2025 and Is secured 
by a 2020 Ford Truck which has a carrying value of $92,332. 

CEBA Loan. $40,000 loan with $10,000 forgivable portion, non-Interest 
bearing with no payments required until December 31, 2022. [note 4(b]] 

Ford Credit loan bearing Interest at 2.99% per annum, with monthly 
installment of $1,539. The loan matures in July 23, 2023 and is secured by 
a 2018 Ford Truck. This loan was fully repaid In the year. 

Less current portion of long-term debt 

Principal repayments on long-term debt due in next five years are as follows: 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

2020 
s 

26,412 

26,412 

41,647 

29,764 

29,977 

83,964 

30,000 

268,176 
73,097 

195,079 

2019 
$ 

39,241 

39,241 

54,600 

36,494 

68,147 
237,723 
61,992 

175,731 

$ 

73,097 
75,306 
78,455 
25,240 
16,078 
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North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

Notes to financial statements 

August31,2020 

11. Advances from shareholders 

Unaudited - See independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

Advances from shareholders are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no specified terms of repayment. 

12. Due to related individual 

Amounts due to a former shareholder of the Company are non-Interest bearing with no set tenns of repayment. 

13. Commitments 

Future annual minimum lease payments required under operating leases with 212n12 AB for the Company's 
premises through 2023 are as follows: 

2021 
2022 
2023 

14. Capital stock 

Authorized 

100 Class A common voting shares. 

Issued 

90 Class A common voting shares 

15. Related party transactions 

90 

$ 

90,000 
90,000 
75,000 

255,000 

90 

The Company, in the normal course of operations, rented a storage and residential building, from 212n12 AB. 
These transactions are measured at the exchange amount. Rental payments Included In general and 
administrative expenses during the year totaled $90,000 [2019 - $60,000 J. 

16. Contract loss 

During the year, the Company has accrued projected losses on an ongoing project totaling $2,670,225. The 
losses were Incurred predomlnantly due to significant additional costs Incurred by the Company on this project in 
relation to engaging multiple companies for detalllng work as the original entity contracted went bankurpt during 
the contract. The company Is Involved In litigation In an attempt to recover additional costs Incurred. 

1 



North American Steel Erectors Inc. 

August 31, 2020 

17. Financial instruments 

Risk and uncertainties 

Notes to financial statements 

Unaudited - See independent practitioner's 
review engagement report 

The Company Is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve Its 
strategic objectives for growth. The main objectives of the Company's risk management process are to ensure 
that risks are property Identified and the capital base is adequate In relation to these risks. The principal financial 
risks to which the Company is exposed are described below: 

Credit risk 

The Company is exposed to credit risk In the event of non-payment by Its customers for their accounts 
receivable. The Company believes there Is minimal risk associated with these amounts due to the size of the 
Company's customers. As at August 31, 2020, two [2019 • two) customers comprised 89% [2019 • 100%) of 
trade receivables. 

Liquidity risk 

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk due to its negative working capital and accumulated deficit, as disclosed 
in note3. 

Interest rate risk 

The Company Is exposed to Interest rate risk with respect to its long-term debt faciliUes which bear fixed rates of 
interest and with respect to its bank Indebtedness which bear interest at a floating rate based on the bank prime 
rate. 

18. Contingencies 

The Company Is currently involved In multiple litigations In which it is the plaintiff. Management Is unable to 
estimate the likelihood of success as well as the amount of any likely recovery In these litigations. 

8 
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COURT FILE NUMBER 

COURT 

JUDICIAL CENTRE 

PLAINTIFF 

DEFENDANT(S) 

DOCUMENT 

ADDRESS FOR SERVICE AND 

CONT ACT INFORMATION OF 

PARTY FILING THIS 

DOCUMENT 

2001-16202 

COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH OF ALBERT A 

CALGARY 

NORTH AMERICAN STEEL ERECTORS INC. 

SHIELD INDUSTRIES LTD. and WYNW ARD 
INSURANCE GROUP 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 

Jeffrey D. Vallis, Q.C. I Theron Davis 
Borden Ladner Gervais LLP 
1900, 520 3n1 Ave. S.W. 
Calgary, AB T2P OR3 
Telephone: ( 403) 232-9404 / 976 I 
Facsimile: (403) 266-1395 

File No. 446270-000001 

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT(S) 

You are being sued. You are a defendant. 

Go to the end of this document to sec what you can do and when you must do it. 

Note: State below only facts and not evidence (Ruic 13.6) 

Statement of facts relied on: 

Form lO 
[Rule 3.25) 

1. North American Steel Erectors Inc. ("NASE") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant to the 
Jaws of the Province of Alberta. NASE carries on the business of supplying and installing structural 
steel on commercial, institutional, bridge and sports facility projects. 

2. The Defendant, Shield Industries Ltd. ("Shield") is a body corporate, duly incorporated pursuant to 
the laws of the Province of Alberta. Shield carries on business as a fabricator of, among other things, 
structural steel. 

3. The Defendant, Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") is a body corporate, duly incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of Canada and is duly authorized to transact the business of surctyship in Canada, 
including in the Province of Alberta. 
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Tile Project 

4. Pursuant to Subcontract #463022 - OS, dated May 30, 2019, NASE was engaged by PCL 
Construction Management Inc. ("PCL") to supply, fabricate and install structural steel on the 9111 Ave 
Vehicle Bridge Replacement project (the "Project"), located in Calgary, Alberta (the 
"Su bcon tract"). 

5. On or about April 4, 2019, NASE and Shield entered into Purchase Order Number 1906-002 (the 
"Purchase Order"), whereby Shield agreed to fabricate and supply the structural steel for the Project 
as described in Shield's Quotation No. 6317, dated January 31, 2019 (the "Work"), for a stipulated 
price of $3,720,348.03 (including GST) (the "Purchase Order Price"). 

6. The Purchase Order incorporated the terms and conditions of the Subcontract by express reference 
and Shield was bound to adhere to those terms and conditions in the performance of the Work. 

Tile Performance Bontl 

7. Pursuant to clause 4 of the special conditions of the Subcontract, Shield was obligated to provide a 
performance bond in favour of NASE, providing a penal sum equivalent to one-half of the Purchase 
Order Price. 

8. On or about October 9, 2019, Wynward issued Performance Bond No. W086-102-00IP/L-A (the 
"Bond"), with a penal limit of $1,860, 174.02 (the "Bond Amount"), which replaced Bond No. 
WO 186-102-00 I P/L. Under the Bond, NASE was the named Obligee, Shield was the Principal, and 
Wynward was the Surety. NASE pleads and relies upon the terms and provisions of the Bond. 

9. In the event that Shield defaulted on any of its obligations under the Purchase Order, NASE could 
deliver to Wynward a written statement that Shield was in such default and request that Wynward 
fulfill its obligations under the Bond (a "Demand"). 

to. In advance of making a Demand on the Bond, NASE was, entirely at its own discretion, entitled to 
notify Wynward if Shield was, or was soon to be, in default and request that the parties attend a 
conference to communicate those concerns (a "Pre-Demand Conference"). 

11. Upon receipt of a Demand, Wynward would be afforded a reasonable time within which to conduct 
an investigation of the Demand and determine its liability under the Bond. 

12. Twenty-one days following receipt of the information required to conduct the investigation, 
Wynward was obligated to complete its investigation and advise NASE ofits decision. Alternatively, 
if Wynward required more time to complete its investigation then, before the expiry of the 
aforementioned twenty-one days, it was obligated to write to NASE and set out the status of the 
investigation and provide an estimate of when the investigation would be complete. 

13. While Wynward performed its investigation, NASE was entitled under the terms of the Bond to 
engage a replacement contractor or contractors to proceed with the Work for the benefit and 
protection of the Project and in order to mitigate its losses. 

14. Where NASE engaged a replacement contractor, and subject to the conditions of the Bond, the 
reasonable costs incurred by NASE were to be reimbursed by Wynward. 

15. Following an investigation, if the conditions precedent have been satisfied and Shield's default 
confirmed, Wynward would then be obligated to promptly: 
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(a) remedy the default; 

(b) complete the Purchase Order in accordance with its tenns and conditions; 

(c) obtain a bid, or bids, for submission to NASE for completing the Purchase Order in 
accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by NASE and Wynward 
of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and NASE, 
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default, or a 
succession of defaults, under the contract or contracts of completion, arranged under this 
option) sufficient funds to pay to complete Shield's obligations in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Purchase Order, and to pay those expenses incurred by NASE 
as a result of Shield's default relating directly to the performance of the Work under the 
Purchase Order, less the balance of the Purchase Order Price; or, 

(d) pay NASE the lesser of: (1) the Bond Amount; or, (2) NASE's proposed cost of completion 
less the balance of the Subcontract price. 

Sltield's Default a11d tlte Surety's It1vestigatio11 

16. In order to ensure that Shield was meeting its obligations under the Purchase Order on or about 
October 31, 2019, among other times, NASE, PCL and Shield met and discussed Shield's progress. 
Part of that meeting included potential options that would ensure that Shield met the Purchase Order 
with respect to schedule, and conformed to the plans and specifications incorporated into the 
Purchase Order. Among the options discussed was the possibility that Shield engage a subcontractor 
to assist with portions of its Work. 

17. Entirely of its own volition, Shield subcontracted with Supreme Steel LP to perform portions of the 
Work. 

18. In the months subsequent to the October 31, 2019 meeting, it began to become clear to NASE that 
Shield was unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order. As a result, on 
December 11, 2019, NASE issued a notice of non-compliance to Shield requesting that Shield take 
steps to avoid a default (the "Notice of Non-Compliance"). 

19. NASE received and reviewed Shield's response to the Notice of Non-Compliance upon returning 
from a shut down for the holiday season and, on or about January 2, 2020, NASE contacted a 
representative of Wynward regarding its continuing concerns related to Shield's performance. 

20. Without any appreciable improvement following receipt of Shield's response to the Notice ofNon­
Compliance, on January 16, 2020, NASE informed Wynward in writing that Shield was in default 
under the Purchase Order, and that NASE had become aware that Shield was facing financial 
difficulties, and requested a Pre-Demand Conference. That Pre-Demand Conference was held on 
January 30, 2020, during which Shield confinned that it was facing financial difficulties. 

21. On or about February 20, 2020, Shield indicated that it would be laying off its employees and that its 
financial difficulties would prevent it from being able to continue with the Work. 

22. Further, Shield's perfom1ance had not improved following the Pre-Demand Conference and, on or 
about February 27, 2020, NASE made a Demand to Wynward, declared that Shield was in default 
and requested that Wynward fulfill its obligations under the Bond (the "Bond Claim"). 
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23. On or about March 2, 2020 to March 5, 2020, Shield made the final deliveries of materials and then 
subsequently abandoned the Project. 

24. Following the Bond Claim, Wynward began an investigation, with the full cooperation of NASE. 

25. Shield failed to satisfy its obligations under the Purchase Order. These failures include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

(a) Shield issued invoices that included, and Shield sought payment for, Work that was not 
complete; 

(b) Shield failed to follow the change request requirements of the Purchase Order and failed 
to justify additional costs for which it was seeking payment, which in turn resulted in 
NASE being unable to obtain a corresponding approval from PCL; 

(c) Shield failed or otherwise refused to perform the Work as outlined in the plans, 
specifications, or as otherwi~e contemplated within the Purchase Order; 

(d) Shield performed the Work negligently and in breach of the express or implied terms of 
the Purchase Order; 

(e) Shield failed or refused to adequately correct significant portions of its negligent and 
deficient Work, but even where some portions of the Work were corrected, Shield failed 
to do so in a timely manner; 

(f) Shield failed to implement adequate quality assurance and quality control processes; 

(g) Shield failed to staff and maintain a sufficient number of employees, agents or 
subcontractors to complete the Work properly, on time, and in accordance with the express 
or implied terms of the Purchase Order; 

(h) Shield failed to staff appropriately skilled and competent employees, agents or 
subcontractors so that the Work could be completed properly, on time, and in accordance 
with the express or implied terms of the Subcontract; 

(i) Shield failed to properly train the employees, agents or subcontractors that it did have to 
ensure they were adequately qualified to perform the Work; 

(j) Shield failed to properly manage and supervise its employees, agents, or subcontractors; 

(k) Shield failed to maintain a safe work site at all times in accordance with the express or 
implied terms of the Subcontract; and 

(I) Shield failed to complete its scope of Work and abandoned the Purchase Order 

(collectively, "Shield's Defaults"). 

26. By contrast, NASE has satisfied all of its obligations under the Purchase Order including, but not 
limited to, having made timely payment to Shield for all of its validly performed Work and properly 
submitted invoices. 
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27. At no point in time did NASE relieve Shield from its contractual obligations, or otherwise waive, 
acquiesce or abandon its right to demand that Shield perform its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. 

28. On or about August 8, 2020, Wynward and NASE entered into a mitigation agreement (the 
"Mitigation Agreement"), whereby Wynward agreed that NASE could proceed with a remedial 
plan (the "Remedial Plan") to complete the remaining work (the "Remaining Work"), as described 
in Schedules to the Mitigation Agreement. Pursuant to the Mitigation Agreement, Wynward agreed 
not to challenge or dispute the completion of the Remaining Work performed by NASE in accordance 
with the Remedial Plan. 

29. Wynward and NASE entered into the Mitigation Agreement without prejudice to the rights and/or 
obligations of the parties under the Bond. 

30. To date, Wynward has failed or otherwise refused to provide a decision with respect to the Bond 
Claim and, despite repeated demands, has further failed to fulfill its obligations under the Bond. 

Tiie Costs to Complete 

31 . At this time, and subject to uncovering further deficiencies in Shield's work, the total cost to NASE 
to complete Shield's Work will be not less than $4,336,846.93. 

32. NASE had already paid to Shield $1,919,409.12 and, as a result, the balance of the contract price is 
$1,800,938.91. 

33. The resulting short fall from Shield's Defaults and abandonment of the Purchase Order is, therefore, 
not less than $2,535,908.02. 

Claims agai11st tlte Defe11da11ts 

34. Shield has failed, refused, or been otherwise unable to perform its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. As a result of Shield's Defaults, negligence, and breaches of the Purchase Order, NASE has 
suffered and continues to suffer damages and losses. 

35. Wynward has failed to fulfill its obligations under the Bond. Specifically, Wynward has failed to 
take the steps necessary to see that Shield's Defaults were corrected and the Work completed. By so 
doing, Wynward has exacerbated the delay on the Project to such an extent that NASE has had to 
incur significant additional costs and its losses have been substantially increased. 

36. Further, Wynward has failed and or otherwise refused to render a decision regarding the Demand 
and has taken an unreasonable amount of time in so delaying. 

37. As a result of both Shield's Defaults or its negligence in carrying out the Work under the Purchase 
Order, and Wynward's conduct and breaches of the Bond, NASE has suffered, and continues to 
suffer, serious damages including, but not limited to, losses from delay, additional costs, Work 
deficiencies, bank charges, interest costs, increased administrative and overhead costs, and costs to 
complete Shield's unfinished Work. NASE currently estimates such losses, the particulars and total 
amount of which shall be proven at trial, to be not less than as follows: 

(a) Shortfall on costs to complete of $2,535,908.02; 
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(b) Additional manpower costs of$385,948.00; 

(c) Delay and acceleration costs of $648,000.00; 

( d) Liquidated damages losses of approximately $104,000.00; and, 

(e) Such additional costs as may be proven at trial. 

Remedy sought: 

38. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendant, Wynward: 

(a) a declaration that the Performance Bond remains in full force and effect; and, 

(b) a declaration that NASE has discharged all preconditions for payment under the 
Performance Bond, or alternatively for relief from forfeiture in respect thereof. 

39. The Plaintiff, NASE, claims against the Defendants, Wynward and Shield, jointly and severally: 

(a) judgment in the amount of$3,673,856.02, or in the case of Wynward the Bond Amount; 

(b) pre-judgment and post-judgment interest in accordance with the Judgment lnleresl Ac/, 
RSA 2000, c J-1 ; 

(c) costs of this action on a solicitor-client basis or on such other basis as may be determined 
by this Honourable Court; 

( d) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

NOTICE TO THE DEFENDANT(S) 

You only have a short time to do something to defend yourself against this claim: 

20 days if you are served in Alberta 

1 month if you are served outside Alberta but in Canada 

2 months if you are served outside Canada. 

You can respond by filing a statement of defence or a demand for notice in the office of the clerk of 
the Court of Queen's Bench at Calgary, Alberta, AND serving your statement of defence or a demand 
for notice on the plaintiffs(s') address for service. 

WARNING 

If you do not file and serve a statement of defence or a demand for notice within your time period, 
you risk losing the law suit automatically. If you do not file, or do not serve, or are late in doing 
either of these things, a court may give a judgment to the plaintiff(s) against you. 
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Fax: 403-695-3523 
Email: kerry.powell@gowlingwlg.com 
File: A 163536 

Attention: Kerry R. Powell 

1. The Defendant Wynward Insurance Group ("Wynward") adopts the terms emboldened in 
the Statement of Claim to name the parties and subjects in this matter, except where 
otherwise stated in the within Statement of Defence. 

2. In respect of paragraph 3 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward is a company incorporated 
pursuant to the laws of the Province of Manitoba and licensed to carry on business as an 
insurance company and surety in the Province of Alberta. 

3. Except as expressly admitted herein, Wynward denies each and every allegation 
contained in the Plaintiff's Statement of Claim. Wynward admits paragraphs 1, 2, 4, 5 and 
8 of the Statement of Claim. 

4. As admitted by NASE in paragraph 5 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward agrees that the 
terms and conditions of Shield's Quotation No. 6317 dated January 31 , 2019 (the 
"Quotation") were incorporated into and formed part of the Purchase Order. 
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5. The Quotation provided, inter alia, that Shield did not assume or agree to any obligations 
or liabilities other than expressly provided for in the Quotation. 

6. The Quotation did not include reference to the Subcontract and expressly excluded any 
losses, damages or costs suffered by NASE resulting from any defects in workmanship. 

7. In specific reply to paragraph 6 of the Statement of Claim, Wynward denies that the terms 
and conditions of the Subcontract entered into by NASE and PCL on May 30, 2019, more 
than fifty days after the Purchase Order was entered into by NASE and Shield on April 4, 
2019, apply to the Purchase Order. 

8. As a result, an executed finalized copy of the Subcontract was not, and could not be, 
attached to the Purchase Order as required by the Purchase Order. 

9. Further, in the alternative, the reference to the Subcontract in the Purchase Order does 
contain sufficient specificity to identify which terms of the Subcontract, if any, were to be 
incorporated into the Purchase Order. 

10. As admitted by NASE in paragraph 8 of the Statement of Claim, the original Performance 
Bond No. W0186-102-001P/L issued by Wynward was replaced with Performance Bond 
No. W086-102-001P/L (the "Bond"). 

11. NASE did not pay, and has not paid, for the Bond and should not be entitled to rely upon 
or be entitled to the benefits of the Bond. 

12. Further, Wynward denies that NASE has complied with the obligations required of it under 
the Bond. 

13. For instance, NASE has failed to comply with the obligations required of it under the Bond 
by failing to provide timely notice to Wynward of changes to fundamental terms and 
conditions of the Purchase Order. 

14. NASE unilaterally revised and extended the schedule for the completion of the Work 
eleven separate times (the "Schedule Extensions"). 

15. The Schedule Extensions resulted in the extension of the original delivery date of the 
fabricated steel from October 15, 2019 to March 15, 2020. 

16. The last Schedule Extension was issued by NASE on January 13, 2020. 

17. No notice whatsoever of any of the Schedule Extensions was provided to Wynward by 
NASE. 

18. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Schedule Extensions. 

19. Further, the delivery of the steel was significantly delayed and was not completely received 
until December 22, 2019 (the "Late Delivery of Steel"), more than two months after the 
original completion date of the Work on October 15, 2019. 

ACTIVE_ CA\ 43138809\1 



- 3 -

20. When all of the steel finally did arrive on December 22, 2019, the steel had to undergo 
extensive testing and additional approvals in order to comply with the specifications due 
to the fact that the steel was foreign sourced and had an excessively high boron content. 

21. No notice whatsoever of the Late Delivery of the Steel was provided to Wynward by NASE. 

22. Further, NASE unilaterally revised the Specifications for the Work nine months after the 
commencement of the Work requiring Shield to perform additional Work and incur 
additional costs that were not included in the original Purchase Order (the "Revised 
Specifications"). 

23. No notice whatsoever of any of the Revised Specifications was provided to Wynward by 
NASE. 

24. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Revised Specifications. 

25. Further, NASE has failed to comply with the obligations required of it under the Bond by 
failing to provide timely notice to Wynward of Shield's default under the Purchase Order. 

26. On October 31, 2019 NASE and PCL met with Shield to express serious concerns about 
Shield's performance of the Work to date and required that Shield subcontract out a 
portion of the steel fabrication Work to Supreme Steel Ltd. ("Supreme"), a third party steel 
fabricator. 

27. Based on discussions at the October 31, 2010 meeting, a portion of the steel fabrication 
Work was subsequently subcontracted to Supreme by Shield at NASE's instruction and 
with its full knowledge and approval (the "Subcontracted Work"). 

28. No notice whatsoever of the Subcontracted Work was provided to Wynward by NASE. 

29. At no time was the consent of Wynward sought by or provided to NASE with respect to 
the Subcontracted Work. 

30. There were problems with the completion of the Subcontracted Work by Supreme which 
required additional rework and costs. 

31 . As admitted by NASE in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim, in the months 
subsequent to the October 31, 2019 meeting, it became clear to NASE that Shield was 
unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order. 

32. Instead of noting Shield in default and providing notice to Wynward under the Bond based 
on Shield's inability to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase Order, 
NASE required Shield to hire additional welding labour in order to accelerate the 
performance of the Work. 

33. As further admitted by NASE in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim, on December 11, 
2019, a formal Notice of Non-Conformance was issued to Shield by NASE which 
confirmed the serious concerns that NASE had with Shield's performance. 
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34. Contrary to the allegation contained in paragraph 18 of the Statement of Claim, the Notice 
of Non-Compliance did not mention or refer to Shield taking steps to avoid a default, but 
rather mentioned that the steps needed to be taken by Shield in to avoid further issues on 
the Project. 

35. A copy of the formal Notice of Non-Conformance issued by NASE on December 11, 2019 
was not provided to Wynward by NASE nor was Wynward advised of the issuance of the 
Notice of Non-Compliance. 

36. On December 16, 2019 Shield sent a letter to NASE objecting to NASE's allegations as 
set out in the Notice of Non-Conformance ("Shield's Response"). A copy of Shield's 
Response was not provided to Wynward by either Shield or NASE. 

37. Shield contended in its response that it had completed seventy-seven percent of its Work 
but had only been paid thirty-three percent of the value of the Purchase Order. 

38. On or about January 16, 2020, NASE sent a letter to Wynward to advise Wynward of the 
problems being experienced with Shield's performance and provided Wynward with notice 
of a potential claim under the Bond (the "Initial Notice"). 

39. Shield responded to the Initial Notice on the same day denying that it was in default of its 
obligations under the Purchase Order and provided details of non-payment by NASE and 
other factors that had made Shield's performance of the Work more arduous. 

40. The Initial Notice was provided to Wynward by NASE more than a month after the Notice 
of Non-Compliance had been provided to Shield by Wynward and more than three months 
after the original completion date of October 15, 2019 as specified in the Purchase Order 
had been revised by NASE without the knowledge or the consent of Wynward. 

41. The Initial Notice was the first time that Wynward had been formally advised of any issues 
in relation to the performance of the Work by Shield. 

42. On or about January 20, 2020, a Pre-Demand Conference was held between 
representatives of NASE, Shield and Wynward (the "Pre-Demand Conference"). 

43. At the Pre-Demand Conference, based on representations made by NASE and Shield as 
to the status of the Work, it was decided by NASE and Shield that Shield would continue 
to complete the Work. 

44. No independent investigation was conducted by Wynward at this time based on the 
representations of both NASE and Shield as to the status of the Work. 

45. Accordingly, the Initial Notice of a potential claim provided to Wynward by NASE was 
effectively withdrawn by NASE. 

46. Based on the absence of a formal default by Shield, Wynward did not further investigate 
any of the issues raised in the Initial Notice or object to Shield continuing with the Work. 

47. Subsequently, NASE provided Shield with a payment of $350,000.00 in order to provide 
Shield with funds to complete the Work. 
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48. There was no further communication between NASE and Wynward, or Shield and 
Wynward, until over six weeks later when on February 27, 2020 NASE formally declared 
that Shield was in default of its obligations under the Purchase Order and called upon 
Wynward to respond to NASE's claim under the Performance Bond (the "Notice of 
Default"). 

49. The Notice of Default contended that Shield was at that time four months behind in the 
completion of its Work. 

50. The Notice of Default was provided to Wynward considerably after NASE knew in the 
months following October 31, 2019, as admitted in paragraph 18 of the Statement of 
Claim, that Shield was unable to adequately manage its obligations under the Purchase 
Order. 

51. NASE's failure to provide timely notice of Shield's default has caused significant 
irreparable prejudice to Wynward by limiting Wynward's ability to address, remedy and 
mitigate the impact of Shield's default. 

52. NASE's failure to provide timely notice of Shield's default also minimized Wynward's 
ability to address, remedy and mitigate its obligations under Labour and Material Payment 
Bond W086-102-001 P/L (the "L&M Bond") under which Wynward has paid 
$1,860, 174.02 into the Court of Queen's Bench for the payment of unpaid suppliers and 
subcontractors of Shield (the "lnterpleader Proceedings"). 

53. Upon receipt of the Notice of Default, Wynward took steps to investigate the claim made 
by NASE in the Notice of Default, including the retention of a forensic engineering firm to 
sample the quality of the steel used and welding performed by Shield. 

54. Wyward's expert was to provide advice with respect to the welds undertaken by Shield in 
its performance of the Work given that the steel was showing significant signs of cracking 
where the welds had been made. 

55. After repeated requests, samples of the steel and welds were obtained from NASE. 

56. The results of these investigations on Wynward's behalf were shared with NASE. 

57. At all times, Wynward took reasonable and appropriate steps to advise NASE of its 
investigation and the need for additional information from NASE in order to conduct and 
complete its investigation. 

58. At all times, the steps taken by Wynward were reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, and were carried out in a timely manner even in the face of the global 
pandemic and the fact that Shield's project records or personnel were not available to 
Wynward to assist it in conducting its investigation. 

59. On March 2, 2020, after the Notice of Default had been issued by NASE to Wynward, 
NASE unilaterally, and without the involvement of Wynward, entered into an agreement 
with Shield for the purchase of certain fabricated steel components from Shield (the 
"Material Purchase Arrangement"). 
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60. Pursuant to the Material Purchase Arrangement. NASE paid directly to Shield a lump sum 
of $200,000.00. 

61 . The Material Purchase Arrangement was confirmed in writing by an agreement between 
NASE and Shield dated March 2, 2020 (the "Bill of Sale"). 

62. The Bill of Sale included an acknowledgement that expressly provided that the amount 
being paid by NASE was a "final lump sum" and included "any and all costs to repair or 
replace any deficiencies in the fabrication of fully or partially completed work, including but 
not limited to transportation, galvanizing, painting, re-work and project delay costs". 

63. Wynward denies that NASE is entitled to the remedies listed in paragraph 38 of the 
Statement of Claim. 

64. Wynward admits that on or about August 8, 2020 NASE and Wynward entered into a 
mitigation agreement whereby NASE was entitled to proceed to complete the Work in an 
effort to mitigate the impact of Shield's alleged default (the "Mitigation Agreement"). 
Wynward had offered to enter in to the Mitigation Agreement with NASE on June 17, 2020 

65. The Mitigation Agreement provided that neitherWynward or NASE relinquished any rights 
or remedies other than as stated in the Mitigation Agreement. Wynward did not relinquish 
any defences that it was entitled to under the Performance Bond or waive any obligations 
that NASE was obligated to perform under the Performance Bond or the Purchase Order. 

66. The Purchase Order stated the price for the Work as $3,720,348.03 including GST. The 
Material Purchase Arrangement as confirmed by the Bill of Sale stated that the amount 
paid to Shield to March 2, 2020 was $1 ,741 ,926.27 leaving the sum of $1 ,978,421 .76 
available to NASE to complete any deficiencies in the Work (the "Balance of Contract 
Funds"). 

67. The penal sum of the Bond is $1 ,860,174.02 (the "Penal Sum"). 

68. On March 17, 2020 NASE advised Wynward that the costs to complete the Work would 
result in a shortfall to NASE of $1,751 ,860.23, an amount less than the penal sum of the 
Bond and within the Balance of Contract Funds available to NASE to complete the Work. 

69. The costs to complete the Work being claimed by NASE in its Statement of Claim are 
$3,673,856.02, more than double NASE's previous advice. 

70. NASE has neglected, failed or refused to use the Balance of Contract Funds appropriately 
and efficiently to complete the Work and mitigate any losses, damages or costs. 

71 . Wynward denies that NASE has suffered the losses, damages, or costs as alleged, or at 
all. 

72. If NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or costs, which is not admitted 
but denied, NASE's losses, damages or costse as claimed are, in any event, excessive, 
too remote, are contrived to exceed the Penal Sum, and not recoverable under the terms 
of the Performance Bond, or the Purchase Order. 
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Any matters that defeat the claim of the Plaintiff: 

73. NASE neglected, failed or refused to pay for the Bond and should not be entitled to rely 
upon or be entitled to the benefits of the Bond 

74. The Purchase Order expressly precluded the recovery by NASE of any losses, damages 
or costs that may have been suffered by NASE as a result of any defects in Shield's Work. 

75. The Subcontract had not been entered into at the time it was purported to have been 
incorporated into the Purchase Order and was not attached to the Purchase Order. 

76. Alternatively, the reference in the Purchase Order to the Subcontract did not contain 
sufficient specificity to identify which terms of the Subcontract, if any, were to be 
incorporated into the Purchase Order. 

77. NASE did not provide Wynward with the Notice of Default within a period of time that 
allowed Wynward with a reasonable opportunity to address, remedy and mitigate the 
impact of Shield's default and has caused irreparable prejudice to Wynward. 

78. NASE neglected, failed or refused to perform its own obligations and comply with the terms 
of the Purchase Order, or the Bond, properly or at all, the particulars of which are known 
to NASE and include, but are not limited to: 

(a) NASE neglected, failed or refused to make payments to Shield in accordance with 
and as required by the terms of the Purchase Order; 

(b) NASE neglected, failed or refused to deal with issues causing delay in Shield's 
performance of the Purchase Order that resulted from factors beyond Shield's 
control or scope of Work; 

(c) NASE unilaterally, and without the knowledge or consent ofWynward, revised the 
completion date of the Work on eleven different occasions such that the original 
completion date under the Purchase Order of October 15, 2019 was ultimately 
changed to March 15, 2020; 

(d) NASE unilaterally, and without the knowledge or consent of Wynward, changed 
the specifications relating to the Work nine months after the Work had been 
commenced by Shield causing Shield to undertake additional Work, expense and 
delay; 

(e) Pursuant to the Final Purchase Arrangement as confirmed by the Bill of Sale, 
NASE effectively, for consideration, waived any entitlement, if any, to recover any 
costs relating to any defects in the workmanship or materials provided by Shield; 
and 

(f) NASE neglected. failed or refused to use the Contract Balance appropriately and 
efficiently to complete the Work. 

79. Obligations arise on the part of Wynward under the Bond, if at all, only in the event that 
Shield is in default under the Purchase Order, Shield is properly noted in default under the 
terms of the Purchase Order and NASE has met all of its obligations under the Purchase 
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Order. These conditions precedent have not been met and consequently, no obligations 
arise or can arise on the part of Wynward under the Bond. 

80. Further, or in the alternative, if any such loss, damage or cost was incurred, which is not 
admitted but denied, then such loss, damage or cost arises from unknown, unanticipated 
or undisclosed conditions, material imperfections, design errors, onerous or impossible 
specifications, and are not the responsibility or fault of Shield under the Purchase Order, 
or Wynward under the Bond. 

81. Further, or in the alternative, if any such losses, damages or costs were incurred, which 
is not admitted but denied, then such losses, damages or costs result from the breach of 
contract, negligent acts or omissions of parties other than Shield, including NASE, and are 
not the responsibility or fault of Shield under the Purchase Order, or Wynward under the 
Bond. 

82. Further, or in the alternative, if any such losses, damages, or costs were incurred, which 
is not admitted but denied, then the Balance of Contract Funds are well in excess of any 
reasonable and proper losses, damages or costs incurred or that might be incurred in 
completing or correcting any of the Work. 

83. If NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or costs, which is not admitted 
but denied, NASE's losses, damages or costs claimed are, in any event, excessive and 
too remote. NASE's claim for delay damages, acceleration, and liquidated damages are 
not compensable by the terms of the Purchase Order, or the Bond. 

84. Further, or in the alternative, if NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or 
costs, which is not admitted but denied, NASE has failed to take any or, alternatively, 
proper steps to mitigate such losses, damages or costs. 

85. Further, or in the alternative, if NASE has suffered or will suffer any losses, damages or 
costs, which are not admitted but denied, all or a portion of such losses, damages or costs 
improperly relate to the payment by NASE of suppliers and subcontractors who have 
claimed under the L&M Bond and will be, or have been, paid under the lnterpleader 
Proceedings. 

86. Further, or in the alternative, the amounts sought by NASE are overstated. 

Remedy sought: 

87. A denial of the declarations sought by the Plaintiff; 

88. Dismissal of the Plaintiffs claim for judgement; 

89. Dismissal of the Plaintiffs claim for interest; 

90. Costs of this action on a solicitor-client basis or on such other basis as may be determined 
by this Honourable Court; and 

91 . Such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 
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This is the Reply of the Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc., to the Statement of Defence, 
filed by Wynward Insurance Group, Defendant, on January 28, 2021 

Statement of facts relied on: 

1. The Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc., denies each and every allegation in the Statement 

of Defence of Wynward Insurance Group, filed January 28, 2021 (the "Statement of Defence") 

and puts the Defendant to the strict proof thereof. 

2. The Plaintiff, North American Steel Erectors Inc. repeats and relies on the allegations set out in its 

Statement of Claim, filed December 9, 2020 (the "Statement of Claim") 

3. All capitalized terms used in this Reply have the same meanings as set out in the Statement of 

Claim, unless otherwise indicated herein. 

4. In reply to paragraphs 4, 5, and 6, NASE states and the fact is, that on January 31, 2019, Shield 

provided a quote to NASE (the "Quotation"). Upon receipt of the Quotation, and in the context 

of the Subcontract, NASE issued the Purchase Order. On April 4, 2019, NASE provided Shield 

with the Purchase Order, which clearly detailed the Work, the Purchase Order Price, and the terms 
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and conditions of the Purchase Order. On the date that it was issued to Shield, Shield accepted the 

Purchase Order. The Work was done pursuant to both the Purchase Order and the Subcontract. 

5. In reply to paragraphs 7, 8, 9, 75, and 76 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is 

that the Subcontract was incorporated by reference and by attachment to the Purchase Order. 

Shield's Work was done pursuant to both the Purchase Order and the Subcontract. 

6. In reply to paragraph 10 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that the Bond 

Number is "W086-I 02-001 P/L-A", as stated in the Statement of Claim, not "W086-I 02-00 I P/L", 

as stated in the Statement of Defence. 

7. In reply to paragraphs I I, 12, and 73 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE paid for the Bond, has complied with its obligations under the Bond, and is entitled to rely 

upon the Bond. As detailed in the Statement of Claim, it is Wynward that has failed to comply 

with its obligations under the Bond. 

8. In reply to paragraphs I 3 through 18 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

while Shield breached the Purchase Order, resulting in significant delay, there were no changes to 

any fundamental terms or conditions of the Purchase Order. NASE denies unilaterally revising or 

extending the schedule for completion of the Work, as alleged or at all. The fact is that Shield 's 

delay breached the Purchase Order, and the schedule agreed to therein. NASE acted reasonably in 

response to Shield's breaches, insisted that Shield's delay was not agreed to, and never waived its 

rights in relation to the Purchase Order or the Bond. NASE denies that Shield's delay is attributable 

to or acquiesced to by NASE, and puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegations to the 

contrary. Wynward was aware of Shield's delay, and specifically involved in meetings between 

PCL, NASE, and Shield in relation to Shield's delay. 

9. In reply to paragraphs I 9 and 21 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

Shield never completed its delivery of steel obligations under the Purchase Order. 

I 0. In reply to paragraph 20 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that all steel 

testing was completed prior to delivery and compliant with agreed to specifications. 

11. NASE denies the allegations of fact stated in paragraphs 22 through 24 and puts Wynward to the 

strict proof thereof. The explicit and implicit specifications of the Work did not change. 

Accordingly, no notice of any revised specifications was necessary or possible. 

12. In reply to paragraphs 26 to 3 I of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that PCL, 

NASE, and Shield met to discuss Shield's delay and default under the Purchase Order, and to 
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discuss ways in which the issues and damages accruing as a result of Shield's breaches of the 

Purchase Order and delay could be mitigated. NASE never required Shield to subcontract any 

portion of the Work, nor did NASE direct the means and methods that Shield was to accomplish 

the Work. 

13. In reply to paragraphs 33 through 39 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE complied with its obligations under the Purchase Order, and the Bond, making all reasonable 

efforts to mitigate its potential and actual damages, and losses in its dealings with both Shield and 

Wyn ward. While Shield has suggested that as of December 16, 2019 seventy-seven percent (77%) 

of the Work was complete, the fact is that Shield had only completed and delivered sixteen percent 

( 16%) of the Work. NASE paid all invoices for Work completed that also complied with the 

mandatory invoicing requirements of the Purchase Order. 

14. In reply to paragraphs 42 through 45 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

Wynward raised no concerns with NASE's actions in relation to the Bond at the January 20, 2020 

meeting or otherwise. Subsequent to that meeting or otherwise, NASE denies waiving any rights 

under the Bond or implicitly or explicitly withdrawing the Initial Notice or its claims under the 

Bond. NASE puts Wyn ward to the strict proof of any allegations to the contrary. 

15. In reply to paragraph 46 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that NASE is 

unaware of what investigative efforts were made by Wynward, but denies that NASE was obligated 

to note Shield in default prior to when it did. 

16. In reply to paragraph 4 7 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that the $350,000 

payment from NASE to Shield was expressly consented to by Wynward. 

17. In reply to paragraph 48 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that Wynward 

was in regular communication with both NASE and Shield throughout January and February 2020 

and leading up to NASE's formal issuance of its Notice of Default upon Shield. 

18. In reply to paragraph 52 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that NASE 

complied with its obligations under the Bond, provided timely notice to Wynward, and denies that 

Wynward has suffered significant irreparable prejudice, as alleged or at all in relation to any notice 

that NASE provided. NASE puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegation to the contrary. 

19. In reply to paragraphs 53 through 56 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

none of its actions affected Wynward's ability to address, remedy, or mitigate its obligations under 

the Bond. NASE denies that repeated requests of it were made or necessary to obtain samples. In 

contrast to the allegations made in the referenced paragraphs, NASE provided Wynward' s experts 
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prompt access to the site and Shield's work. NASE puts the Defendant Wynward to the strict proof 

of any allegations to the contrary. 

20. In reply to paragraphs 57 and 58 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

NASE has no knowledge of Wynward's internal investigative efforts, which are irrelevant to 

Wynward's refusal to comply with its obligations under the Bond. 

21. In reply to paragraphs 59 through 62 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

the Bill of Sale does not preclude, limit, or estop NASE from its entitlements in this Action and the 

Bond. 

22. In reply to paragraphs 64 through 69 of the Statement of Defence NASE states and the fact is that 

the Balance of the Contract Funds, as that term is defined in the Statement of Defence will not 

make NASE whole, and does not preclude, limit, or estop NASE from its entitlements in this Action 

and the Bond. NASE has suffered the damages it has plead in the Statement of Claim, and is 

entitled to the Bond Amount. 

23. In reply to paragraph 74 of the Statement of Defence, NASE disagrees that the Purchase Order or 

any of its terms preclude recovery from the Defendants or either of them. 

Any matters that defeat the claim/defence of the defendant: 

24. In reply to paragraph 25, 28, 29, 31, 32, 35, 36, 40, 41, 63, 77, 78, 79, 80, and 81 of the Statement 

of Defence, and the Statement of Defence generally, NASE states and the fact is that NASE 

complied with the terms of the Bond and is entitled to the remedies sought through this Action, as 

against the Defendant, Wynward. NASE puts Wynward to the strict proof of any allegation to the 

contrary. 

25. In reply to paragraphs 82 through 86 of the Statement of Defence, NASE states and the fact is that 

the losses, damages, and costs incurred and suffered by NASE as a result of the actions of the 

Defendants exceed any amounts owed under the Subcontract and will exceed the balance of the of 

the penal limit under the Bond. NASE has taken all reasonable steps and fulfilled its obligations to 

mitigate its losses, damages, and costs incurred and suffered. The damages suffered by NASE and 

plead are reasonably foreseeable, calculated correctly, proximate, compensable, conservatively 

stated, and specifically contemplated by the Bond. The losses, damages, and costs suffered by 

NASE do not relate to the suppliers and subcontractors who have claimed under the L&M Bond, 

as that term is defined in the Statement of Defence. 

Remedy sought: 
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26. The Plaintiff, NASE, reiterates and incorporates herein the relief sought in its Statement of Claim, 

at paragraphs 38 and 39. 

NOTE 

This reply may only make admissions or respond to matters raised for the first time in the statement 
of defence (Rules 3.33(2)(b) and 13.10). 


